
Common Council

City of Appleton

Meeting Agenda - Final

100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

Council Chambers7:00 PMWednesday, August 17, 2022

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. INVOCATION

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG

D. ROLL CALL OF ALDERPERSONS

E. ROLL CALL OF OFFICERS AND DEPARTMENT HEADS

F. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES

22-1052 Common Council Meeting Minutes of August 3, 2022

CC Minutes 8-3-22.pdfAttachments:

G. BUSINESS PRESENTED BY THE MAYOR

22-1054 Appleton Public Arts Committee Appointment

Appleton Public Arts Committee Appointment.pdfAttachments:

H. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

I. PUBLIC HEARINGS

J. SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS

K. ESTABLISH ORDER OF THE DAY

L. COMMITTEE REPORTS

1. MINUTES OF THE MUNICIPAL SERVICES COMMITTEE

Page 1 City of Appleton Printed on 8/12/2022

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21602
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f4445bde-8ace-407a-94ca-a5b5c7503f74.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21604
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6f95a9aa-c016-4b9b-9e91-da3287321780.pdf


August 17, 2022Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

22-0954 Request from Michael Rumans, 725 W. Packard Street, for a variance to 

Municipal Code Section 19-91 (f) for a driveway widened more than 4 feet 

into the front yard.

 

725 W Packard St-variance.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

7/25/22 Municipal Services 

Committee

held

Item #22-0954 be held until August 8th meeting

8/8/22 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for denial

22-1033 Approve Contract Amendment / Change Order No. 1 to Olde Oneida 

Street Bridge over the power canal Design Services Contract with the WI 

Department of Transportation for additional environmental requirements 

related to geotechnical sampling in the amount of $20,000.00 resulting in 

no change to contract contingency.  Overall contract increases from 

$87,673.00 to $107,673.00. 

Olde Oneida St Bridge.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

8/8/22 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

2. MINUTES OF THE SAFETY AND LICENSING COMMITTEE

3. MINUTES OF THE CITY PLAN COMMISSION

22-1000 Request to approve Special Use Permit #8-22 for a car wash use located 

at 1000 W. Northland Avenue (Tax Id #31-5-9494-06), as shown on the 

attached materials and per attached plan of operation, to run with the land 

subject to the conditions in the attached staff report and approve attached 

Resolution (2/3 vote of Common Council required for approval)

StaffReport_Zips Car Wash_SUP_For08-10-22.pdf

Ron & Cindy Dercks Email 8-8-22.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

8/10/22 City Plan Commission recommended for approval

Staff received an email from Ron & Cindy Dercks expressing concerns about 

the proposed Special Use Permit.  The email was distributed to the Plan 

Commission members at the meeting and is attached.

Page 2 City of Appleton Printed on 8/12/2022

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21504
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d4fdcd04-2306-4b05-966d-d6ca2a670064.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21583
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6d032fd6-e47b-46fd-9e6b-9f8e8b6b0d63.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21550
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=390c8109-9149-4099-ad03-c4ac29bed90d.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=aefcf59b-743b-451d-98dc-6dc28e39e6f6.pdf


August 17, 2022Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

22-1001 Request to approve Certified Survey Map #23-22, which crosses a plat 

boundary, to eliminate a parcel located on E. John Street (Tax Id 

#31-4-5269-00) and attach its land area to 2 parcels, 1730 S. Matthias 

Street (Tax Id #31-4-4699-00) and 2616 E. John Street (Tax Id 

#31-4-5268-00) as shown on the attached map and subject to the 

conditions in the attached staff report

StaffReport_JohnStMatthiasSt_CrossingPlatBoundary_For08-10-22.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

8/10/22 City Plan Commission recommended for approval

22-1002 Request to approve Resolution #2022-06 to update the land use 

applications fee schedule for the Community and Economic Development 

Department as described in the attached documents

Land Use Application Fees Memo to PC_8-10-22.pdf

Land Use Apps Fee Study_Proposed Fees For 2023.pdf

Resolution #2022-06_Land Use Application Fees 2023.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

8/10/22 City Plan Commission recommended for approval

4. MINUTES OF THE PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE

22-1022 Action:  Award the 2022 Lutz Park Shoreline Development and Trail 

Design Project Contract to AECOM in the Amount of $50,000

 

Lutz Park Shoreline Development and Trail Design Project Memo .docxAttachments:

Legislative History 

8/8/22 Parks and Recreation 

Committee

recommended for approval

22-1036 Resolution #9-R-22 Sustainability

 

#9-R-22 Sustainability Panel Resolution.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

8/8/22 Parks and Recreation 

Committee

recommended for approval

5. MINUTES OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE

22-1012 Request to Approve the Permanent Sanitary Sewer Easement and 

Temporary Construction Easement Agreement with the Chris J. Hartwig 

Revocable Trust

 

0115 - Finance Committee - Hartwig Easement Memo 08-01-2022 (Final).pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

8/8/22 Finance Committee recommended for approval

Page 3 City of Appleton Printed on 8/12/2022

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21551
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a97f228a-2b6a-453e-9ba6-dd6396809259.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21552
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=36fce710-4d77-41cd-a62f-97765c13a3cc.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=84a8ba11-a325-4096-a433-5f020369ef43.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ad39aea4-a127-4204-8419-b4dc01b90d98.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21572
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c93e6895-2994-4163-a1bc-81d0e36150be.docx
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21586
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f275df17-6a57-455d-99bf-d44cef9a8245.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21562
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=982ea8af-2789-4f5e-96c5-fec37e007207.pdf


August 17, 2022Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

22-1013 Request to Approve Change Order #3 to Sabel Mechanical contract as 

part of the 2021 Secondary Clarifier Drive Removal, Rebuild, and 

Reinstallation Project totaling $27,174 resulting in a decrease in 

contingency from $88,421 to $61,227

 

220725_UC Memo SecondaryClariferDrive_Sabel_Change Orders No3.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

8/8/22 Finance Committee recommended for approval

22-1014 RIVERSIDE CEMETERY ASSOCIATION submitting a request for payment 

for maintenance of Veteran's graves

 

Riverside Cemetery - 2022 Veteran Grave Care Reimbursement.pdf

Riverside Cemetery - Military Report 07-06-2022 - by death date.xlsx

Riverside Cemetery - Veterans July 2021 to June 2022.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

8/8/22 Finance Committee recommended for approval

22-1028 Request to Approve Contract Amendment / Change Order No. 1 to 

contract 44-22, Unit Z-22 Sewer and Water Reconstruction No. 3 for 

addition of Oneida Street sanitary sewer relay to serve new Urbane 115 

development in the amount of $42,805 resulting in no change to contract 

contingency. Overall contract increases from $1,483,695 to $1,526,500.

 

Unit Z-22 Change Order No. 1.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

8/8/22 Finance Committee recommended for approval

6. MINUTES OF THE COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

7. MINUTES OF THE UTILITIES COMMITTEE

22-1006 Award Engineering Contract to McMahon Associates for the Water 

Treatment Facility Optimized Corrosion Control Treatment (OCCT) 

Phosphoric Acid System Design in the amount of $35,200 with a 

contingency of $5,280.

 

OCCT Project 08-01-22.pdfAttachments:

8. MINUTES OF THE HUMAN RESOURCES & INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

COMMITTEE

9. MINUTES OF THE FOX CITIES TRANSIT COMMISSION

Page 4 City of Appleton Printed on 8/12/2022

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21563
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=390a2fcb-02a8-4820-b9df-a9276e670f17.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21564
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=47a2e7fd-a061-45b8-9f67-71eabdb01203.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=cd2208aa-df51-4239-aa86-2a407583fb04.xlsx
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a0c6f300-95a7-4d7b-a894-72f1fcffb10b.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21578
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c942bd0e-1369-4b0a-a509-0fe1c8d27527.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21556
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d117bc9e-0fb3-4b46-8e6c-4d59da9742ed.pdf


August 17, 2022Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

10. MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF HEALTH

22-1030 Request to Approve Weights and Measures Fee Schedule. 

 

FEE PROPOSALS 2023.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

8/10/22 Board of Health recommended for approval

M. CONSOLIDATED ACTION ITEMS

N. ITEMS HELD

O. ORDINANCES

P. LICENSE APPLICATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS REFERRED TO 

COMMITTEES OF JURISDICTION

22-1053 Ordinances #53-22 & #54-22

 

Ordinances to Council 8-17-22.pdfAttachments:

Q. RESOLUTIONS SUBMITTED BY ALDERPERSONS REFERRED TO COMMITTEES 

OF JURISDICTION

R. OTHER COUNCIL BUSINESS

S. ADJOURN

Kami Lynch, City Clerk

Reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities will be made upon request and 

if feasible.  

Remote meeting attendance may be permitted pursuant to Section 2-29 of the Appleton 

Municipal Code and Rules of Council.

Page 5 City of Appleton Printed on 8/12/2022

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21580
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f6da9ea3-6a91-4441-a6be-68399c242532.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21603
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2968c6a7-4c37-4a84-9fc1-e1c05e9844f8.pdf


100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

City of Appleton

Meeting Minutes - Final-revised

Common Council

7:00 PM Council ChambersWednesday, August 3, 2022

CALL TO ORDERA.

The meeting was called to order by Council President Van Zeeland at 7:00 p.m.

INVOCATIONB.

The Invocation was offered by Alderperson Alfheim.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAGC.

ROLL CALL OF ALDERPERSONSD.

Mayor Woodford arrived at 7:15 p.m.

Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Israel 

Del Toro, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, Alderperson Denise Fenton, 

Alderperson Joss Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Vaya 

Jones, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson 

Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson Christopher Croatt, Alderperson Chad Doran 

and Mayor Jake Woodford

Present: 14 - 

Alderperson Brad Firkus and Alderperson Maiyoua ThaoExcused: 2 - 

ROLL CALL OF OFFICERS AND DEPARTMENT HEADSE.

All Departments were represented.

APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL MEETING MINUTESF.

22-0972 Common Council Meeting Minutes of July 20, 2022

CC Minutes 7-20-22.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Hartzheim moved, seconded by Alderperson Meltzer, that the 

Minutes be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson 

Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, Alderperson Denise 

Fenton, Alderperson Joss Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson 

Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, 

Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson Christopher Croatt and 

Alderperson Chad Doran

13 - 

Page 1City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21522
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=47473a56-a5d2-4a04-ab7a-51b6963042fe.pdf


August 3, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final-revised

Excused: Alderperson Brad Firkus and Alderperson Maiyoua Thao2 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

BUSINESS PRESENTED BY THE MAYORG.

22-1008 Library Project Status Update

 

22-0985 Proclamations

  - Breastfeeding Awareness Month 

  - Creative Economy Week

 

Breastfeeding Awareness Month Proclamation.pdf

Creative Economy Week Proclamation.pdf

Attachments:

PUBLIC PARTICIPATIONH.

The following spoke regarding Item 22-0940 Trout Museum location in Ellen Kort 

Peace Park Discussion:

Cindy Kort, 405 S Olde Oneida St #203

Curt Detjen, 3348 S Scarlet Oak Ln

Joe Martin, 415 S Olde Oneida St #101

Christina Turner, 111 W College Ave

Dan Van Daalwyk, 200 E College Ave

Elisa DeGroot, 335 W Prospect Ave

Clint Dusenbery, 505 E 17th St, Kaukauna

Beth Flaherty, 1703 W Reid Dr

Brian Hess, 507 W Prospect Ave

Jennifer Stephany, 333 W College Ave Ste. 100

Peggy Saurson, 331 W 6th St

PUBLIC HEARINGSI.

SPECIAL RESOLUTIONSJ.

ESTABLISH ORDER OF THE DAYK.

ESTABLISH ORDER OF THE DAYK.

Page 2City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21558
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21535
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=85714bac-ba59-40a3-ba44-a373e8ea75a0.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6669253d-c90d-41e6-a150-33b00bd74f90.pdf


August 3, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final-revised

22-0940 Action Item: Authorize staff to engage in further discussions with Trout 

Museum of Art representatives in order to continue exploring the 

feasibility of locating the museum within Ellen Kort Peace Park and, if 

feasible, further develop plans and agreements for subsequent approval 

by the Common Council during future steps in the process

 

2022 Ellen Kort Park Proposal.docxAttachments:

Alderperson Del Toro moved, seconded by Alderperson Meltzer, that the  Item 

be amended to state: Authorize staff to engage in further discussions with Trout 

Museum of Art representatives in order to continue exploring the feasibility of 

a Public Private Partnership with the City of Appleton and supporters of the 

Trout Museum and, if feasible, further develop plans and agreements for 

subsequent approval by the Common Council during future steps in the 

process.

(Removes the Ellen Kort Peace Park part of the discussions)

Roll Call. Motion failed by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson 

Israel Del Toro and Alderperson Nate Wolff

4 - 

Nay: Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson 

Joss Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, 

Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson 

Christopher Croatt and Alderperson Chad Doran

9 - 

Excused: Alderperson Brad Firkus and Alderperson Maiyoua Thao2 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Alderperson Croatt moved, seconded by Alderperson Hartzheim, that the  Item 

be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson 

Joss Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, 

Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson 

Christopher Croatt and Alderperson Chad Doran

9 - 

Nay: Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Israel Del Toro and Alderperson 

Vaya Jones

3 - 

Excused: Alderperson Brad Firkus and Alderperson Maiyoua Thao2 - 

Abstained: Alderperson William Siebers and Mayor Jake Woodford2 - 

22-1017 Refer back objection for Item 22-0968

Item 22-0968 (Resolution #8-R-22) was referred back to Committee by 

Alderperson Doran.  

Alderperson Fenton moved, seconded by Alderperson Wolff, to object to the 

refer-back. Roll Call. Motion carried, and the objection was sustained by the 

following vote:

The item is not referred back.

Page 3City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21490
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=621d7834-9107-4716-923f-89b92078cc30.docx
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21567


August 3, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final-revised

Aye: Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Katie 

Van Zeeland, Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Joss Thyssen, 

Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin 

Alfheim and Alderperson Nate Wolff

9 - 

Nay: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson 

Christopher Croatt and Alderperson Chad Doran

4 - 

Excused: Alderperson Brad Firkus and Alderperson Maiyoua Thao2 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

22-0968 Resolution #8-R-22 Requesting an Advisory Referendum related to 

Marijuana Legalization for the November 8, 2022 election ballot

 

#8-R-22 Advisory Referendum Res- Marijuana Legalization..pdf

Memo RE Res 8-R-22 Advisory Referendum.pdf

Attachments:

Alderperson Schultz moved, seconded by Alderperson Wolff, that the 

Resolution be amended as follows: 

Section 1. remove the words "full adult" and add "by those 21 and over" to 

read:

..."for the purpose of submitting to the qualified electors of Appleton the 

proposition of whether the State of Wisconsin should legalize and regulate the 

use of marijuana in Wisconsin by those 21 and over"

Add Section 3. to read: "The City Clerk is directed to send results of the 

referendum to the Governor of the State of Wisconsin, the Wisconsin Towns 

Association, the Wisconsin League of Municipalities, and all members of the 

State Legislature"

Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson 

Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, Alderperson Denise 

Fenton, Alderperson Joss Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson 

Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff and 

Alderperson Christopher Croatt

11 - 

Nay: Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim and Alderperson Chad Doran2 - 

Excused: Alderperson Brad Firkus and Alderperson Maiyoua Thao2 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Alderperson Fenton moved, seconded by Alderperson Meltzer, that the Exhibit 

A portion (Referendum Question) of the Resolution be amended as follows:

"Should marijuana be legalized for use by those 21 and over in the State of 

Wisconsin?"

Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Page 4City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21518
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3c735a9b-fe94-4894-900c-11ed28752e04.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=da996ee6-2086-471a-9b99-3390514cf52d.pdf


August 3, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final-revised

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson 

Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, Alderperson Denise 

Fenton, Alderperson Joss Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson 

Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff and 

Alderperson Christopher Croatt

11 - 

Nay: Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim and Alderperson Chad Doran2 - 

Excused: Alderperson Brad Firkus and Alderperson Maiyoua Thao2 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Alderperson Hartzheim moved, seconded by Alderperson Doran, that the 

Resolution be referred back to the Safety & Licensing Committee. Roll Call. 

Motion failed by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson 

Christopher Croatt and Alderperson Chad Doran

4 - 

Nay: Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Katie 

Van Zeeland, Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Joss Thyssen, 

Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin 

Alfheim and Alderperson Nate Wolff

9 - 

Excused: Alderperson Brad Firkus and Alderperson Maiyoua Thao2 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Alderperson Doran moved, seconded by Alderperson Hartzheim, that the 

Resolution be amended to add:

"Be It Further Resolved, that the costs of the Advisory Referendum are funded 

with account 620600 of the Council budget" which is the remaining parking 

passes budget for the Council members.

Roll Call. Motion failed by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim and Alderperson Chad Doran2 - 

Nay: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson 

Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, Alderperson Denise 

Fenton, Alderperson Joss Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson 

Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff and 

Alderperson Christopher Croatt

11 - 

Excused: Alderperson Brad Firkus and Alderperson Maiyoua Thao2 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Alderperson Fenton moved, seconded by Alderperson Thyssen, that the 

Resolution for an Advisory Referendum be approved as amended. Roll Call. 

Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Katie 

Van Zeeland, Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Joss Thyssen, 

Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin 

Alfheim and Alderperson Nate Wolff

9 - 

Nay: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson 

Christopher Croatt and Alderperson Chad Doran

4 - 

Page 5City of Appleton



August 3, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final-revised

Excused: Alderperson Brad Firkus and Alderperson Maiyoua Thao2 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

22-0952 APS Evaluation-Meade St/Wisconsin Av Traffic Signal.  Follow-Up to a 

One-Year Period

 

Meade St-Wisconsin Ave.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Croatt moved, seconded by Alderperson Del Toro, that the APS 

Evaluation follow-up be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following 

vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson 

Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, Alderperson Denise 

Fenton, Alderperson Joss Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson 

Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, 

Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson Christopher Croatt and 

Alderperson Chad Doran

13 - 

Excused: Alderperson Brad Firkus and Alderperson Maiyoua Thao2 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

COMMITTEE REPORTSL.

Balance of the action items on the agenda.

Alderperson Croatt moved, Alderperson Hartzheim seconded, to approve the 

balance of the agenda.  The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson 

Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, Alderperson Denise 

Fenton, Alderperson Joss Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson 

Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, 

Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson Christopher Croatt and 

Alderperson Chad Doran

13 - 

Excused: Alderperson Brad Firkus and Alderperson Maiyoua Thao2 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

MINUTES OF THE MUNICIPAL SERVICES COMMITTEE1.

22-0950 Apple Fields Subdivision traffic control

 

Apple Fields Subdivision traffic control.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 6City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21502
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b07fbebe-f7eb-41f9-a153-9bfb229274d4.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21500
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7529a2ef-fea7-4f87-ace1-0fe1db128227.pdf


August 3, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final-revised

22-0951 Change to intersection traffic control at the Cedar Ridge Dr/Woodendale 

Way intersection. Follow up to Six-Month Trial Period

 

Cedar Ridge-Woodendale Way.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-0953 Request from Positive Ventures, LLC to have their street snow removal 

assessments totaling $397.25 for properties at 1200 & 1216 S. Oneida 

Street waived.

 

Positive Ventures LLC- Snow assessments.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-0965 Request from AT&T for a permanent Street Occupancy Permit to install a 

54” x 54” utility cabinet at the end of Kernan Avenue near 3201 S Kernan 

Avenue.

 

3201 S Kernan Ave-Perm St Occ.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE SAFETY AND LICENSING COMMITTEE2.

22-0238 Class "B" Beer and "Class B" Liquor License application for Chandelier 

LLC d/b/a Broken Chandelier, Kyle E Jones, Agent, located at 215 W 

College Ave, contingent upon approval from the Health and Inspections 

departments. 

Broken Chandelier.pdf

SUP 13-08 Transfer_Report_3-18-22_final- Broken Chandelier.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-0593 Temporary Class "B" Beer and "Class B" Liquor License Premise 

Amendment application for Stone Arch Brewpub, Steve Lonsway, Agent, 

located at 1004 S Olde Oneida St, on August 4-7, 2022, contingent upon 

approval from the Community Development and Inspections 

departments.

Stone Arch Brewpub.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 7City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21501
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=fbd74ba5-aa9b-435a-af5b-5f24f6bf2383.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21503
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f8621b7c-5dd5-4e56-8b3f-7fe645c1b10a.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21515
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ce52697a-f4b4-45e2-9210-4bbc5a32e9a8.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20788
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=624b85a1-b79f-4a46-8506-aa36714a0e67.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c608a3dc-0b46-47a9-b2dc-9fb62c752540.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21143
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=63cbcf30-7f03-4f60-b76a-9986d8f48308.pdf


August 3, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final-revised

22-0872 Class "B" Beer License application for The Breaking Point LLC d/b/a 

Breaking Point, Courtney Hayden, Agent, located at 2011 N Richmond 

St, contingent upon approval from the Health and Inspections 

departments.

Breaking Point -1.pdf

Resolution_The Breaking 

Point_SUP#5-21_SIGNED_LiquorLicense.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-0902 Temporary Class "B" Beer and "Class B" Liquor Premise Amendment 

application for S C Carrow Corp d/b/a Rookies Sports Bar & Grill, Steve 

Carrow, Agent, located at 325 N Appleton St, on August 4-7, 2022, 

contingent upon approval from the Inspections department.

Rookies Sports Bar & Grill S&L.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-0945 Taxicab Company & Limousine Service License Application for Dynasty 

Limousine Service LLC, 1900 Vandenberg Ln, Kaukauna, WI 54130, 

Diana & John Wolters.

 

Diana Wolters- Dynasty Limousine Service LLC.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-0961 Class "A" Beer / "Class A" Liquor - Cider Only License Change of Agent 

application for True North Energy LLC d/b/a True North #822, Michelle A 

Knox, New Agent, located at 3411 N Ballard Rd.

Michelle A Knox S&L.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-0963 Class "B" Beer and "Class B" Liquor License application for Tipsy Taco 

& Tequila Bar LLC d/b/a Tipsy Taco & Tequila Bar, Sarah J Gregory, 

Agent, located at 127 S Memorial Dr, contingent upon approval from the 

Inspections department.

Tipsy Taco & Tequila Bar-1.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE CITY PLAN COMMISSION3.

MINUTES OF THE PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE4.

Page 8City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21422
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=05d086d0-6cf1-42ec-aef9-fd767094d1db.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8bf178fb-6be9-4fd9-98f8-dd447e5b4818.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21452
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c7464058-1777-4db4-89ec-39943efbb3bc.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21495
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4eefac71-460e-4346-897c-044479b25513.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21511
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=fd46354d-e373-4aff-9e84-dd107385ba1d.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21513
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=71083111-09e3-43d5-b6dd-030cbe02c277.pdf


August 3, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final-revised

22-0930 Action Item:  Approve contract with Shade Systems for $49,664.87 to 

purchase shade structures for Jones Park

 

Action-2022 Jones Park Shade Systems.docxAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE5.

22-0904 Request to approve the following 2022 Budget amendments:

General Fund - Police

Insurance Proceeds +$  27,106

Miscellaneous Equipment +$  27,106

to record the insurance proceeds for the replacement of a damaged 

drone (2/3 vote of Council required)

General Fund - Police

Miscellaneous State Aids +$225,618

Miscellaneous Equipment +$225,618

to record funds received from a Department of Administration grant for 

Safer Communities to support purchase of Cradlepoint wireless router 

system (2/3 vote of Council required)

Drone Memo.pdf

Safer Communities Memo.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-0958 Request to approve the following 2022 Budget amendment:

Facilities Management Capital Projects Fund

Telulah Park Pickleball Complex Project                    +$27,000

Einstein Park Land Improvement Project                    -$27,000

to reallocate excess budget funds from the Einstein Park Land 

Improvement project to the Telulah Park Pickleball Complex project (2/3 

vote of Council required)

Budget Transfer Einstein Park to Telulah Park.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 9City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21480
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b69bb3c5-9441-4e07-bc52-b69d5aa0f645.docx
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21454
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6ebdd042-a178-4746-8519-7467b8baf334.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e0429d9f-c458-4148-966d-727b52f52d02.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21508
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=52a28ae9-2488-45c6-a033-566a87b5c3b7.pdf


August 3, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final-revised

22-0959 Request to approve amendment and change order of $27,593 to contract 

#21-22 Telulah Park Pickleball Complex Project for the addition of 

geogrid and breaker stone resulting in the contract to Northeast Asphalt 

increasing from $586,552 to $614,145.

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-0960 Request to approve the following 2022 Budget amendment:

ARPA Special Revenue Fund

Transfer Out - Parking Utility               +$1,500,000

Fund Balance Applied                   +$1,500,000

to record use of ARPA funds as lost revenue for the Parking Utility (2/3 

vote of Council required)

2022 ARPA Lost Revenue.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-0966 Request to award the Council Chamber Tech Upgrade project to Camera 

Corner/Connecting Point in the amount of $49,930

2022 Council Chamber RFP Action and Info.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-0906 CEA Review Committee Report

CEA Review Committee MeetingMinutes11-Jul-2022-08-11-19.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE6.

22-0938 Request to approve the attached College North Neighborhood Plan 

prepared by RDG Planning & Design

College North Neighborhood Plan Memo to CEDC + Plan 7-27-22.pdf

ExecSummary_CollegeNorthNeighborhoodPlan_July2022.pdf

CollegeNorthNeighborhoodPlan_July2022.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE UTILITIES COMMITTEE7.

Page 10City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21509
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21510
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5ed4a7ed-148d-43a1-aec8-452425cf6eab.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21516
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1fadd61f-52e6-4578-af8c-1f03ba773f6b.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21456
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5bf5c74e-176f-4548-ab1b-06d4c68d53a6.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21488
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=98886556-aabe-4cfe-bb1b-9ed7f6cfaa67.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a9d446fe-75af-4e7e-a4d1-301328bcb58d.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8438f703-7803-410c-a247-b54cb7e45902.pdf


August 3, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final-revised

22-0933 Request to approve Lead and Galvanized Steel Water Service 

Replacement Program Eligibility and Participation Policy.

 

Attachment - Utilities Committee - 07-26-22 - Eligibility Policy for 

Private Lead Service Replacement Program.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE HUMAN RESOURCES & INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

COMMITTEE
8.

MINUTES OF THE FOX CITIES TRANSIT COMMISSION9.

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF HEALTH10.

CONSOLIDATED ACTION ITEMSM.

ITEMS HELDN.

ORDINANCESO.

22-0973 Ordinance #52-22

 

Ordinances to Council 8-3-22.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Fenton moved, seconded by Alderperson Hartzheim, that the 

Ordinance be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson 

Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, Alderperson Denise 

Fenton, Alderperson Joss Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson 

Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, 

Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson Christopher Croatt and 

Alderperson Chad Doran

13 - 

Excused: Alderperson Brad Firkus and Alderperson Maiyoua Thao2 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

LICENSE APPLICATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS REFERRED TO 

COMMITTEES OF JURISDICTION
P.

RESOLUTIONS SUBMITTED BY ALDERPERSONS REFERRED TO COMMITTEES 

OF JURISDICTION
Q.

Page 11City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21483
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=74242555-5c81-4d6d-917f-64a73f0b2041.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21523
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=bace8271-8d7d-410b-ba90-d32a8d719e09.pdf


August 3, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final-revised

22-1036 Resolution #9-R-22 Sustainability

 

#9-R-22 Sustainability Panel Resolution.pdfAttachments:

22-1037 Resolution #10-R-22 Lawe Street Truck Route

 

#10-R-22 Lawe St Truck Route.pdfAttachments:

OTHER COUNCIL BUSINESSR.

ADJOURNS.

Alderperson Hartzheim moved, seconded by Alderperson Del Toro, that the 

meeting be adjourned at 9:56 p.m. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following 

vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson 

Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, Alderperson Denise 

Fenton, Alderperson Joss Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson 

Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, 

Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson Christopher Croatt and 

Alderperson Chad Doran

13 - 

Excused: Alderperson Brad Firkus and Alderperson Maiyoua Thao2 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Kami Lynch, City Clerk

Page 12City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21586
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f275df17-6a57-455d-99bf-d44cef9a8245.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21587
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=386f123e-ea1f-477d-8812-acaaccea81b7.pdf














 

 

 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION___________________________________________________  _ 

Owner:  WFBT 2, LLC 

 

Applicant:  Bill Arsenault – Mays and Company on behalf of Zips Car Wash 

 

Address/Parcel #:  1000 W. Northland Avenue (Tax Id #31-5-9494-06) 

 

Petitioner’s Request:  The applicant is requesting a Special Use Permit for a car wash. 

 

BACKGROUND______________________________________________________________  _ 

The subject parcel currently contains an approximately 113,111 square foot vacant retail building (former 

ShopKo) and associated large off-street parking lot.   The subject property is part of the larger Northland 

Mall development.   

 

STAFF ANALYSIS____________________________________________________________  _ 

Project Summary:  The applicant proposes interior building modifications to add a car wash inside a 

portion of the vacant retail building as shown on the attached development plans.  The proposed 

development includes the following: 

 

• The car wash will be fully contained in the interior of the existing building and will contain two 

wash tunnels.  The car wash will occupy approximately 56,000 square feet of the existing 

building.  

• Vehicles will enter and exit on the west side of the building. 

• Car wash stacking spaces will be located inside the building.  

• Approximately 35 vacuum stations are proposed and will also be located inside the existing building. 

• Proposed hours of operation are from 8:00 AM to 8:00 PM each day.  

 

Operational Information:  A plan of operation is attached to the staff report. 

 

Existing Site Conditions:  The subject site is approximately 8.18 acres is size and contains an 

approximately 113,111 square foot vacant retail building (former ShopKo) and associated large off-street 

parking lot.   The subject property is part of the larger Northland Mall development.  Access to the property 

will utilize existing driveways and entrance roads off W. Northland Avenue. 

 

REPORT TO CITY PLAN COMMISSION 

Plan Commission Public Hearing Date:  August 10, 2022 

 

Common Council Meeting Date:  August 17, 2022 

 

Item:  Special Use Permit #8-22 for a car wash 

 

Case Manager:  Jessica Titel, Principal Planner 

Community  

and Economic 

Development 



Special Use Permit #8-22 

August 10, 2022 

Page 2 
 

Surrounding Zoning and Land Uses:  The surrounding area is under the jurisdiction of the City of 

Appleton (north, south, east, and west).  The site is surrounded by existing commercial and residential 

development.   

 

North:  R-2 Two-Family District.  The adjacent land use to the north is two-family residential. 

 

South:  C-2 General Commercial District.  The adjacent land uses to the south are currently a mix of 

commercial uses.  

 

East:  C-2 General Commercial District.  The adjacent land uses to the east are currently a mix of 

commercial uses (Kohls and Northland Mall).  

 

West:  C-2 General Commercial District.  The adjacent land uses to the west are currently a mix of 

commercial uses (Festival Foods and North Shore Bank).  

 

Appleton Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030:  Community and Economic Development staff has reviewed 

this proposal and determined it is compatible with the Mixed Use designation shown on the City’s 

Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 Future Land Use Map.  Listed below are related excerpts from the City’s 

Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030. 

 

Goal 1 – Community Growth 

Appleton will continue to provide opportunities for residential, commercial, and industrial growth, 

including appropriate redevelopment sites within the downtown and existing neighborhoods, and greenfield 

development sites at the City's edge. 

 

Goal 8 – Economic Development 

Appleton will pursue economic development that retains and attracts talented people, brings good jobs to 

the area, and supports the vitality of its industrial areas, downtown, and neighborhood business districts. 

 

OBJECTIVE 9.4 Economic Development: 

Ensure the continued vitality of downtown and the City’s neighborhood commercial districts. 

 

OBJECTIVE 10.5 Land Use: 

Support the continued redevelopment and revitalization of land uses adjacent to Appleton’s key 

transportation corridors and downtown. 

 

Current Zoning and Procedural Findings:  The subject property has a zoning designation of C-2 General 

Commercial District.  Per Section 23-113(e) of the Municipal Code, a car wash requires a Special Use 

Permit in the C-2 District.  The Plan Commission makes a recommendation to the Common Council who 

will make the final decision on the Special Use Permit.  A two-thirds vote of the Common Council is 

required for approval. 

 

Zoning Ordinance Requirements and Substantial Evidence:  When reviewing an application for a 

Special Use Permit, the City must determine if the applicant’s proposal satisfies Municipal Code 

requirements and conditions.  Pursuant to Section 23-66(c)(5) of the Municipal Code, the Plan Commission 

and Common Council must provide substantial evidence supporting their decision to approve, approve with 



Special Use Permit #8-22 

August 10, 2022 

Page 3 
 

conditions, or deny the Special Use Permit.  Substantial evidence means “facts and information, other than 

merely personal preferences or speculation, directly pertaining to the requirements and conditions an 

applicant must meet to obtain a Special Use Permit and that reasonable persons would accept in support of 

a conclusion.”  Any requirements and conditions listed for approval must be reasonable, and to the extent 

practicable, measurable. 

 

Finding of Fact:  This request was reviewed in accordance with the standards for granting a Special Use 

Permit under Section 23-66(e)(1-8) of the Municipal Code:  1. proper zoning district: C-2 zoning allows 

car washes as a special use permit, 2. zoning district regulations: car wash will be located within an existing 

building, 3. special regulations: not applicable to carwashes, 4. consistent with comprehensive plan and 

other plans: yes, see above analysis, 5. traffic: applicant will share existing access points currently serving 

the Northland Mall, no concerns submitted by traffic engineer, 6. landscaping and screening: no exterior 

site changes are being proposed, 7. neighborhood compatibility: the proposed use is located adjacent to 

existing commercial uses and will be located completely within an enclosed building, and 8. impact on 

services: the City has existing utilities, services and equipment in place to serve this proposed use.  These 

standards were found in the affirmative, as long as all stipulations are satisfied.  

 

Technical Review Group (TRG) Report:  This item appeared on the July 19, 2022 TRG agenda.  No 

negative comments were received from participating departments. 

 

RECOMMENDATION________________________________________________________  _ 

Staff recommends, based on the above, that Special Use Permit #8-22 for a car wash located at 1000 W. 

Northland Avenue (Tax Id #31-5-9494-06), as shown on the attached materials and per attached plan of 

operation, along with the attached resolution, BE APPROVED to run with the land, subject to the following 

conditions: 

 

1. The owner shall have twelve (12) months from the issuance of the Special Use Permit to obtain a 

building permit and/or occupancy permit for the proposed carwash or Special Use Permit #6-22 will 

expire pursuant to Sections 23-66 (f)(1) b. and c. of the Zoning Ordinance. 

 

Substantial Evidence:  Standardized condition to ensure the use is established in a timely 

manner. This condition will not be applicable when the building permit and/or occupancy permit 

is issued.  

 

2. All Zoning, Building, Fire, Engineering, Utility, Noise and other Municipal Codes, and all 

applicable State and Federal laws shall be complied with. 

 

Substantial Evidence:  This condition assures the applicant understands they must follow the 

City’s Municipal Code and all applicable State and Federal laws which they are required to 

follow while conducting business in the City; failure to follow City, State and Federal 

regulations may result in enforcement action pursuant to Sections 1-16, 1-17, 23-66(f)(5) and 

23-69 of the Municipal Ordinance.   

 

 

 



Special Use Permit #8-22 

August 10, 2022 

Page 4 
 

3. Any future expansions of the carwash, changes to the development plans, plan of operation or any 

conditions of approval may require a major or minor amendment request to this Special Use Permit 

pursuant to Section 23-66(g) of the Zoning Ordinance.  Contact the Community and Economic 

Development Department to discuss any proposed changes. 

 

Substantial Evidence:  Standardized condition that establishes parameters for the current 

application and identifies the process for review of any future changes to the special use. 

 



1 | P a g e  

 

CITY OF APPLETON 

RESOLUTION FOR SPECIAL USE PERMIT #8-22    

CAR WASH 

1000 W. NORTHLAND AVENUE 

 

 

WHEREAS, Bill Arsenault (Mays and Company) on behalf of Zips Car Wash has applied for a Special Use 

Permit for a car wash located at 1000 W. Northland Avenue (also identified as Parcel Number 31-5-9494-06); 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the location for the proposed car wash is located in the C-2 General Commercial District, and the 

proposed use may be permitted by Special Use Permit within this zoning district pursuant to Chapter 23 of the 

Municipal Code; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Plan Commission held a public hearing on August 10, 2022 on Special Use 

Permit #8-22, at which all those wishing to be heard were allowed to speak or present written comments and 

other materials at the public hearing; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Plan Commission has reviewed and considered the Community and 

Economic Development Department’s staff report and recommendation, as well as other spoken and written 

evidence and testimony presented at the public hearing; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Plan Commission reviewed the standards for granting a Special Use Permit 

under Sections 23-66(e)(1-8) of the Municipal Code; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Plan Commission reviewed the standards for imposing conditions on the 

Special Use Permit under Section 23-66(c)(5) of the Municipal Code, and forwarded Special Use Permit #8-22 

to the City of Appleton Common Council with a   favorable conditional      or       not favorable      (CIRCLE 

ONE) recommendation; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Common Council has reviewed the report and recommendation of the City 

of Appleton Plan Commission at their meeting on August 17, 2022. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED AND ORDERED by the Common Council, 

based on Community and Economic Development Department’s staff report and recommendation, as well as 

other spoken and written evidence and testimony presented at the public hearing and Common Council meeting, 

and having considered the recommendation of the City Plan Commission, that the Common Council: 

 

1. Determines all standards listed under Sections 23-66(e)(1-8) of the Municipal Code are found in the 

affirmative     YES     or     NO      (CIRCLE ONE) 

 

2. If NO, the City of Appleton Common Council hereby denies Special Use Permit #8-22 for a car wash 

located at 1000 W. Northland Avenue, also identified as Parcel Number 31-5-9494-06, based upon the 

following standards and determinations:  (List reason(s) why the Special Use Permit was denied) 

 

3. If YES, the City of Appleton Common Council hereby approves Special Use Permit #8-22 for a car wash 

located at 1000 W. Northland Avenue, also identified as Parcel Number 31-5-9494-06, subject to the 



2 | P a g e  

 

following conditions as they are related to the purpose of the City of Appleton Municipal Code and based on 

substantial evidence: 

 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR SPECIAL USE PERMIT #8-22 

 

A. The owner shall have twelve (12) months from the issuance of the Special Use Permit to obtain a 

building permit and/or occupancy permit for the proposed carwash or Special Use Permit #8-22 will 

expire pursuant to Sections 23-66 (f)(1) b. and c. of the Zoning Ordinance. 

 

B. All Zoning, Building, Fire, Engineering, Utility, Noise and other Municipal Codes, and all applicable 

State and Federal laws shall be complied with. 

 

C. Any future expansions of the carwash, changes to the development plans, plan of operation or any 

conditions of approval may require a major or minor amendment request to this Special Use Permit 

pursuant to Section 23-66(g) of the Zoning Ordinance.  Contact the Community and Economic 

Development Department to discuss any proposed changes. 

 

 

4. The City Clerk’s Office is hereby directed to give a copy of this resolution to the owner/applicant, 

Community and Economic Development Department, Inspections Division, and any other interested party. 

 

 

Adopted this ______ day of ____________________________, 2022. 

 

 

 

        _____________________________________ 

        Jacob A. Woodford, Mayor  

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Kami Lynch, City Clerk 



5-5
029

-1

5-5
028

-1

5-9494-11

5-4279

5-4288

5-4289

5-4291
5-4280

5-9
52

9-3
2

5-9
52

9-3
0

5-9
52

9-2
7

5-9
52

9-2
2

5-9
52

9-2
4

5-9495-14

5-5037

5-5
038

5-5039

5-5
054

5-9494-6

5-5
055

5-5
024

5-5
02

4-1

5-5021

5-5022
5-5030

5-5036

5-5034

5-5027

5-5031

5-5033

5-5032

5-5035

5-5019

5-5020

5-5025

5-5018

5-5023

5-5026

5-5
01

7

5-5
02

9

5-5
02

8

5-5040

5-5
04

0-1
1000

15
-17

1100

15-
1721-23

112
7-2

9

113
5-3

7
113

2

21-23

27-2927 29

39
-41

33
-35

33
-35

39-41

916

908919-21

925-27

931-33

9-11

913
915

9-1
1

934902982 964970972

100110171033 925

27
21

27
20

100311211127

W NORTHLAND AV

W SERVICE RD

N 
DA

VID
 ST

W RIDGEVIEW DR

HO
LL

YH
OC

K C
T

C-2

R-2

R-1B

R-1BN 
MA

SO
N 

ST

W NORTHLAND AV

W RIDGEVIEW DR

N 
RI

CH
MO

ND
 ST

W WEILAND LA

N 
LIS

A S
T

N 
ER

B 
STN S

UM
MI

T S
T

N 
LO

CU
ST

 ST

N 
EL

IN
OR

 S
T

N 
DI

VI
SIO

N 
ST

W SUNSET AV

W HOMESTEAD DR

N 
SP

RU
CE

 S
T

HILLOCK CT

N 
BE

NN
ET

T S
T

W LINDBERGH ST

N L
AU

RIE
 ST

Special Use Permit
Car Wash

1000 W. Northland Avenue
Zoning Map

Subject
Area

City Plan Commission
8-10-2022

Subject Area

± 0 100 20050 Feet



5-5
029

-1

5-5
028

-1

5-9494-11

5-4
27

55-4279

5-4288

5-4289

5-4291
5-4280

5-9
52

9-3
2

5-9
52

9-3
0

5-9
52

9-2
7

5-4
35

3

5-4
35

2
5-9

52
9-2

4

5-9495-14

5-5037

5-5
038

5-5039

5-5
054

5-9494-6

5-5
056

5-5
055

5-5
024

5-5
02

4-1

5-5021

5-5022
5-5030

5-5036

5-5034

5-5027

5-5050

5-5031

5-5033

5-5032

5-5035

5-5019

5-5020

5-5025

5-5018

5-5023

5-5026

5-5
05

9

5-5
06

0

5-5
04

1

5-5
05

8

5-5
02

9

5-5
02

8
5-5040

5-5
04

0-1

1000

1001-03

1000

1015

1016 10081032

1101-03

1108 11001116

1119-21

15
-17

1024

1017

1100

15-
1721-23

1023
1124

112
7-2

9

21-23

1025

27-2927 29

39
-41

33
-35

33
-35

39-41
924

932

916

908919-21

925-27

931-33

9-11

913
915

907-09
9-1

1

940

934902982 900964970972

100110171033
901925

27
21

27
20

10031121

W RIDGEVIEW DR

W NORTHLAND AV

W SERVICE RD

N 
DA

VID
 ST

HO
LL

YH
OC

K C
T

SH
AM

RO
CK

 C
T

W SERVICE RD

Special Use Permit
Car Wash

1000 W. Northland Avenue
Aerial Map

City Plan Commission
8-10-2022

Subject Area

± 0 100 20050 Feet











256'

20
0'

18'-0" 24'-0" 18'-0" 4'-0" 18'-0" 24'-0"

22
8'

15
6'

-0
"

24
'-8

"
36

'-0
"

CAR WASH
ENTRANCE

CAR WASH EXIT

LOADING DOCK

EXG OVERHEAD DOOR

11
'-0

"
11

'-0
"

18'-0"

CAR WASH TENANT: APPROX. 56,000 SF RETAIL TENANT: APPROX. 57,000 SF

FESTIVAL FOODS

NORTHLAND MALL

NORTH SHORE
BANK

W. NORTHLAND AVE

EXG ASPHALT
PAVING

EXG COMPACTOR

EXG LIGHT
POLE, TYP.

Z I P S  C A R  W A S H
W  N O R T H L A N D  A V E   A P P L E T O N ,  W I 08 JULY 2022T 316.267.4002 www.sptarchitecture.com

SITE PLAN1 1"=40'

0 40'



1

Jessica L. Titel

From: Ron Dercks <rondercksconstruction@gmail.com>

Sent: Monday, August 8, 2022 12:12 PM

To: Jessica L. Titel

Subject: Zips Car Wash

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when opening attachments or clicking 

links, especially from unknown senders. 

Ron and Cindy Dercks  

21 Hollyhock Court 

Appleton 

 

We have several concerns for the special use permit for a car wash to be located behind our property.   

 

At the present time, there is a gate on the service road behind our property.  Because there is no sign informing people 

that they cannot drive through, vehicles pull up to the gate and then turn around (any time of the day or night).  We 

realize there will be a substantial increase in vehicle traffic in this area and are wondering if anything will be done to 

address this issue.  Cars and trucks pulling up to the gate in the middle of the night, trucks with their back up alarm 

beeping is quite annoying. 

 

We currently need to regularly pick up garbage that has blown into our yard before we can even cut the lawn and feel 

increased traffic will only exaggerate this problem.  If a fence was to be installed (similar to the one behind Festival 

Foods), this would eliminate or greatly reduce the trash problem. 

 

We will try to attend the meeting but wanted to bring our main concerns to you. 

Thank you for any help you can give to these matters. 

 

Ron and Cindy Dercks 

Attention: This message was sent from a source external to the City of Appleton. Please use caution when opening 

attachments or clicking links.  



 

 

 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION___________________________________________________  _ 

Owners:  Benjamin & Laura Paton, Steven Parker, and Carrie Mader 

 

Applicant:  Schuler & Associates  c/o Michael Frank 

 

Address/Parcel:  1730 South Matthias Street and 2616 East John Street (Tax Id #31-4-4699-00, #31-4-

5269-00, and #31-4-5268-00) 

 

Petitioner’s Request:  The applicant is requesting approval of a Certified Survey Map (CSM) that 

crosses a plat boundary.  The CSM would eliminate parcel #31-4-5269-00 and attach its land area to 

parcels #31-4-4699-00 and #31-4-5268-00. 

 

BACKGROUND  ___________________________________________________  _ 

Typically, CSMs are administratively reviewed and approved by City staff.  However, the subject 

properties were originally platted in different plats.  Parcel #31-4-4699-00 was included in the Lang Plat 

(recorded in 1962), and parcels #31-4-5269-00 and #31-4-5268-00 were included in the Apple Orchard 

Plat (recorded in 1975).  In order to satisfy the requirements of Chapter 236 of the Wisconsin State 

Statutes, the proposed CSM must be approved in the same manner as a Final Plat, which includes Plan 

Commission and Common Council approval. 

 

Currently, parcel #31-4-5269-00 is approximately 10,200 square feet in size.  If the CSM is approved, 

parcels #31-4-4699-00 and #31-4-5268-00 would split this land area and each increase by approximately 

5,100 square feet. 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS____________________________________________________________  _ 

Existing Conditions:  Currently, parcel #31-4-4699-00 is developed with a single-family dwelling.  

Parcel #31-4-5269-00 features a paved driveway that previously served a detached garage that was 

associated with neighboring parcel #31-4-5264-00 (garage demolished in 1982).  Parcel #31-4-5268-00 is 

developed with a single-family dwelling and detached garage.  All parcels have a zoning designation of 

R-1B Single-Family District.  The total land area included in the CSM is approximately 0.97 acres. 

 

Subdivision Ordinance Requirements:  Per Section 17-26(b)(1) of the Municipal Code, widths and 

areas of lots shall not be less than that provided in the City’s Zoning Ordinance.  For the R-1B Single-

Family District, the minimum lot width is 50 feet and the minimum lot area is 6,000 square feet, per 

Section 23-93(g) of the Municipal Code.  Proposed Lots 1 and 2 satisfy these lot development standards. 

 

REPORT TO CITY PLAN COMMISSION 

Plan Commission Meeting Date:  August 10, 2022 

 

Common Council Meeting Date:  August 17, 2022 

 

Item:  Certified Survey Map #23-22 

 

Case Manager:  David Kress, Principal Planner 

Community 

and Economic 

Development 

 



Certified Survey Map #23-22 

August 10, 2022 

Page 2 

 

Surrounding Zoning and Land Uses:  The surrounding area is under the jurisdiction of the City of 

Appleton (north, south, east, and west).  The uses are generally residential and public/institutional in 

nature. 

 

North:  R-1B Single-Family District.  The adjacent land uses to the north are currently single-family 

residential. 

 

South:  P-I Public Institutional District.  The adjacent land use to the south is currently a public park 

(Lions Park). 

 

East:  R-1B Single-Family District and R-2 Two-Family District.  The adjacent land uses to the east are 

currently a mix of single-family residential and duplexes. 

 

West:  R-1B Single-Family District and P-I Public Institutional District.  The adjacent land uses to the 

west are currently a governmental facility (Fire Station 2) and a public park (Lions Park). 

 

Appleton Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030:  Community & Economic Development staff has reviewed 

this proposal and determined it is compatible with the One and Two-Family Residential designation 

shown on the City’s Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 Future Land Use Map. 

 

Technical Review Group (TRG) Report:  This item appeared on the July 19, 2022 TRG agenda.  

Comments were received from participating departments and captured in the stipulations found below. 

 

RECOMMENDATION________________________________________________________  _ 

Based on the above, staff recommends that Certified Survey Map #23-22, as shown on the attached map, 

BE APPROVED subject to the following conditions: 

 

1. On sheet 2, a property owner last name is spelled incorrectly.  “Payton” should be Paton.  Revise 

as necessary. 

 

2. On sheet 1, some existing zoning labels are incorrect.  All properties labeled as R-1A are actually 

zoned R-1B.  Revise as necessary. 

 

3. At the top of sheets 2 and 3 and under the Surveyor’s Certificate, there is a typo in “… and 

governmnt lot 1 …”  Revise to spell ‘government’ correctly. 

 

4. Under the Surveyor’s Certificate, there is a typo in “… line of Mathias St.; thence ...”  Revise to 

spell ‘Matthias’ correctly. 

 

5. Under the Surveyor’s Certificate, a parenthesis is missing in “… 96.55 feet (recorded as south 57 

degrees 38 minutes east 96.63 feet, along the ...”  Revise to clarify the recorded as information. 

 

6. Under the Owner’s Certificate, a property owner first name is spelled incorrectly.  “Bejamin” 

should be Benjamin.  Revise as necessary. 

 



Certified Survey Map #23-22 

August 10, 2022 

Page 3 

 

7. Outstanding water account for 1730 S. Matthias Street will need to be paid in full for Finance 

Department approval. 

 

8. Provide offset distances to the exterior boundary for the existing structures shown on the CSM. 

 

9. This CSM crosses the exterior boundary of a Plat, revise the CSM to meet the minimum 

requirements of §236.34(1)(dm) of the Wisconsin Statutes. 

 

10. Provide the diameter of found 2” iron pipe monuments (i.d. or o.d.). 

 

11. The Drainage Plan requirement for this CSM is waived. 

 

12. Each of the parcels is under different ownership, so that will need to be addressed before the 

Assessor’s Office can delete parcel #31-4-5269-00.  Deed documents will need to be recorded in 

the Outagamie County Register of Deeds Office for the transfer of property from parcel #31-4-

5269-00 (Steven Parker) to parcels #31-4-4699-00 (Benjamin & Laura Paton) and #31-4-5268-00 

(Carrie Mader). 



4-4815

4-4790

4-4816
4-4698

4-5267

4-5266
4-5

265
4-5

264

4-5263

4-5
261

4-5882

4-4789

4-4
699

4-5886-1

4-5
22

7

4-5
22

6

4-5
22

5

4-5
22

4

4-5883

4-4697 4-5222

4-4812

4-5229

4-5433

4-5434

4-5228

4-4791

4-4792

4-4793

4-4813

4-4814

4-4695

4-4694 4-5219

4-5220

4-52214-4696

4-5231

4-5230

4-4788

4-5858-1

4-5262

4-5223

4-5887

4-5880

4-5881

4-5857

4-5857-1

4-5
269

4-5
268

E JOHN ST

S M
AT

TH
IA

S S
T

E RAIL R
D

S FIDELIS
 ST

S T
HE

OD
OR

E 
ST

WITTMANN CT

E THEODORE LA

P-I

R-1B

R-2

R-1A

R-1A

C-2

E CALUMET ST
S M

AT
TH

IA
S S

TE JOHN ST

HWY 4
41

S K
EN

SIN
GT

ON
 D

R

S LAKE PARK RD

S TELULAH AV

E JOHN ST

E JOHN ST

S K
EN

SIN
GT

ON
 D

R

Zoning Map
East John Street and South Matthias Street

Certified Survey Map #23-22
Crosses Plat Boundary

Subject Area

Subject Area

City Plan Commission
8-10-2022 ±0 150 30075 Feet



1

13

16
09

16
15

16
23

17
01

17
15 17
16

17
08

16
24

16
16

16
08

16
09

16
17

16
23

17
05

16
24

16
16

16
08

16
08

16
16

16
09

16
21

171
0

170
0

16
24

17
26

17
15 2713-152703-05

2710-12

19
20

2704-06

173
0172

7

3

2700-02

2620

2616-18
2610-12

261
0-1

2

2616

180
1

18
25

2701

2700

2730

2810

2621
2701

5

7

2621

4-4815

4-4790

4-4816
4-4698

4-5267

4-5266
4-5

265
4-5

264

4-5263

4-5
261

4-5882

4-4789

4-4
699

4-5886-1

4-5
22

7

4-5
22

6

4-5
22

5

4-5
22

4

4-5883

4-4697 4-5222

4-4811

4-4812

4-5229

4-5433

4-5434

4-5435

4-5228

4-4791

4-4792

4-4793

4-4813

4-4814

4-4695

4-4694

4-4693 4-5218

4-5219

4-5220

4-52214-4696

4-5232

4-5231

4-5230

4-4788

4-5858-1

4-5262

4-5223

4-5887

4-5880

4-5880-1

4-5881

4-5857

4-5857-1

4-5
269

4-5
268

E JOHN ST

S M
AT

TH
IA

S S
T

E RAIL R
D

S F
ID

EL
IS 

ST

S T
HE

OD
OR

E 
ST

WITTMANN CT

E THEODORE LA

Aerial Map
East John Street and South Matthias Street

Certified Survey Map #23-22
Crosses Plat Boundary

Subject Area

Subject Area

City Plan Commission
8-10-2022 ±0 150 30075 Feet



ALL OF LOTS 15 AND 16, BLOCK 2, LANG PLAT
AND ALL OF LOTS 9 AND 10 AND PART OF LOT 8
OF APPLE ORCHARD PLAT, BEING LOCATED IN
GOVERNMENT LOT 8 IN SECTION 29 AND
GOVERNMENT LOT 1, SECTION 30, TOWNSHIP 21
NORTH, RANGE 18 EAST, CIT Y OF APPLETON,
OUTAGAMIE COUNTY, WISCONSIN.

C:\Carlson Projects\4764\4764.dwg, 7/7/2022 3:07:08 PM, DWG To PDF.pc3

kressdm
Text Box
RECEIVEDJUL  7  2022CITY OF APPLETONCOMM/ECON DEV



CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. __________________________ 
ALL OF LOTS 15 AND 16, BLOCK 2, LANG PLAT AND ALL OF LOTS 9, 10, AND PART OF LOT 8, APPLE ORCHARD PLAT, BEING 
LOCATED IN GOVERNMENT LOT 8, SECTION 29 AND GOVERNMNT LOT 1 IN SECTION 30, TOWNSHIP 21 NORTH, RANGE 18 
EAST, CITY OF APPLETON, OUTAGAMIE COUNTY, WISCONSIN. 
 
SURVEYOR’S CERTIFICATE: 
I, MICHAEL J. FRANK, PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR, DO HEREBY CERTIFY: 
THAT I HAVE SURVEYED, DIVIDED AND, MAPPED, UNDER THE DIRECTION OF THE OWNERS OF SAID LAND, ALL OF LOTS 
15 AND 16, BLOCK 2, LANG PLAT AND ALL OF LOTS 9, 10, AND PART OF LOT 8, APPLE ORCHARD PLAT, BEING LOCATED IN 
GOVERNMENT LOT 8, SECTION 29 AND GOVERNMNT LOT 1 IN SECTION 30, TOWNSHIP 21 NORTH, RANGE 18 EAST, CITY 
OF APPLETON, OUTAGAMIE COUNTY, WISCONSIN AND BEING DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS.  
 
 
BEGINNING AT THE MOST WESTERLY CORNER OF LOT 16, BLOCK 2, LANG PLAT; THENCE NORTH 44 
DEGREES 42 MINUTES 44 SECONDS EAST 68.53 FEET (RECORDED AS NORTH 42 DEGREES 48 MINUTES EAST 
69.29 FEET), ALONG THE SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF MATHIAS ST.; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY, 
ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE,  33.41 FEET,  ALONG THE ARC OF A CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS 
OF 183.48 FEET AND A CHORD THAT BEARS NORTH 39 DEGREES 29 MINUTES 45 SECONDS EAST (RECORDED 
AS NORTH 37 DEGREES 35 MINUTES EAST) 33.36 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 56 DEGREES 19 MINUTES 42 SECOND 
EAST 96.55 FEET (RECORDED AS SOUTH 57 DEGREES 38 MINUTES EAST  96.63 FEET, ALONG THE 
NORTHEASTERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 16; THENCE SOUTH 45 DEGREES 23 MINUTES 56 SECONDS EAST 273.77 
FEET (RECORDED AS SOUTH 47 DEGREES 12 MINUTES EAST 273.64 FEET), ALONG THE NORTHEASTERLY 
LINE OF SAID LOT 15, LANG PLAT AND ALONG THE NORTHEASTERLY LINE OF LOTS 10, 9 AND 8, APPLE 
ORCHARD PLAT; THENCE SOUTH 52 DEGREES 43 MINUTES 22 SECONDS WEST 121.32 FEET( RECORDED AS 
SOUTH 51 DEGREES 01 MINUTE WEST 121.33 FEET), ALONG THE NORTHWESTERLY LINE OF LANDS 
DESCRIBED IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 1855586; THENCE NORTH 45 DEGREES 23 MINUTES 37 SECONDS WEST 
348.60 FEET (RECORDED AS NORTH 47 DEGREES 12 MINUTES WEST 348.31 FEET), ALONG THE NORTH 
EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF JOHN ST. TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTAING 42,099 SQUARE FEET 
(0.966 ACRES) OF LAND, MORE OR LESS AND SUBJECT TO ALL EASEMENT AND RESTRICTIONS OF RECORD.                                            
 
THAT THIS MAP IS A CORRECT REPRESENTATION OF THE EXTERIOR BOUNDARY LINES OF THE LAND SURVEYED AND 
THE DIVISION OF THAT LAND. 
 
THAT I HAVE FULLY COMPLIED WITH THE PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER 236.34 OF THE WISCONSIN STATUES AND THE 
SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS OF CITY OF APPLETON IN SURVEYING, DIVIDING, AND MAPPING THE SAME. 
 
DATED THIS ________________ DAY OF _____________________, 2022 
 
_______________________________________________________ 
MICHAEL J. FRANK  
WISCONSIN PROFESSONAL LAND SURVEYOR S-2123                                                                                                        
 
CITY OF APPLETON APPROVAL: 
APPROVED BY THE CITY OF APPLETON, ON THIS ____________ DAY OF __________________, 2022 
 
_______________________________________________             ______________________________________ 
JACOB A. WOODFORD, MAYOR                            DATE                KAMI LYNCH, CITY CLERK                   DATE 
 
TREASURER’S CERTIFICATE: 
 
WE HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THERE ARE NO UNPAID TAXES OR SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS ON ANY OF THE LANDS INCLUDED 
IN THIS CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP. 
 
  __________________________________________                      _____________________________________ 
COUNTY TREASURER                                    DATE                            CITY TREASURER                      DATE                       
 
THIS CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP IS CONTAINED WHOLLY WITHIN THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED IN THE FOLLOWING 
RECORDED DOCUMENT NUMBERS 2079307, 2103453, AND 2247013. 
 
THIS CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP IS ALL OF TAX PARCEL NUMBER 31-4-4699-00, 31-4-5268-00, AND 31-4-5269-00, THE 
PROPERTY OWNER OF RECORD ARE BENJAMIN N. PAYTON, LAURA PATON, STEVEN T. PARKER, AND CARRIE MADER. 
 
. 
 
    
                   
                                                                                                                                                                        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                                                                                                                                           L-22-4764                                                                                                              
                                                                                                                                                                          SHEET 2 OF 3 

                                                                                                                                                       
   
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. __________________________ 
ALL OF LOTS 15 AND 16, BLOCK 2, LANG PLAT AND ALL OF LOTS 9, 10, AND PART OF LOT 8, APPLE ORCHARD PLAT, BEING 
LOCATED IN GOVERNMENT LOT 8, SECTION 29 AND GOVERNMNT LOT 1 IN SECTION 30, TOWNSHIP 21 NORTH, RANGE 18 
EAST, CITY OF APPLETON, OUTAGAMIE COUNTY, WISCONSIN. 
 
 
 
OWNER’S CERTIFICATE: 
 
AS OWNERS, WE DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT WE CAUSED THE LANDS ON THIS CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP TO BE 
SURVEYED, DIVIDED, AND MAPPED AS REPRESENTED ON THIS MAP. WE ALSO CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT IS REQUIRED BY 
s.236.10 OR 236.12 TO BE SUBMITTED TO THE FOLLOWING FOR APPROVAL OR OBJECTION: CITY OF APPLETON.  
                                                                                                           
 ________________________________________    ______________________________________________                       
 BEJAMIN N. PATON                                                             LAURA PATON                                              
                                                                                                
 
                                                                                                       
STATE OF WISCONSIN)                                                                                  
                                         ss.                                                                                                      
____________COUNTY) 
 
PERSONALLY CAME BEFORE ME THIS _________DAY OF ______________________, 2022, THE ABOVE NAMED, BENJAMIN N. 
PATON AND LAURA PATON, TO ME KNOWN TO BE THE PERSONS WHO EXECUTED THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT AND 
ACKNOWLEDGE THE SAME. 
 
________________________________________ 
 
NOTARY PUBLIC, ____________ CO., WISCONSIN                                                                                               
 
                                                                                                                                                                                    
_____________________________                 
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 
 
 
     OWNER’S CERTIFICATE: 
 
AS OWNERS, WE DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT WE CAUSED THE LANDS ON THIS CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP TO BE 
SURVEYED, DIVIDED, AND MAPPED AS REPRESENTED ON THIS MAP. WE ALSO CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT IS REQUIRED BY 
s.236.10 OR 236.12 TO BE SUBMITTED TO THE FOLLOWING FOR APPROVAL OR OBJECTION: CITY OF APPLETON.  
                                                                                                           
 ________________________________________          ______________________________________________                       
STEVEN T. PARKER                                                           CARRIE MADER                                              
                                                                                                
 
                                                                                                       
STATE OF WISCONSIN)                                                                                  
                                         ss.                                                                                                      
____________COUNTY) 
 
PERSONALLY CAME BEFORE ME THIS _________DAY OF ______________________, 2022, THE ABOVE NAMED, STEVEN T. 
PARKER  AND CARRIE MADER, TO ME KNOWN TO BE THE PERSONS WHO EXECUTED THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT AND 
ACKNOWLEDGE THE SAME. 
 
________________________________________ 
 
NOTARY PUBLIC, ____________ CO., WISCONSIN                                                                                               
 
                                                                                                                                                                                    
_____________________________                 
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 

                                                 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                                                                                                             L-22-4764  
                                                                                                                                                            SHEET 3 OF 3 

                                                                                                                                                       
  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
TO:  City Plan Commission 

 

FROM:  Community and Economic Development Staff 

 

DATE:  August 10, 2022 

 

RE: Community and Economic Development Department Land Use Application Fee 

Schedule  

     

 

BACKGROUND_______________________________________________________________  

 

Municipalities charge planning services fees to applicants as a way of recouping some of the costs 

associated with reviewing and processing a variety of land use applications/permits.  These fees generally 

cover only a portion of the actual cost of processing items.  Staff time includes such things as researching, 

reviewing the proposal with City standards, correspondence, mailings, preparation of public hearing 

notices, preparation of reports, appearances at public meetings, etc.   

 

The last review of the Community and Economic Development Department land use application fees was 

done in 2012, and the fees were revised on May 16, 2012 by the Common Council. 

 

The Mayor reviewed and is supportive of the attached proposed land use application fees.  

 

ANALYSIS___________________________________________________________________ 

 

Staff analyzed the current land use application fee structure in several communities in the Fox Valley area 

and compared those fees with Appleton’s land use application fees.  The goal of this comparison was to 

see how Appleton’s land use application fees correlate with other municipalities’ fees and to determine if 

any adjustments should be made to recoup more of the processing costs the City incurs while keeping our 

rates in line with other municipalities.  An overview of each municipality’s fee structure is attached as 

Exhibit A.  

 

RECOMMENDATION________________________________________________________ 

 

Staff recommends the attached proposed land use application fees and resolution, BE APPROVED to 

become effective January 1, 2023. 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 
“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 



Type of Application City of Menasha Village of Fox Crossing City of Neenah City of Oshkosh Village of Harrison Town of Grand Chute City of Appleton   Appleton Proposed 2023 Fees

Site Plan Review Developed Area* Ratio Fee 

Schedule:

< .21 $5/10,000 sq. ft. of site 

area

.21 - .40 $10/10,000 sq. ft. of 

site area

.41 - .60 $15/10,000 sq. ft. of 

site area

.61 - .80 $20/10,000 sq. ft. of 

site area

> .80 $25/10,000 sq. ft. of site 

area $150 min. - $650 max.

$150 + $3/1,000 sf of 

disturbed area over 

10,000 sf 

$150 (minor)  

$300 (major)  

Cell Tower: $3,000

<10,000 sf $425

10,000 - 50,000 sf $625

50,001-100,000 sf $775

100,001> $1,000 

Cell Tower: $3,000

$300 Commercial and 

$500 Industrial

$500 $200 10,000+ sf building 

or 20+ dwelling unit bldg

$150 Other

1. Developments subject to Site Plan 

Review: $300 

2. Developments subject to Minor 

Site Plan Review: $150 

3. New or Class 1 Cell Tower: $300

Site Plan Resubmittal No Charge $125 No Charge No Charge No Charge No Charge No Charge No Charge

Site Plan Amendment $100 

$125 + $3/1,000 sf over 

10,000 sf building No Charge No Charge No Charge $300 No Charge No Charge

Minor Site Plan 

(Construction, 

reconstruction, rehabilitation 

& expansion of parking lots & 

loading areas, less than 20 

spaces) $75 See Site Plan Review fee See Site Plan Review fee See Site Plan Review fee See Site Plan Review fee See Site Plan Review fee

$100 for parking lot 

under 10,000 sf 

$150 for parking lot 

greater than 10,000 sf

See Site Plan Review and Minor Site 

Plan Review

Zoning Letters
$30 Residential and 

$100 Commercial N/A $25 zoning verification $30 

$15 or 

$25 Rush (24 hours) $45 $25 $50

Special Use Permit $350 $500 $400 $300 plus $50 publication $150 $400 $450

$450, except New or Class 1 Cell 

Tower: $2,700

Special Use Permit 

Amendment No Charge No Charge No Charge No Charge No Charge $300 No Charge $100

Temporary Use Permit $225  No Charge N/A

$75 (1-30 days)

$125 (31-60 days)

$150 (61-90 days) $100 N/A $75

Initial New Location: $150  

Renewal Same Location: $75

Rezoning $350 $500 $400 $300 plus $50 publication $300 $500 $450 $450

P.D.D. Review See Rezoning fee $500 $500 $400 plus $50 publication $400 $500 See Rezoning fee See Rezoning fee

Comp Plan Amendment $250 $500 $400 $700 plus $50 publication No Charge No Charge No Charge $200

CSM $150 + $25/lot $150 +$10/lot $125 ETJ

1 lot $150

2 lot $250

3 Lot $350

4 Lot $450 $75

$100 + $10/lot w/out ROW 

Dedication

$150 + $10/lot w/ROW 

Dedication $100 $150

Preliminary Plat $125 $200 +$35/lot $150 +$35/lot $50 + $1/lot $200 + $5/lot $250 + $20/lot $100 + $25/lot $100 + $25/lot
Reapplication Preliminary  

Plat No Charge No Charge No Charge No Charge No Charge No Charge $20 $50

Final Plat $250 + $10/lot $200 $100 + $10/lot $100 + $25/lot $100 + $5/lot $150 + $10/lot $75 $150

Home Occupation No Charge No Charge $50 $25 $150 $25 No Charge No Charge

Annexations No Charge No Charge $400 $100 plus $50 publication No Charge N/A No Charge No Charge

Historic Designations No Charge N/A No Charge No Charge N/A N/A No Charge No Charge

Historic C O A No Charge N/A No Charge No Charge N/A N/A No Charge No Charge

Zoning Amendment (Text) No Charge $500 No Charge $200 plus $50 publication $300 No Charge No Charge No Charge

Administrative Appeal No Charge $500 No Charge $125 No Charge $500 No Charge No Charge

Official Street Map Amend No Charge No Charge $400 No Charge No Charge $500 No Charge No Charge

Admin Waiver Letter N/A N/A $25 $75 No Charge No Charge No Charge No Charge

Street Vacations No Charge No Charge No Charge $200 plus $50 publication No Charge $500 No Charge $200 (citizen request or initiated)

Variance to Subdivision 

Regulations No Charge No Charge No Charge $100 No Charge No Charge No Charge No Charge

Public Art No Charge No Charge No Charge No Charge No Charge No Charge No Charge No Charge

Date:  8-10-22

Land Use Application Fee Comparison and Proposed Updates: EXHIBIT A



1 | P a g e  

 

Resolution No. 2022-06 

 

 

CITY OF APPLETON 

RESOLUTION TO UPDATE LAND USE APPLICATIONS FEE SCHEDULE 

COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

 

 

WHEREAS, Fees for land use applications have not been reviewed or increased since 2012; and 

 

WHEREAS, City staff has prepared the attached land use application fee comparison of other Fox Valley 

area communities and recommends changes to the land use application fee schedule to align with other 

Fox Valley area communities as shown in Exhibit A; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Common Council has previously adopted the land use application fee schedule on May 

16, 2012; and 

 

WHEREAS, as part of the 2023 City of Appleton Executive Budget and Service Plan adoption, City staff 

recommends changes to the land use application fee schedule for the general and administrative services 

performed by the Community and Economic Development Department staff when processing land use 

applications; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council to approve and adopt the updated 

land use application fees as shown in attached Exhibit A.  

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City of Appleton Common Council that said fees shall become 

effective on January 1, 2023. 

 

The above and foregoing resolution was duly adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the 

City of Appleton on this _____ day of __________________, 2022, by a vote of _____ in favor and 

_____ opposed. 

 

 

Adopted this _____ day of __________________, 2022. 

 

 

      

_____________________________________ 

       Jacob A. Woodford, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Kami Lynch, City Clerk 



Type of Application City of Menasha Village of Fox Crossing City of Neenah City of Oshkosh Village of Harrison Town of Grand Chute City of Appleton   Appleton Proposed 2023 Fees

Site Plan Review Developed Area* Ratio Fee 

Schedule:

< .21 $5/10,000 sq. ft. of site 

area

.21 - .40 $10/10,000 sq. ft. of 

site area

.41 - .60 $15/10,000 sq. ft. of 

site area

.61 - .80 $20/10,000 sq. ft. of 

site area

> .80 $25/10,000 sq. ft. of site 

area $150 min. - $650 max.

$150 + $3/1,000 sf of 

disturbed area over 

10,000 sf 

$150 (minor)  

$300 (major)  

Cell Tower: $3,000

<10,000 sf $425

10,000 - 50,000 sf $625

50,001-100,000 sf $775

100,001> $1,000 

Cell Tower: $3,000

$300 Commercial and 

$500 Industrial

$500 $200 10,000+ sf building 

or 20+ dwelling unit bldg

$150 Other

1. Developments subject to Site Plan 

Review: $300 

2. Developments subject to Minor 

Site Plan Review: $150 

3. New or Class 1 Cell Tower: $300

Site Plan Resubmittal No Charge $125 No Charge No Charge No Charge No Charge No Charge No Charge

Site Plan Amendment $100 

$125 + $3/1,000 sf over 

10,000 sf building No Charge No Charge No Charge $300 No Charge No Charge

Minor Site Plan 

(Construction, 

reconstruction, rehabilitation 

& expansion of parking lots & 

loading areas, less than 20 

spaces) $75 See Site Plan Review fee See Site Plan Review fee See Site Plan Review fee See Site Plan Review fee See Site Plan Review fee

$100 for parking lot 

under 10,000 sf 

$150 for parking lot 

greater than 10,000 sf

See Site Plan Review and Minor Site 

Plan Review

Zoning Letters
$30 Residential and 

$100 Commercial N/A $25 zoning verification $30 

$15 or 

$25 Rush (24 hours) $45 $25 $50

Special Use Permit $350 $500 $400 $300 plus $50 publication $150 $400 $450

$450, except New or Class 1 Cell 

Tower: $2,700

Special Use Permit 

Amendment No Charge No Charge No Charge No Charge No Charge $300 No Charge $100

Temporary Use Permit $225  No Charge N/A

$75 (1-30 days)

$125 (31-60 days)

$150 (61-90 days) $100 N/A $75

Initial New Location: $150  

Renewal Same Location: $75

Rezoning $350 $500 $400 $300 plus $50 publication $300 $500 $450 $450

P.D.D. Review See Rezoning fee $500 $500 $400 plus $50 publication $400 $500 See Rezoning fee See Rezoning fee

Comp Plan Amendment $250 $500 $400 $700 plus $50 publication No Charge No Charge No Charge $200

CSM $150 + $25/lot $150 +$10/lot $125 ETJ

1 lot $150

2 lot $250

3 Lot $350

4 Lot $450 $75

$100 + $10/lot w/out ROW 

Dedication

$150 + $10/lot w/ROW 

Dedication $100 $150

Preliminary Plat $125 $200 +$35/lot $150 +$35/lot $50 + $1/lot $200 + $5/lot $250 + $20/lot $100 + $25/lot $100 + $25/lot
Reapplication Preliminary  

Plat No Charge No Charge No Charge No Charge No Charge No Charge $20 $50

Final Plat $250 + $10/lot $200 $100 + $10/lot $100 + $25/lot $100 + $5/lot $150 + $10/lot $75 $150

Home Occupation No Charge No Charge $50 $25 $150 $25 No Charge No Charge

Annexations No Charge No Charge $400 $100 plus $50 publication No Charge N/A No Charge No Charge

Historic Designations No Charge N/A No Charge No Charge N/A N/A No Charge No Charge

Historic C O A No Charge N/A No Charge No Charge N/A N/A No Charge No Charge

Zoning Amendment (Text) No Charge $500 No Charge $200 plus $50 publication $300 No Charge No Charge No Charge

Administrative Appeal No Charge $500 No Charge $125 No Charge $500 No Charge No Charge

Official Street Map Amend No Charge No Charge $400 No Charge No Charge $500 No Charge No Charge

Admin Waiver Letter N/A N/A $25 $75 No Charge No Charge No Charge No Charge

Street Vacations No Charge No Charge No Charge $200 plus $50 publication No Charge $500 No Charge $200 (citizen request or initiated)

Variance to Subdivision 

Regulations No Charge No Charge No Charge $100 No Charge No Charge No Charge No Charge

Public Art No Charge No Charge No Charge No Charge No Charge No Charge No Charge No Charge

Date:  8-10-22

Land Use Application Fee Comparison and Proposed Updates: EXHIBIT A



 

 
 

“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 

PARKS, RECREATION & FACILITIES 

MANAGEMENT 

Dean R. Gazza, Director 

1819 East Witzke Boulevard 

Appleton, Wisconsin 54911-8401 

(920) 832-5572  FAX (920) 993-3103 

Email - dean.gazza@appleton.org 

TO:  Parks and Recreation Committee 

 

FROM: Dean R. Gazza 

 

DATE:  August 8, 2022 

 

RE: Action:  Award the 2022 Lutz Park Shoreline Development and Trail Design 

Project contract to AECOM in the amount of $50,000.  

 

 

The 2022 Capital Improvement Plan includes $50,000 for the Lutz Park Shoreline and Trail 

Design. The completed design will address current shoreline erosion, relocate trail and lights, and 

make ADA improvements to existing river amenities.   

 

The proposals were received as follows: 

 

AECOM $50,000 

MSA $55,500 

  

The Parks, Recreation, and Facilities Management Department recommends awarding the 

contract to AECOM in the amount of $50,000.  

 

Please contact me at 832-5572 or at dean.gazza@appleton.org with any questions. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:dean.gazza@appleton.org
mailto:dean.gazza@appleton.org


 

City of Appleton – Resolution #9-R-22 
Sustainability Resolution 

 

Submitted on: August 3, 2022 
Submitted by: Denise Fenton, District 6; Kristin Alfheim, District 11 
Referred To: Parks & Recreation Committee 

SUMMARY:  This resolution creates the City of Appleton Advisory Panel on Sustainability & Climate 
Resilience to act in an advisory capacity to the Mayor, City Department Directors, and the Common 
Council providing feedback and advice on a range of matters related to sustainability, climate action, 
and resiliency as those matters relate to the City’s Comprehensive Plan, Sustainability Plan and other 
related plans. 

Sustainability Resolution 

 

Whereas, the City of Appleton’s mission statement is “The City of Appleton is dedicated to meeting the 
needs of our community and enhancing the quality of life”; and 

Whereas, the City of Appleton is committed to being a leader in sustainability, climate action, and 
resiliency; and 

Whereas, the City of Appleton also has a Sustainability Master Plan which identifies many initiatives to 
work towards sustainability and resiliency through evaluation of the following: conservation, energy 
efficiency opportunities, restorative redevelopment, increased facilities efficiencies, pollution reduction, 
green building and buying, reductions in greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions, restore urban waterways, 
promote environmental stewardship, improve transportation infrastructure and improve and expand 
green infrastructure; and 

Whereas, the City of Appleton’s past efforts and plans demonstrate its commitment to sustainability.  
All plans, including, but not limited to the Comprehensive Plan and the Sustainability Plan are used to 
meet the needs of the community and enhance the quality of life in Appleton and support efforts 
identified in the annual budgets; and 

Whereas, the City of Appleton became one of the first five Wisconsin communities to be part of the 
Green Tier Legacy Communities; and 

Whereas, the City of Appleton created the Taskforce on Resiliency, Climate Mitigation and Adaptation in 
January 2020 to convene area leaders for the purpose of making practical recommendations to address 
climate change and the effects of climate change on our community; and 



Whereas, the Taskforce made the creation of a permanent body to advise city leaders on sustainability 
and climate resilience a top priority in the Climate Action Plan Proposal presented in December 2021. 

Therefore, be it resolved, the City of Appleton will create the City of Appleton Advisory Panel on 
Sustainability & Climate Resilience. 

Be it further resolved, the City of Appleton Advisory Panel on Sustainability & Climate Resilience will act 
as an advisory group to the Mayor, City Department Directors, and the Common Council providing 
feedback and advice on a range of matters related to sustainability, climate action and resiliency. 

Be it further resolved, the Panel will convene quarterly and may be convened more frequently at the 
request of the Mayor, City Department Directors, and/or the Common Council to review and provide 
advisory input on active proposals as they are being advanced and implemented by the City through 
legislation, executive orders, policy changes, and practices. The following are examples of the types of 
issues on which the Panel may be called upon to provide feedback and advisory input:  

• receiving and monitoring outcome measures for sustainability programs and initiatives 
• areas for improvement of the City's sustainability and climate initiatives, programs, and 

performance 
• the review of plans, ordinances, actions, and policies as relevant 
• goal setting and budgeting processes as relevant 
• ways to promote and communicate the principles of sustainability and climate resilience broadly 

among stakeholders 
• affordable strategies associated with climate change, resource use, conservation, renewable 

energy, and energy efficiency, considering ecological, economic, and social equities 
• the adoption, prioritization, and implementation of initiatives, actions, policies, and public 

outreach and education programs to support and promote aspects of sustainability and climate 
resilience 

• financial initiatives and resources to offset costs such as grants and cost savings 
 

Be it further resolved, the City’s Project and Resiliency Manager, housed in the City’s Facilities and 
Construction Management Department, will serve as the liaison to the Panel, and any requests to 
engage the Panel will be made through the Project and Resilience Manager.  

Be it further resolved, the Advisory Panel will be composed of seven individuals, Appleton residents 
who have experience or expertise, professional or lived, in the following or other related subject 
matters: energy efficiency, renewable energy, energy efficient building, environmental justice, equity in 
environmental stewardship and sustainability, alternative transportation and mobility, energy policy, 
environmental policy, forestry, water resources, ecology, other life sciences, carbon emission reduction, 
environmental law, education, architecture, engineering, science, environmental design, sustainable 
construction, and other related areas. Panel members will draw on their experience and knowledge of 
best practices to advise the City regarding the types of issued described above.  



Be it further resolved, the Advisory Panel members will be appointed by the Mayor, subject to approval 
by the City Council. Members will serve without compensation for terms of two years from the date of 
appointment1, and may be appointed to succeeding terms. Vacancies occurring prior to the expiration of 
the term of a member shall be filled for the unexpired portion of the term by appointment of the Mayor, 
subject to approval by the City Council. One member of the Advisory Panel will be named chairperson by 
the Mayor to serve for a term of one year and thereafter until a successor is appointed. 

Be it further resolved, Advisory Panel members serve in an advisory role only and will not have the 
authority to speak for the City or otherwise to commit the City to any course of action or inaction. 

Be it further resolved, Panel members will meet as called upon and in accordance with city government 
meeting requirements.  

 
1 Initial appointments will stagger terms, with three of the seven members appointed for a one-year term, with all subsequent 
appointments/reappointments being the standard two-year term. 



Christopher R. Behrens 
City Attorney 

Amanda K. Abshire 
Deputy City Attorney 

Darrin M. Glad 
Assistant City Attorney 

Nicholas J. Vande Castle 
Assistant City Attorney 

 

 

 

LEGAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
Office of the City Attorney 

100 North Appleton Street 
Appleton, WI  54911 

Phone: 920/832-6423 
Fax: 920/832-5962 

 
 
 
TO:  Alderperson Brad Firkus, Chair 

Members of the Finance Committee    
 
FROM: Christopher R. Behrens, City Attorney 
 
DATE: August 1, 2022  
 
RE:  Sanitary Sewer Easement and Agreement  
 
 

Earlier this year an intergovernmental agreement was entered for the installation of a sanitary sewer 
extending from the existing City sewer in Zuelke Drive, eastward beneath Wisconsin 441 and 
eventually extending to serve the new County northwest landfill.  The County is the lead agency on 
that project and I have been working with Corporation Counsel on terms of a permanent sanitary 
sewer easement through a portion of property owned by the Chris J. Hartwig Revocable Trust.   
 
While most of the easement terms are standard, one of the points negotiated with the Trust was an 
agreement that neither the City nor the County would take the land by eminent domain or 
condemnation for a period of 25 years from the date of this agreement.  Earlier this year, and prior 
to agreeing to this term in concept, I spoke with former Public Works Director Vandehey about this 
specific term and any concerns. In short, she advised that there were no concerns with this time 
period.  It was explained that the long-term stormwater plan filed with the DNR shows a potential 
future stormwater pond on the property but would not require construction prior to 2049 (in other 
words after this condition has expired). Based on this timing, City staff is comfortable with the 
terms and conditions in the easement.  These terms have been approved by the County Board as 
well as representatives of the Trust. 
 
Accordingly, I respectfully recommend APPROVAL of the Permanent Sanitary Sewer Easement 
and Temporary Construction Easement Agreement with the Chris J. Hartwig Revocable Trust as 
owner of the subject property. 
 
CRB:jlg 
CL A22‐0115 

“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 





















 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                     “…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 

Department of Utilities  
Wastewater Treatment Plant 

2006 E Newberry Street 
Appleton, WI  54915-3128 

920-832-5945 tel. 
920-832-5949 fax  

 

 

To: Chairperson Vered Meltzer and Members of the Utilities Committee 
 

From: Chris Stempa, Utilities Deputy Director 
 

CC: Chris Shaw, Utilities Director 

Kelli Rindt, Enterprise Fund Accounting Manager 
 

Date: July 25, 2022   
 

Re: Action Item: Change Orders #3 to Sabel Mechanical contract as part of the 

2021 Secondary Clarifier Drive Removal, Rebuild, and Reinstallation Project 

totaling $27,174 resulting in a decrease in contingency from $88,421 to $61,227 
 
 

 

 

On June 2, 2021 Common Council approved contract with Sabel Mechanical for the 

Secondary Clarifier Drive Removal, Rebuild, and Reinstallation Project. The drives associated 

with Secondary Clarifiers #3 and #6 were successfully rebuilt, reinstalled, and commissioned 

in the fall of 2021.  Work resumed again in June 2022 with Final Clarifiers #1 and #2.  The 

tasks within Change Orders #3 represents work that will be added to the original contract 

scope of work (per Section IV P of the Procurement and Contract Management Policy) or 

deleted from, which alters the original contract amount and/or completion date.  This work 

was not known previously to the original quotation process or contact development.  The tasks 

associated with this change order are summarized below. 

 

CO# Cost Date Description 

CO#3 $27,174  7/13/2022 Clarifier #2: Replace two A-frames, four bottom brackets, 

and one scum blade. Install ring on top of drum due to 

wear by the rubber seal to get face back to flat surface. 

Shaft from the upper to lower drive was worn from the lip 

seal. Flame sprayed to bring it back to tolerance 

    

If you have any questions regarding the project or the associated change order please contact 

Chris Stempa at 832-2353. 





Lastname Firstname Death Date
Enter 

Service Date
Discharged 

Date Branch Rank War Space ID
Merrill Wilber F. 2/24/1900 02/03/1865 10/02/1865 United States Army Civil War E_35_X_4
Carey James B. 4/17/1900 11/19/1863 10/27/1865 United States Army Civil War F_31_X_2
Walters Walter J. 6/4/1900 United States Army Spanish American War R_4_W_1
Enos Truman 7/28/1900 United States Army Civil War R_14_X_1
Wagg Fred E.G. 8/18/1900 04/28/1898 11/09/1898 United States Army Spanish American War R_15_X_1
Logan Anthony 11/27/1900 01/09/1862 07/14/1865 United States Army Civil War T_26_X_5
Krueger Carl F.  12/13/1900 10/01/1864 06/12/1865 United States Army PVT Civil War M_47_X_53
Brainard A. K. 1/9/1901 08/15/1864 10/17/1864 United States Army Civil War H_22_E_3
Cooley T. F. 1/14/1901 01/04/1864 10/01/1865 United States Army Civil War N_94_W_2
Kimball Nelson W. 4/8/1901 10/21/1864 07/22/1865 United States Army Civil War M_41_E_1
White Edwin R. 5/9/1901 02/12/1864 10/27/1865 United States Army Civil War T_59_X_3
Baker John S. 8/15/1901 08/13/1862 06/08/1865 United States Army Civil War 12_33_X_4
Humphrey John 9/19/1901 United States Army Civil War M_47_X_56
Stegamann William L. 12/23/1901 04/28/1898 11/09/1898 United States Army Spanish American War D_59_X_4
Burmeister Fredrick C. 1/1/1902 12/28/1864 10/19/1865 United States Army Civil War R_7_W_2
Weimar Edmund G.  Ed 4/1/1902 10/14/1861 08/20/1863 United States Army Civil War R_37_X_1
Reese Thomas 4/22/1902 08/21/1862 05/15/1865 United States Army Civil War 1_13_X_1
Gehring Gottlieb 4/26/1902 09/03/1864 06/20/1865 United States Army Civil War G_59_X_8
Aspinall Alfred 7/8/1902 01/03/1862 10/07/1862 United States Army Civil War 9_12_X_7
Hyde Capt. Welcome 11/2/1902 02/28/1862 05/21/1862 United States Army Civil War 2_3_X_2
Kruschke Herman 1/1/1903 N_73_W_1
Wheeler Samuel S. 1/5/1903 09/17/1861 05/25/1864 United States Army Civil War 11_9_S_1
Bixby Charles 1/6/1903 O_62_X_2
Arnold Fredrich 3/9/1903 10/01/1864 06/02/1865 United States Army Civil War 10_24_X_1
Packard Strong C. 6/21/1903 08/27/1864 06/20/1865 United States Army Civil War I_45_X_9
Cavert Charles 1/1/1904 02/20/1864 05/27/1865 United States Army Civil War K_79_X_1
Lawe Ransom 2/17/1904 United States Army Civil War D_36_E_1
Purath Fredrich 4/12/1904 01/31/1865 09/04/1865 United States Army Civil War M_77_N_3
Hanson Jens 5/7/1904 11/27/1863 07/18/1865 United States Army Civil War G_71_X_5
Brockman  Fred 7/21/1904 03/09/1865 06/12/1865 United States Army Civil War N_95_X_2
Lemke Fred 12/12/1905 12/18/1861 01/09/1865 United States Army Civil War N_53_N_1
Cate Alden G. 1/1/1906 12/28/1861 08/09/1865 United States Army Civil War N_70_X_1
Eick Earl C. 1/1/1906 06/16/1898 11/09/1898 United States Army Spanish American War L_40_X_2
Johnston George C. 6/23/1906 United States Army Civil War G_2-4-5_X_10
Clark Norman B. 7/14/1906 12/24/1864 08/22/1865 United States Army Civil War E_65_X_3
Reeve James T. (Theo) 11/3/1906 09/18/1861 06/08/1865 United States Army Civil War C_26_X_2
Randall Rier H. 1/11/1907 07/11/1861 09/27/1861 United States Army Civil War 8_5_X_2
Patten Lyman Beecher 1/18/1907 United States Army Civil War 1_10_X_1
Lohrenz Wm. 3/6/1907 10/01/1864 07/18/1865 United States Army Civil War M_48_X_3
Ryan Sam L. Jr. 3/28/1907 02/18/1862 12/29/1862 United States Army Civil War E_17_X_9



Galpin Harold 4/24/1907 08/15/1862 06/08/1865 United States Army Civil War E_47_X_5
Matschke Fred 9/8/1907 02/24/1865 07/03/1865 United States Army Civil War E_15_X_1
Bedell John W 11/15/1907 01/08/1862 03/17/1863 United States Army Civil War 10_29_W_11
Brady Henry 1/31/1908 08/15/1863 07/03/1865 United States Army Pvt. Civil War M_80_X_20
Kenyon William 1/31/1908 03/23/1865 07/28/1865 United States Army Civil War 16_55_X_1
Edwards Nathaniel M. 7/20/1908 04/17/1861 06/05/1865 United States Army Civil War D_30_X_2
Cole Charles M. 12/9/1908 United States Army Civil War F_34_X_5
Chilson W.H. 4/28/1909 National Guard 2_16_X_3
Scott Ira C. 6/11/1909 10/10/1864 07/19/1865 United States Army Civil War N_35_W_1
Pearson Silas 9/7/1909 08/04/1862 01/01/1863 United States Army Civil War F_53_X_2
Shepherd Sewell 9/26/1909 08/31/1864 06/26/1865 United States Army Civil War R_4_W_3A
Ochsner Friedrich 12/15/1909 03/04/1865 08/29/1865 United States Army Civil War K_59_X_2
Patton Worthington 12/22/1909 06/28/1861 07/15/1864 United States Army Civil War D_6_X_6
Lee Rufus V. 1/1/1910 10/21/1861 07/23/1862 United States Army Civil War H_9_N_2
Weimar Fredrick K. 1/11/1910 12/31/1861 12/04/1863 United States Army Civil War 14_33_E_1
Hopkins Charles W 2/14/1910 08/08/1864 07/17/1865 United States Army Civil War 19_28_E_2
Stillman David B. 3/17/1910 08/30/1864 06/20/1865 United States Army Civil War 10_32_X_2
Artis Horace 6/11/1910 United States Army Civil War 14_34_X_1
Sauberlich Henry 7/25/1910 09/28/1864 07/19/1865 United States Army Civil War N_57_E_2
Wing Ebenezer 8/20/1910 08/27/1864 06/02/1865 United States Army Civil War 14_8_E_1
Nueman Fredrich J. 9/23/1910 08/14/1862 06/13/1865 United States Army Civil War K_111_S_1
Matthes John 10/13/1910 12/20/1864 08/26/1865 United States Army Civil War 14_5_X_2
Decker Elmer Ford 1/1/1911 United States Army Civil War E_29_X_2
Stevens Charles A. 1/1/1911 04/13/1865 04/22/1865 United States Army Civil War E_1_X_8
Randall Levi 2/7/1911 07/16/1861 09/27/1861 United States Army Civil War C_16_X_10
Godfrey James W. 5/31/1911 United States Army Civil War D_1_X_5
Paddock Oscar 7/13/1911 09/02/1864 06/23/1865 United States Army Civil War M_48_X_1
Blackwood Josiah E 8/16/1911 01/23/1863 10/01/1865 United States Army Civil War O_55_X_1
Kanouse Ralph E 8/29/1911 04/28/1898 11/09/1898 United States Army Spanish American War O_43_S_5
Sherriff Robert 1/1/1912 08/28/1864 06/20/1865 United States Army Civil War K_95_X_2
Schmidt  John F. 3/23/1912 09/20/1864 07/02/1865 United States Army Civil War 17_70_W_1
Herrman Nicholas 6/14/1912 10/13/1864 United States Army Civil War R_12_X_4
Fransway Charles 7/24/1912 02/17/1865 02/19/1866 United States Army Civil War M_79_X_23
Joyce Thomas 1/1/1913 03/01/1865 05/26/1865 United States Army Civil War 12_63_X_3
Bullock Alonzo 1/14/1913 08/08/1862 06/23/1865 United States Army Civil War 17_28_N_1
Hoefer Fred William 2/28/1913 01/18/1864 10/27/1865 United States Army Civil War G_54_X_3
Elmore Joseph Miles 6/20/1913 United States Army Civil War 17_27_S_1
Hall Albert A 8/6/1913 05/17/1861 08/21/1861 United States Army Civil War 17_56_S_1
Holmes Wesley 10/18/1913 10/23/1861 06/14/1865 United States Army Civil War 17_55_S_6
Wiegand William 1/21/1914 03/27/1864 07/26/1865 United States Army Spanish American War M_29_S_3
Waedel Fredrich 2/25/1914 08/14/1862 01/10/1865 United States Army Civil War N_65_W_5
Bullock Loring B. 3/25/1914 11/23/1863 05/19/1865 United States Army Civil War L_28_S_2
Brownell Tellinghast 4/20/1914 07/30/1862 05/30/1865 United States Army Civil War M_80_X_21



Sloane Henry C. 1/14/1915 03/18/1865 02/19/1866 United States Army LT. Civil War T_15_X_8
Bomier Godrey  Vet. 4/6/1915 05/27/1864 09/23/1864 United States Army Civil War 14_63_W_1
Jones William H. 8/24/1915 03/08/1864 07/18/1865 United States Army Civil War K_67_X_3
Stewart Issac N. 12/6/1915 09/23/1864 06/26/1865 United States Army Civil War U_36_X_1
Martienssen Adolph 1/1/1916 10_23_E_1
Cleggett William 5/20/1916 United States Army Civil War O_2_X_3
Hilfert Charles H 6/21/1916 05/29/1862 01/31/1863 United States Army Civil War 6_9_X_1
Holmes Ira J. S. 7/22/1916 07/31/1862 01/18/1863 United States Army Civil War 9_12_X_2
Wirth John 7/23/1916 N_53_S_2
Morgan Nathan Evan Co. 10/10/1916 04/28/1898 11/15/1898 United States Army Spanish American War 14_65_X_1
Bushey George P. 1/1/1917 11/12/1863 07/20/1865 United States Army Civil War G_77_N_2
Miller George F. 1/15/1917 1/15/1917 United States Army Civil War O_11_X_11
Ryan David J. 1/30/1917 08/05/1862 03/21/1863 United States Army CPL Civil War E_17_X_3
Olmstead Lamar 3/5/1917 09/07/1861 03/21/1865 United States Army Civil War 1_22_X_1
Dite Ferdinand 4/17/1917 01/18/1864 07/10/1866 United States Army Civil War N_57_W_1
Warner Charles H. 4/22/1917 08/15/1862 06/08/1865 United States Army Civil War 17_56_N_3
Stowe Dennis Gilbert 6/23/1917 08/31/1864 07/06/1865 United States Army Civil War O_56_X_1
Maas Ernest 8/5/1917 03/18/1864 07/01/1865 United States Army Civil War 18_20_S_1
Sheldon George S. 8/14/1917 08/12/1862 01/25/1863 United States Army Civil War 14_30_W_2
Dreyer Joe 11/25/1917 United States Army Civil War 14_11_E_2
Dunn Thomas C. 1/1/1918 United States Army Civil War F_18_N_3
Snider Egbert L. 1/1/1918 United States Army Civil War L_20_S_1
Dort Oscar L.. 1/9/1918 United States Army Civil War 14_72_W_2
Diener Henry 1/24/1918 09/28/1864 06/30/1865 United States Army Civil War O_36_X_6
Bogan Cylus 2/28/1918 1/18/1918 United States Army World War I D_38_X_6
Zuehlke Julius 3/4/1918 09/23/1864 01/03/1864 United States Army Civil War N_74_X_1
Breitung Albert  A. 3/26/1918 10/27/1863 05/11/1865 United States Army Civil War F_36_X_9
**Brown Martin 5/19/1918 01/05/1862 08/28/1865 United States Army Civil War F_43_S_2
Brown William M. 7/15/1918 United States Army World War I P_3_X_2
Norenberg Carl 7/15/1918 8/6/1917 7/15/1918 United States Army World War I P_3_X_1
Pierre Harvey V. 7/15/1918 4/11/1917 7/15/1918 United States Army World War I 26_9_S_1
Schaffelke William G. 7/15/1918 6/22/1916 7/15/1918 United States Army World War I 14_9_X_5
Hageman William 7/17/1918 4/6/1918 7/17/1918 United States Army World War I 26_19_N_1
Johnston Everett Oney 7/29/1918 7/29/1918 United States Army World War I 11_6_S_1
Heiss William 7/30/1918 5/19/1915 7/30/1918 United States Army World War I 11_4_X_1
Spaude Louis 9/3/1918 United States Army Spanish American War 15_28_S_2
Feavel Harvey 10/2/1918 5/25/1918 10/2/1918 United States Army World War I O_79_X_1
Jahnke Herman A 10/11/1918 12/15/1914 10/11/1918 United States Army World War I 9_33_X_6
Neunfeldt Raymond 10/13/1918 9/4/1918 10/13/1918 United States Army World War I 18_10_N_4
Witthuhn Elmer 10/17/1918 9/3/1918 United States Army World War I O_35_X_3
Gillespie William J. 10/22/1918 2/7/1918 10/22/1918 United States Navy World War I 19_2_W_3
Korte Arnold H. 11/8/1918 United States Army World War I 17_24_S_3
Ogilvie Andrew 11/8/1918 7/22/1918 11/8/1918 United States Army World War I 17_87_X_5



Wolff Edwin 11/27/1918 5/25/1918 11/27/1918 United States Army World War I 9_44_X_1
Kluess Raymond 12/1/1918 7/24/1918 United States Army World War I L_33_N_1
Mather Willard G. 12/6/1918 10/2/1918 12/6/1918 United States Army Civil War O_75_X_2
Rippel William 4/13/1919 11/10/1862 01/29/1865 United States Army Civil War 11_31_X_2
Ricker Andrew 4/19/1919 12/01/1864 10/09/1865 United States Army Civil War 10_58_X_1
Mitchell Thomas H. 4/29/1919 05/02/1864 09/23/1864 United States Army Civil War U_6_X_1
Nelson Archie 6/5/1919 5/17/1918 United States Army World War I 10_5_W_4
Friedrick August  C. 9/15/1919 02/27/1865 06/12/1866 United States Army Civil War O_16_S_2
Fox H.D. 2/7/1920 05/18/1861 09/22/1862 United States Army Civil War 10_37_X_1A
Anderson Cyrus 2/8/1920 5/25/1918 6/3/1919 United States Army World War I 15_13_S_3
Thompson Merrel W. 3/28/1920 9/18/1917 8/4/1919 United States Army World War I 18_51_X_7
Buchanan William 5/14/1920 United States Army Civil War E_7_X_1
Reynolds Charles C. 8/9/1920 01/05/1864 01/21/1866 United States Army Civil War N_113_X_2
Wilcott James A. 8/15/1920 D_58_W_1
Boye Charles 9/24/1920 08/21/1862 11/28/1864 United States Army Civil War 7_29_S_1
Marston J.H. Sr. 10/6/1920 United States Army Civil War E_70_X_7
Popp Elmer C. 10/8/1920 United States Army Civil War 14_66_X_1
Pomeroy Ralph 1/4/1921 04/28/1898 11/09/1898 United States Army Spanish American War E_31_X_3
Hurd Henry Harrison 2/3/1921 02/24/1864 06/02/1865 United States Army Civil War M_72_X_16
Bilter Benjamin 3/19/1921 4/10/1917 5/18/1919 United States Army World War I O_49_X_7
Spencer Frank S. 4/24/1921 E_49_X_5
Storm William 5/30/1921 4/25/1918 3/11/1919 United States Army PVT World War I 15_16_X_2
Juhnke John 9/2/1921 United States Army World War I 15_29_X_1
VanWyk Paul 10/30/1921 4/15/1915 5/26/1919 United States Army World War I R_28_X_10
Ingold Arthur J. Jr. 1/9/1922 10/7/1918 12/21/1918 United States Army World War I 2_32_X_1
Zimmerman John D. 1/10/1922 10/03/1864 07/18/1865 United States Army Civil War O_32_X_3
Sanborn Loran L. 1/29/1922 05/19/1864 09/16/1864 United States Army Civil War 6_13_X_4
Banker John A 2/3/1922 08/29/1864 06/27/1865 United States Army Civil War 29_20_X_1
Will Herbert 4/27/1922 4/25/1918 3/11/1919 United States Army World War I K_100_X_6
Thompson Wilber 11/1/1922 United States Army Civil War 17_12_X_2
Heckert Herman Sr 1/4/1923 10/04/1864 08/09/1865 United States Army Civil War D_7_X_1
Popp Conrad 2/16/1923 08/15/1862 United States Army Civil War 15_7_X_2
Wing James 3/7/1923 02/27/1864 06/02/1865 United States Army Civil War G_40_S_2
Brandner Joseph 5/11/1923 03/06/1865 08/29/1865 United States Army Civil War M_72_X_13
Briggs Lewis A. 5/23/1923 12/16/1861 07/14/1865 United States Army Civil War D_81_X_5
Lake John R. 7/12/1923 08/13/1862 06/12/1865 United States Army Civil War F_50_X_3
Stammer Clarence 10/10/1923 7/22/1918 2/20/1919 United States Army World War I 29_18_X_1
King James Edward 12/11/1923 01/01/1861 United States Army PVT  Co. A  21st Wis Inf.Civil War 26_9_N_1
Chamberlian John H. 1/1/1924 08/24/1864 06/20/1865 United States Army Civil War 1_12_X_1
Buckland Comfort Starr 1/10/1924 United States Army Civil War U_10_X_11
Miller George 2/6/1924 11/19/1862 09/08/1863 United States Army Civil War 26_3_N_1
Kipp Malcolm 5/13/1924 United States Army World War I 11_14_S_3
Riesenweber Charles 5/18/1924 03/03/1864 08/29/1865 United States Army Civil War O_41_X_3



Gass Fredrich 7/13/1924 11/25/1863 10/23/1865 United States Army Civil War D_64_E_3
Fellion John B. 8/1/1924 08/14/1862 12/16/1862 United States Army Pvt Civil War M_64_X_12
Tubbs Byron B. 8/4/1924 09/07/1864 05/26/1865 United States Army Civil War M_64_X_11
Stammer William 8/15/1924 08/14/1862 07/05/1865 United States Army Civil War 26_40_S_1
Kretschmann Alfred E. 8/24/1924 12/15/1917 6/27/1919 United States Army World War I 10_42_X_1
Wolf Frank 10/20/1924 10/21/1861 07/16/1865 United States Army Civil War 1_16_X_1
Gehring John L. 10/24/1924 08/21/1862 06/12/1865 United States Army Civil War G_59_X_3
Anderson John H. A. 3/10/1925 6/5/1917 8/19/1925 United States Navy World War I E_48_S_5
Phillips Charles Theo. 3/30/1925 6/22/1916 5/16/1919 United States Army World War I P_3_X_3
Lillge Edwin J. 4/5/1925 9/18/1917 2/27/1920 United States Army World War I O_34_X_4
Kirsch Nicholaus 4/24/1925 09/17/1861 12/03/1864 United States Army Civil War N_41_W_3
Brueggeman Max 5/5/1925 12/14/1917 8/7/1920 United States Navy World War I 19_27_W_1
Bentley Charles 5/20/1925 08/12/1862 06/12/1865 United States Army Civil War K_93_X_4
Brown Benj. F. 6/13/1925 10/23/1864 06/12/1865 United States Army Civil War 17_20_X_1
Wegner Reinhardt A. 7/1/1925 4/3/1917 4/25/1919 United States Army World War I 26_12_N_1
Storm Ernest 3/8/1926 7/8/1918 1/17/1919 United States Army PVT World War I 15_16_X_3
Barnhart Samuel H. 3/21/1926 08/16/1864 07/03/1865 United States Army Civil War M_25_S_3
Hoffman Louis 4/7/1926 8/13/1918 12/10/1918 United States Army World War I 14_49_E_1
Brettschneider Elmer J 4/16/1926 4/13/1917 4/3/1919 United States Army World War I N_25_X_3
Ginnow Walter L. 4/28/1926 4/25/1918 5/20/1919 United States Army World War I 23_45_S_1
Brainard Carlos M. 5/7/1926 United States Army Civil War 16_38_X_11
Wegner Albert 5/12/1926 2/8/1918 7/28/1919 United States Army World War I 9_76_X_1
Mitchell Robert S. Dr. 5/17/1926 United States Army World War I O_88_X_1
Radtke Arthur 6/11/1926 9/30/1918 12/20/1918 United States Army World War I 11_55_X_8
Koehnke Henry F. Jr. 8/14/1926 United States Army World War I 3_20_X_3
Simpson Albert C. 9/9/1926 09/03/1864 06/09/1865 United States Army Civil War T_31_X_4
Freeman Hiram Guerney 12/3/1926 09/12/1861 05/10/1865 United States Army Civil War E_67_X_7
Rule Russell 12/24/1926 5/25/1918 9/6/1919 United States Army World War I I_3_S_1
Fox William T. 1/3/1927 United States Army Spanish American War 11_9_N_3
Rehmer Charles F. 3/24/1927 7/15/1917 5/16/1919 United States Army World War I 9_58_X_1
Gothe Donald L. 5/17/1927 1/1/1950 1/1/1952 United States Army Korean War 14_13_X_6
Potter Ralph Oram 5/17/1927 11/22/1917 7/24/1919 United States Army World War I 16_24_N_1
Johnson Amos  A. 10/10/1927 Spanish American War 17_67_S_3
Gutowski Alexander 12/5/1927 7/3/1917 8/14/1919 United States Army World War I 23_23_S_1
Kanouse Dr. Abijah Wood 5/31/1928 08/24/1864 07/01/1865 United States Army Civil War O_43_S_1
Wilson William 12/17/1928 03/04/1861 08/03/1865 United States Army Civil War N_96_X_3
Meidam Dennis Sr. 12/21/1928 10/07/1864 07/16/1865 United States Army Civil War D_8_X_2
Hanchett James 1/26/1929 07/30/1863 07/03/1865 United States Army Civil War K_97_X_2
Kosbab Richard 2/2/1929 10/24/1918 11/2/1918 United States Army World War I 23_20_S_4
Heinemann Capt. Fred 6/10/1929 09/06/1861 12/04/1864 United States Army Civil War 3_24_X_2
Goodland Clark 7/22/1929 1/9/1918 6/18/1919 United States Army World War I E_56_X_11
Pohlman Peter Henry 8/4/1929 5/25/1918 6/6/1919 United States Army PVT World War I L_43_X_5
Wilson George F. 11/4/1929 1/15/1918 12/28/1918 United States Army World War I N_96_X_1



Wenzlaff Richard G. 11/24/1929 8/10/1942 2/24/1944 United States Army World War II 29_52_N_1
Hedberg Oscar W 12/22/1929 7/3/1917 6/1/1919 United States Army World War I 25_20_X_1
Bailey Frances 1/30/1930 United States Army Civil War 17_102_X_2
Schaefer Charles F. 3/11/1930 3/5/1900 3/4/1903 United States Army Spanish American War L_41_X_5
Spencer Frank E. 4/7/1930 4/7/1919 3/8/1919 United States Army World War I H_6_X_1
Doerfler Mathias 4/21/1930 06/15/1898 11/10/1898 United States Army Spanish American War 34_4_S_1
Renner George A. 8/27/1930 5/25/1918 3/24/1919 United States Navy World War I 16_37_X_3
Davis Thomas Pearson 8/29/1930 06/17/1899 07/08/1899 United States Army Spanish American War 23_40_S_5
Bethe Everett Wilson 9/1/1930 04/28/1898 11/11/1908 United States Army Spanish American War L_65_N_1
Priest William Henry 9/30/1930 08/07/1862 02/27/1863 United States Army Civil War 1_20_W_4
Davis Allen E. 11/14/1930 03/01/1865 08/29/1865 United States Army Civil War F_11_X_6
Bartell Edward 12/24/1930 World War I 16_50_X_3
Hancock Johnson 2/4/1931 01/28/1864 07/12/1865 United States Army Civil War 26_24_S_1
Klitzke William Carl 3/4/1931 4/25/1918 5/31/1919 United States Army World War I 23_5_X_9
Goodrich Bertrand F 3/8/1931 04/26/1898 11/21/1898 United States Army Spanish American War R_8_X_1
Wilson Lewis 4/30/1931 11/24/1863 09/11/1865 United States Army Civil War 23_5_X_7
Langstadt Godfried 5/15/1931 01/25/1862 11/15/1865 United States Army Civil War O_90_X_1
Verstegen Michael H. 6/10/1931 9/18/1917 4/17/1919 United States Army World War I I_9_E_1
Fulcer George H. 6/19/1931 9/3/1918 12/4/1918 United States Army World War I 23_5_X_8
Haworth Edgar (Edworth) 6/30/1931 United States Army Civil War 23_17_X_9
Schucknecht Walter H. 6/30/1931 7/18/1918 3/28/1919 United States Army World War I 33_42_X_1
Schatzman Frank B. 8/31/1931 5/25/1918 5/22/1919 United States Army World War I 10_18_W_5
Hertel John 10/25/1931 World War I 23_49_W_5
Reetz Louis F. 4/11/1932 7/26/1918 2/7/1919 United States Army World War I 25_13_S_1
**Kemp Charles B. 5/13/1932 7/13/1901 7/15/1904 United States Army Spanish American War O_77_S_2
Steinart William F. 7/14/1932 04/21/1862 03/10/1863 United States Army Civil War 14_20_E_4
Galpin Algernon S. 10/1/1932 09/16/1861 United States Army Civil War E_47_X_9
Leman Angelo L. 4/20/1933 12/9/1913 7/7/1919 United States Army World War I N_72_X_3
Cole Frank L. 5/3/1933 08/12/1898 02/28/1899 United States Army Spanish American War U_19_X_6
Kearn John 6/8/1933 6/8/1933 United States Army World War I 23_11_X_7
Waltman Frank L. 7/12/1933 5/25/1918 7/18/1919 United States Army World War I O_3_X_7
Fernandez Albert S. 10/31/1933 United States Army World War I U_32_X_4
Kasten Herman B. 11/1/1933 5/15/1918 9/30/1921 United States Navy World War I P_63_N_1
Schroeder Orville H enry 11/11/1933 07/14/1818 5/14/1919 United States Army World War I 15_24_S_3
Keats Fenton G. 12/2/1933 4/14/1917 6/3/1919 United States Navy World War I 18_14_S_3
Korte Fred Wm. 6/2/1934 9/18/1917 5/26/1919 United States Army World War I 10_26_W_4
Moll Otto C. 10/27/1934 6/4/1917 1/11/1919 United States Army World War I 25_38_N_3
Johnson William K. Dr. 12/2/1934 5/6/1916 12/20/1920 United States Marine Corps World War I 17_66_X_8
Nichols Clarence A. 2/16/1935 11/11/1918 United States Army World War I 14_78_E_3
Baer John M. Capt. 1/25/1936 United States Army Civil War 1_11_X_1
Schwandt Gustave C. 6/7/1936 04/28/1898 11/10/1898 United States Army Spanish American War 17_47_X_1
Morse Ernest B. 8/1/1936 6/10/1918 6/27/1919 United States Navy World War I C_44.5_X_1
Krueger John W. 2/5/1937 United States Marine Corps Peace Time O_54_W_3



Hoffman Frank J. 6/22/1937 03/01/1897 United States Navy Spanish American War P_2_X_7
Burkett Robt. Geo. 7/11/1937 5/22/1918 9/30/1921 United States Navy World War I 22_89_S_3
Meidam Stephen 7/15/1937 United States Army Civil War D_53_X_2
Nohr Louis F. 8/25/1937 10/19/1918 12/18/1918 United States Army PVT World War I 22_36_X_1
Gillett Irving E. 11/29/1937 06/30/1898 02/28/1899 United States Army Spanish American War L_47_X_4
Kibbie Fred William 4/7/1938 5/15/1918 1/15/1919 United States Army World War I 16_11_X_7
Alexander George A 5/2/1938 D_54_E_11
Van Heuklon James 8/11/1938 10/12/1861 07/21/1862 United States Army Civil War 9_2_X_1
Mory Arthur E. 9/5/1938 2/12/1917 5/5/1919 United States Army World War I N_7_X_3
Adjet William 11/1/1938 6/2/1917 9/9/1919 United States Army World War I 23_43_X_5
Brown Charles F. 11/11/1938 05/02/1863 05/29/1865 United States Army Civil War T_20_X_2
Pauls Roy 12/14/1938 7/8/1918 1/16/1919 United States Army World War I 9_43_X_3
Marston Joseph Hilton 12/16/1938 12/14/1942 2/16/1946 United States Army World War II E_70_X_27
Thompson William E. 3/1/1939 United States Army Spanish American War N_70_X_6
Buske William 3/4/1939 12/16/1896 12/23/1899 United States Army Pvt. Spanish American War M_46_X_47
Gerdin Oscar 5/6/1939 10/15/1917 5/19/1919 United States Army World War I P_2_X_11
Braeger Walter 7/23/1939 4/26/1918 4/15/1919 United States Army World War I 22_55_N_1
Pleckman Frank 8/27/1939 7/8/1918 3/22/1919 United States Army World War I P_2_X_12
Gatz Max F. 4/22/1940 World War I 22_34_X_6
Parker George J. 8/22/1940 5/9/1917 12/28/1918 United States Army World War I P_5_X_14
Farwell Ross Francis 9/10/1940 R_44_X_10
Lillge Henry 10/18/1940 7/8/1918 2/3/1919 United States Army World War I O_34_X_6
 Pomeroy Capt. Hugh 10/25/1940 04/28/1898 11/10/1898 United States Army Spanish American War E_31_X_4
Gosha Charles 1/17/1941 12/28/1863 08/23/1865 United States Army Pvt Civil War M_64_X_9
Becker Deane S. 2/17/1941 United States Army World War I 1_23_X_3
Wilpolt Louis 5/1/1941 United States Army World War I 22_61_X_12
Mead Leonard William 11/3/1941 4/12/1917 8/19/1919 United States Army World War I 16_36_X_1
Kranzusch Arthur C. 1/24/1942 9/4/1918 12/18/1918 United States Army World War I 17_17_X_12
Radtke Ferdinand 2/24/1942 04/08/1898 11/09/1898 United States Army Spanish American War 25_22_X_2
Bauer Anson J. 4/30/1942 4/27/1942 1/29/1946 United States Army Spanish American War 17_48_X_7
Kruse George T. 5/6/1942 8/26/1918 3/21/1919 United States Army World War I 18_38_S_4
Mory Harry E. 6/21/1942 2/25/1918 7/29/1919 United States Army World War I 26_3_S_2
Ganzen Paul 12/2/1942 04/28/1898 11/09/1898 United States Army Spanish American War 11_41_N_5
Horn Rueben R. 1/1/1943 8/12/1942 11/24/1943 United States Navy World War II H_25_W_3
Krause Leo H. 1/1/1943 5/25/1918 8/5/1919 United States Army World War I L_27_X_2
Brewer James W. 1/21/1943 United States Army S/SGT World War II 16_2_X_4
Boyer C. K. 2/11/1943 5/13/1917 10/31/1919 United States Army World War I 5_81_E_1
Risse Adolph 2/26/1943 7/22/1918 2/20/1919 United States Army World War I 6_64_N_1
Bixby Philip 3/5/1943 O_62_X_5
Hedberg David N 7/3/1943 6/4/1917 United States Army World War I 25_20_X_6
Ellis Allen B. 8/17/1943 7/15/1917 6/1/1919 United States Army World War I 10_66_W_6
Damrow Eugene E. 10/15/1943 5/18/1942 10/15/1943 United States Army World War II 18_14_N_3
Younger Frank B. 10/16/1943 8/23/1943 10/16/1943 United States Navy World War II P_33_N_3



Gillespie Ivon Alexander 10/21/1943 3/2/1942 United States Army World War II G_44_N_3
Hansen John I. 1/26/1944 7/22/1918 2/6/1919 United States Army World War I 23_49_E_5
Auerswald Edgar H 2/12/1944 United States Army World War I 9_52_X_5
Wenzlaff Richard W. 2/24/1944 8/10/1942 2/24/1944 United States Air Force World War II 29_52_N_3
Zilske Frank 3/6/1944 United States Army World War I 10_56_X_2
Limpert John A. 3/21/1944 1/28/1954 1/27/1956 United States Air Force Korean War K_75_X_2
Kessler Robert B. 4/20/1944 12/1/1942 4/20/1944 United States Army World War II 27_35_N_3
Hammer James C. 5/15/1944 9/1/1943 5/15/1944 United States Army PVT. World War II 11_20_W_4
Reetz Walter J. 5/31/1944 6/5/1918 1/3/1919 United States Navy World War I L_31_X_3
Slattery Kenneth T. Lt. 6/18/1944 11/10/1944 6/17/1977 United States Army World War II 6_61_N_4
Klause Oscar 7/21/1944 10/22/1942 7/21/1944 United States Navy World War II 28_9_N_3
Clark Charles Lewis 9/9/1944 04/28/1898 11/09/1898 United States Army Spanish American War N_87_W_4
Fredricks Marvin L. 10/27/1944 3/31/1943 United States Army World War II 25_25_S_4
Schwerbel Ralph C.  Lt. 12/25/1944 10/1/1940 12/25/1944 United States Army World War II 25_1_N_2
Peotter Franklin H. 5/13/1945 1/13/1943 United States Navy World War II 28_34_N_3
Carpenter Howard F. 8/14/1945 2/20/1918 9/4/1919 United States Army World War I 17_9_X_1
Hauert Alvin 9/29/1945 7/14/1917 5/18/2006 United States Army World War I 2_23_X_7
Zilkse Charles H. 12/13/1945 9/18/1917 1/13/1919 United States Army World War I 10_56_X_4
Rusch Emery R. 2/20/1946 7/8/1918 3/14/1919 United States Army World War I 15_38_S_6
Hoffman Emil C 4/17/1946 04/28/1898 11/09/1898 United States Army Spanish American War M_36_S_5
Schneider Andrew S. 6/9/1946 8/15/1917 5/27/1919 United States Army World War I T_44_X_8
O'Donnell William J. 6/30/1946 06/24/1898 11/05/1898 United States Army Spanish American War M_54_X_43
Wiese George 9/12/1946 5/25/1918 2/9/1919 United States Army World War I 27_36_X_6
Fiebelkorn William G. 10/29/1946 10/15/1940 7/15/1945 United States Army World War II 23_35_S_3
Hanson George 11/23/1946 7/22/1918 2/7/1919 United States Army World War I G_71_X_12
Reffke Forrest G. 12/8/1946 7/27/1944 6/23/1946 United States Army World War II 17_97_X_6
Nickasch Ruben 12/31/1946 5/30/1918 9/30/1921 United States Marine Corps World War I 16_53_S_7
Wojahn Henry 3/1/1947 7/8/1918 3/13/1919 United States Army World War I 29_68_X_6
Bauer Fred 4/12/1947 9/5/1917 3/21/1919 United States Army World War I 14_84_X_9
Brain Thomas 5/27/1947 3/30/1942 3/31/1944 United States Air Force World War II O_73_S_3
Rehfeldt Rudolph 12/3/1947 4/25/1918 6/1/1919 United States Army World War I P_5_X_15
Helm Oscar W. 12/18/1947 6/15/1918 6/14/1919 United States Army World War I 19_42_S_3
Hill Floyd A 2/6/1948 3/27/1944 1/8/1947 United States Navy World War II 14_34_X_10
Kuehmsted Arthur O. 2/8/1948 8/29/1918 12/11/1918 United States Army World War I 4_7_S_1
Chamberlain Charles W. 4/4/1948 12/13/1913 10/30/1919 United States Army World War I 1_12_X_8
Mory George H. 8/18/1948 7/5/1918 4/11/1919 United States Navy World War I and World War IIL_16_X_3
Olfson Walter Irvine 11/8/1948 12/15/1917 1/27/1919 United States Army World War I 28_17_X_1
Kuester Donald R. 11/10/1948 11/7/1945 8/15/1946 United States Navy World War II 28_32_S_3
Thalke Charles 11/20/1948 8/2/1917 7/16/1920 United States Army World War I N_75_W_5
Bessie Millard J. 12/11/1948 3/30/1918 6/27/1919 United States Army World War I 19_45_N_2
Pfeffer Joseph 3/15/1949 5/25/1918 6/1/1919 United States Army World War I 11_19_X_3
Wood George G 4/16/1949 10/29/1918 1/14/1919 United States Army World War I E_68_X_15
Graef Aldor Edward 4/28/1949 United States Army World War I R_34_X_9



Hebbring William A. 11/19/1949 United States Army VietNam War O_82_X_8
Zerbel Aaron 6/23/1950 04/28/1898 11/11/1898 United States Army Spanish American War 26_4_N_4
Goodrich George Robert 6/30/1950 United States Navy World War II R_8_X_7
Storch Carl August 8/16/1950 2/14/1908 United States Navy World War I 29_61_X_4
Murphy Daniel 9/7/1950 United States Marine Corps World War II V_41_X_4
Heise Kenneth K 10/27/1950 4/28/1950 United States Army Korean War 22_74_N_3
Holzer Leslie F. 11/1/1950 9/7/1917 6/6/1919 United States Army World War I 14_24_X_1
Wolf Edward C. 11/5/1950 5/16/1918 1/10/1919 United States Army World War I H_3_X_7
Hausher Meta A. 12/29/1950 United States Marine Corps World War II 19_6_N_2
Ritger Arthur 1/14/1951 10/29/1918 12/5/1918 United States Army World War I G_92_S_5
Hecht Albert O 5/18/1951 04/28/1898 11/09/1898 United States Army Spanish American War I_34_X_11
Schneider Frank 8/14/1951 5/1/1918 6/21/1919 United States Army World War I U_8_X_3
Brockman Fred P. 10/24/1951 Civil War N_95_X_6
Uebel Moritz  E. 11/1/1951 04/28/1898 11/14/1898 United States Army Peace Time 33_24_S_1
Brinkman Walter N. 11/24/1951 11/27/1917 6/10/1919 United States Army World War I 10_33_X_5
Selig Edward F. 11/30/1951 7/18/1918 2/7/1919 United States Army World War I H_17_X_13
Whirry Harvey W. 12/13/1951 5/25/1918 7/21/1919 World War I 9_3_X_10
Koester Walter 2/18/1952 29_40_X_1
Daniels Sr. Charles D. 3/29/1952 06/06/1898 03/31/1899 United States Army Spanish American War 23_42_S_4
Lillge Norman 7/2/1952 World War I 23_14_S_1
Zeh Edward Jr. 7/21/1952 World War II 6_58_X_4
Santkyul Henry H. 9/5/1952 8/14/1918 12/12/1918 United States Army World War I P_5_X_16
Kopenhefer Ralph B. 12/2/1952 10/14/1898 03/23/1899 United States Army Spanish American War 11_30_X_7
Borchardt Clarence 12/20/1952 7/30/1943 11/30/1945 United States Navy World War II 19_36_X_8
Stammer Sheldon 2/17/1953 9/18/1917 8/6/1919 United States Army World War I 29_18_X_4
Miller Roland Norton 4/15/1953 9/3/1918 2/10/1919 United States Army World War I E_31_X_9
Schneider Thomas H. 5/17/1953 7/11/1945 1/20/1947 United States Army World War II P_58_N_6
Ganzen Charles H. 6/28/1953 04/28/1898 11/09/1898 United States Army Spanish American War 11_41_N_7
Boettcher Herbert A. 10/14/1953 2/20/1919 United States Navy World War I M_33_S_5
Schulz Harold F 5/14/1954 9/30/1918 12/20/1918 United States Army World War I 12_34_X_8
Meidam Henry R. 5/25/1954 12/17/1943 10/23/1945 United States Army PFC World War II 15_12_S_2
Greunke Emmery A. 6/22/1954 8/1/1919 United States Army World War I 33_20_X_4
Lillge Roy 7/9/1954 5/1/1918 6/30/1919 United States Army World War I 19_39_N_3
Asman Arthur R 8/13/1954 10/21/1918 2/6/1919 United States Army World War I 17_37_N_1
Braeger George 10/14/1954 5/25/1918 1/21/1919 United States Army World War I 14_2_W_6
Kruschke Walter F. 11/16/1954 United States Army World War I E_29_X_5
Zilzke Robert 12/6/1954 6_60_S_6
Schlegel Harry A. 12/11/1954 5/24/1918 6/21/1919 United States Army World War I G_90_S_4
Peterson Andrew F. 1/4/1955 04/28/1898 11/09/1898 United States Army Spanish American War 6_14_W_4
Glass Emil 3/5/1955 3/20/1916 8/15/1917 United States Army World War I 22_36_X_9
Heins John T 3/9/1955 4/24/1918 8/13/1919 United States Army World War I 10_65_X_10
Pardee Charles A. Dr. 4/22/1955 United States Army World War I T_55_X_3
Thomas Earl 5/1/1955 2/26/1918 5/7/1919 United States Army World War I 28_32_S_1



Saunders Henry V. 5/5/1955 9/17/1917 8/13/1919 United States Army World War I 17_4_N_6
Eggleston Raymond L. 7/18/1955 05/16/1898 11/26/1898 United States Army Spanish American War G_47_X_6
Dessel Joseph 10/17/1955 5/10/1917 5/30/1919 United States Army World War I 23_32_X_7
Longworth Thomas 11/7/1955 6/3/1918 9/30/1921 United States Navy World War I 14_24_X_4
Behnke Henry J 12/19/1955 04/28/1898 05/12/1898 United States Army Spanish American War 12_67_X_7
McGinnis Edward J. 1/1/1956 6/12/1918 9/30/1921 United States Navy World War I 18_46_N_6
Steinert George  h. 3/9/1956 2/20/1918 6/21/1919 United States Army World War I 14_20_E_8
Uckerman Herman 4/20/1956 4/29/1918 5/14/1919 United States Army World War I 17_39_S_4
Landry Thomas W. 6/12/1956 2/6/1943 11/10/1944 United States Navy World War I and World War IIP_5_X_17
Grunst Otto 6/18/1956 4/29/1918 7/14/1919 United States Army World War I 6_61_N_2
Steffen Clement H. 11/16/1956 United States Army World War II 9_75_X_4
Luttman Arthur H. 12/8/1956 12/5/1942 11/14/1944 United States Navy QM12/C World War I and World War II26_2_X_3
Krolow Fred 12/29/1956 5/25/1918 2/24/1919 United States Army World War I 17_31_X_4
Brennecke Henry 1/9/1957 8/14/1918 6/17/1919 United States Army World War I 28_25_X_7
Kuether Frank 2/18/1957 7/23/1918 5/9/1919 United States Army World War I 28_25_X_1
Poppe Frederick W. 2/28/1957 7/22/1918 12/10/1918 United States Army World War I 27_23_X_4
Knuth Fred 3/3/1957 7/22/1918 12/11/1918 United States Army World War I 14_6_E_4
Reuss Clarence W 4/11/1957 11/1/1939 1/30/1942 United States Army World War II R_34_X_11
Pingel Ernest 4/14/1957 5/25/1918 7/19/1919 United States Army World War I 29_41_X_5
Schroeder George 5/20/1957 7/18/1918 5/16/1919 United States Army World War I 25_28_S_1
Limpert George J. 7/16/1957 8/30/1918 12/24/1918 United States Army World War I K_75_X_5
Notaras Paul A. 7/16/1957 World War I 33_14_X_4
Voge John F. 8/2/1957 7/15/1917 6/6/1919 United States Army World War I O_12_X_5
Graef Lothar G 9/22/1957 6/16/1916 5/22/1919 United States Army World War I 6_49_S_1
Horn Arthur H 11/6/1957 7/22/1918 2/6/1919 United States Army World War I 18_5_N_4
Hancock Edward W 12/14/1957 5/10/1915 8/13/1917 United States Army World War I 19_6_SE_3
Radick Michael 12/15/1957 4/23/1918 1/8/1919 United States Army World War I 33_49_N_8
Pasch Reinhold 12/25/1957 5/25/1918 5/30/1919 United States Army World War I 10_12_X_2
Gatz Emil F. 2/19/1958 9/18/1917 5/26/1919 United States Army World War I 14_51_X_5
Rawlinson George R. 3/1/1958 9/3/1918 1/24/1919 United States Army World War I 7_16_X_5
Cumber Frank J. Sr. 3/2/1958 World War I 7_17_W_12
Gordon David O 3/19/1958 6/27/1942 1/6/1945 United States Army World War II 15_33_X_8
Schulz Samuel 3/28/1958 12/12/1918 8/30/1919 United States Army World War I O_7_X_7
Koletzke Max, Sr. 4/28/1958 4/3/1918 12/19/1918 United States Army World War I 6_31_X_9
Bonger Robert (Bert) 4/29/1958 4/2/1918 4/24/1918 United States Army World War I 15_22_X_6
Downey Howard A. Dr. 6/8/1958 1/5/1918 12/14/1918 United States Army World War I 27_11_X_12
Haugen Karl M 8/13/1958 11/19/1917 7/17/1918 United States Army World War I R_30_W_6
Hamilton Col. H. L. 9/30/1958 3/1/1941 4/30/1956 United States Army World War II and Korean WarR_34_X_3
McIntire William A. W. 10/15/1958 27_18_X_12
Saiberlich Henry A. 10/25/1958 7/24/1943 3/22/1946 United States Navy World War II O_57_X_4
Regenfuss Robert M. 12/22/1958 3/20/1917 5/18/1919 United States Army World War I 22_88_NW_6
Thompson Charles M. 1/17/1959 11/12/1917 3/8/1919 United States Army World War I N_70_X_7
Buxton Warren O. 5/17/1959 6/24/1943 1/1/1944 United States Army World War II 22_48_X_11



Gebheim Alfred A. 6/9/1959 6/29/1942 1/17/1945 United States Navy World War II 26_41_X_10
Hrudka Ladimier Dr. 6/11/1959 5/24/1918 7/31/1918 United States Army World War I 14_56_W_3
Humphries Sr. James W 7/3/1959 10/30/1943 11/12/1945 United States Navy World War II D_71_X_9
Semler Richard 8/30/1959 9/28/1917 4/23/1919 United States Army World War I 9_24_X_10
Boon Richard Henry 10/24/1959 6/28/1944 11/3/1945 United States Army World War II V_37_W_4
Schafelke Henry A. 11/6/1959 5/15/1918 1/20/1919 United States Navy World War I P_5_X_18
Hameister Herman E 12/19/1959 4/20/1918 12/27/1918 United States Army World War I 15_20_X_3
Schultz Albert F. 1/15/1960 06/15/1898 United States Army Spanish American War 25_15_S_1
Puffer Waldo J. 2/9/1960 1/26/1943 1/7/1946 United States Army World War II K_20_X_3
Parkinson George 5/11/1960 4/15/1917 3/27/1919 United States Army World War I P_8_X_19
Voigt Martin W. 7/29/1960 8/14/1918 1/11/1919 United States Army World War I P_8_X_20
Koehnke Walter H. 9/8/1960 5/24/1918 5/24/1919 United States Army World War I 3_20_X_5
Leppla Harold M Dr. 9/26/1960 10/21/1918 12/18/1918 United States Army World War I N_8_X_9
Mielke Albert 9/28/1960 9/18/1918 9/26/1918 United States Army World War I 22_21_X_3
Kruse Henry Karl 10/22/1960 2/27/1918 3/14/1918 United States Army World War I 18_38_S_5
Whitefoot Robert J. 12/1/1960 World War I 25_30_S_2
Bragg Wallace J. 1/17/1961 2/28/1942 9/23/1945 United States Army World War II 15_1_X_4
Chandler James C. 4/3/1961 9/24/1942 11/30/1945 United States Army World War II 6_56_X_8
Koerner Elmer E. 4/5/1961 United States Army World War I 24_47_X_12
Hackworthy Herbert 4/16/1961 12/12/1917 6/18/1919 United States Army World War I C_41_X_7A
Swiertz Walter V. Jr 6/2/1961 11/9/1948 6/30/1950 United States Air Force Korean War 23_2_X_11
Cleveland Jay 6/12/1961 4/10/1917 5/16/1919 United States Army World War I M_70_X_35
Allan Dr. Newlin W 6/30/1961 4/7/1917 5/24/1919 United States Army World War I 11_43_N_5
Honick Peter J 7/19/1961 7/18/1918 1/8/1919 United States Army World War I 26_12_N_3
Bolton Ernest L. Dr. 10/17/1961 6/4/1918 12/30/1918 United States Army World War I 6_21_X_1
McPheeters William E. Dr. 1/14/1962 8/5/1919 United States Army World War I 2_32_X_4
Essler Edward W. 1/19/1962 6/25/1943 10/26/1945 United States Navy World War II 22_56_N_4
Glass Henry J. 3/30/1962 6/28/1918 1/31/1919 United States Army World War I 22_21_X_7
Jones Newland P. 4/1/1962 6/2/1941 4/11/1946 United States Army World War II L_62_X_5
Schroeder Milton G. 4/27/1962 1/6/1943 12/27/1945 United States Army World War II 25_45_S_3
Hoffman Willis C 8/3/1962 11/11/1918 11/11/1918 United States Army World War I L_23_S_6
Hoh Orrin W 8/8/1962 9/16/1942 4/16/1943 United States Army World War II 6_57_X_2
McGregor Roy C. 10/27/1962 United States Army World War I 28_28_S_5
Johnson Bentley M. 11/19/1962 5/14/1918 9/30/1921 United States Navy World War I 6_56_X_3
Newell Braton O. 11/19/1962 08/12/1862 11/19/1862 Civil War U_22_X_5
Peterson Allen O. 11/19/1962 United States Navy Peace Time 22_46_X_6
Walters Erie H. 11/25/1962 5/27/1918 7/21/1919 United States Army World War I 22_46_X_12
Wenzlaff Walter C. 12/4/1962 10/22/1918 12/17/1918 United States Army World War I 29_52_S_4
Clark John B. 12/27/1962 World War I 34_15_X_7
Pearson Charles M. 2/23/1963 10/1/1917 9/4/1919 United States Army World War I 9_24_X_9
Schultz Theodore B. 2/26/1963 United States Army World War I P_71_S_5
Ellmaker William G. 3/15/1963 4/21/1917 4/17/1919 United States Army World War I 28_28_S_3
Wolff Helmuth O. 3/27/1963 4/25/1918 9/15/1919 United States Army World War I 29_32_SE_6



Mayer Otto J. 6/2/1963 5/3/1918 7/10/1919 United States Army World War I 23_31_N_1
Braeger Clarence A. 6/30/1963 9/18/1917 7/26/1919 United States Army World War I G_26_N_1
Mitchell William Dean 7/1/1963 4/21/1917 5/29/1919 United States Army World War I 2_10_X_5
Zilske William A 7/10/1963 11/21/1917 1/10/1919 United States Army World War I 10_56_X_10
Sager Robert K. 7/26/1963 2/7/1940 9/13/1945 United States Army World War II L_30_X_5
Orbison Thomas E. Sr. 10/4/1963 6/13/1919 United States Army World War I D_69_X_C
Sitterson Cephas B. Jr. 10/19/1963 3/5/1941 United States Army World War II S_61_X_12
Ross William August 10/22/1963 04/28/1898 11/09/1898 United States Army Peace Time 32_29_X_1
Sykes Richard 10/26/1963 04/28/1898 11/09/1898 United States Army Spanish American War M_46_X_46
Mueller Donald W. 11/16/1963 9/10/1941 10/28/1945 United States Army World War II 12_28_X_4
Wilke Paul C. 11/18/1963 9/15/1914 5/16/1919 United States Army World War I 29_54_N_4
Wilcox Russell L. 11/22/1963 2/11/1943 12/8/1945 United States Navy World War II 19_41_X_21
Brockman Arthur J. 3/2/1964 7/22/1918 12/13/1918 United States Army World War I 22_47_X_3
Potter Thomas J. Sr. 3/13/1964 1/24/1949 5/13/1949 United States Army Peace Time 25_11_X_2
Buchanan James P. 6/11/1964 5/22/1942 4/2/1964 United States Army World War II E_7_X_12
Wood Emmett C. 8/25/1964 7/18/1918 1/11/1919 United States Army World War I 17_9_X_6
VanHandel Cornelius J. 9/12/1964 7/14/1945 12/11/1945 United States Army World War II M_70_X_34
Hopfensperger Clarence 9/21/1964 9/17/1943 12/17/1945 United States Navy World War II P_45_X_1
Youtz Merrill A.  Dr. 9/21/1964 9/18/1917 2/28/1919 United States Army World War I 6_30_X_5
Glander Otto C . Sr. 10/27/1964 5/25/1918 2/9/1919 United States Army World War I M_70_X_37
Corbett Kenneth H. 11/3/1964 10/14/1918 12/21/1918 United States Army PVT World War I 5_87_E_2
Sager William F. 11/29/1964 1/10/1918 7/16/1919 United States Army World War I 16_44_X_3
Moore Ralph D. 12/4/1964 5/29/1917 5/13/1919 United States Army VietNam War 25_13_S_4
Nee Donald  J. Vet. 12/7/1964 4/25/1942 9/22/1945 United States Army World War II 27_30_X_6
Sachs William H. 12/23/1964 7/27/1918 2/7/1919 United States Army World War I 22_69_S_5
Werner Frank L. 12/24/1964 V_31_X_12
Schulz Joseph H. 2/28/1965 5/25/1918 4/3/1919 United States Army World War I G_86_X_8
Stark John J. 4/8/1965 1/2/1943 10/31/1945 United States Navy World War II D_53_X_10
Bosser Richard 7/2/1965 7/8/1918 2/3/1919 United States Army World War I 26_10_S_3
Lahn Harold C. 7/15/1965 8/6/1960 2/5/1961 United States Army Peace Time 25_6_N_4
Kessler Floyd R. 7/27/1965 7/15/1917 5/16/1919 United States Army World War I 27_35_N_1
Bloomer John F. 10/25/1965 1/8/1918 4/9/1919 United States Navy World War I 33_56_X_10
Gaulke Edward A. 10/28/1965 United States Army World War I 8_13_X_8
Pickering Clyde "Ben" 10/28/1965 5/4/1918 1/11/1919 United States Army World War I 22_21_X_1
Kunstman Frank C. 11/29/1965 2/13/1918 6/21/1919 United States Army World War I 34_2_X_3
Bosser Alfred C. 12/29/1965 8/17/1917 8/12/1919 United States Army World War I S_21_X_4
Whirry Earl C. 2/8/1966 2/18/1918 5/27/1919 United States Army World War I and World War II23_2_X_8
Herzog Charles V 2/28/1966 9/11/1942 2/14/1946 United States Army World War II 25_9_X_9
Hartwig Albert C 3/14/1966 7/3/1918 12/23/1918 United States Navy World War I M_62_X_39
Henk Ray Sr 3/21/1966 5/9/1917 5/24/1919 United States Army World War I 8_3_X_10
Prust Henry 5/28/1966 5/25/1918 6/17/1919 United States Army World War I M_54_X_45
Rohloff Paul H. 6/1/1966 28_34_SW_1
Herrmann Rudolph C 7/6/1966 4/3/1917 5/13/1919 United States Army World War I 16_19_N_3



Hauert Edwin J 7/15/1966 World War I G_83_X_5
Mitchell Robert S 7/20/1966 O_88_X_3
Rohm Elmer  R. 8/13/1966 5/10/1915 12/4/1919 United States Army SGT World War I 15_8_X_3
Fellows Walter W. 10/3/1966 6/11/1917 4/14/1919 United States Navy World War I 16_17_X_3
Court John R. 10/22/1966 7/3/1917 5/18/1919 United States Army World War I 12_15_X_6
Learned Lawrence C. 10/27/1966 United States Army World War II 9_29_X_5
Braeger Herman 10/29/1966 World War I G_26_N_2
Motiska Michael 11/20/1966 6/6/1941 12/1/1945 United States Army World War II 18_34_N_4
Peske Fred C. 1/24/1967 5/28/1918 8/27/1919 United States Army World War I 34_17_X_5
Stilp Albert J. 1/29/1967 7/29/1942 11/30/1945 United States Army World War II 26_18_X_7
VanHandel Raymond 2/18/1967 10/27/1942 12/6/1945 United States Army World War II M_78_X_32
Benjamin Louis V 4/15/1967 7/3/1917 5/10/1919 United States Army World War I 29_38_S_3
Engel Earl E. 6/3/1967 3/1/1916 5/21/1919 United States Army World War I and World War II17_103_X_4
Estergaard Hjalmarnmn 7/23/1967 Peace Time 9_39_X_8
Weiss John H. 8/6/1967 6/19/1916 5/16/1919 United States Army CPL World War I 22_78_N_1
Johnston Alden M. 10/21/1967 8/13/1917 5/10/1919 United States Army World War I N_34_X_3
La Pine Lewis James 1/22/1968 5/1/1918 6/30/1919 United States Army World War I 7_24_E_7
Smith Lloyd W. 3/22/1968 7/30/1917 8/31/1920 United States Army World War I P_53_S_6
Gartmann Ervin William 4/1/1968 5/16/1967 3/27/1968 United States Army Peace Time L_8_X_7
Brauer Harold W. 4/26/1968 10/18/1940 2/25/1944 United States Army World War II 29_9_N_4
McCoy Donald 4/29/1968 7/8/1942 2/6/1945 United States Army World War II 6_1_X_5
Swamp George N. 7/7/1968 9/26/1942 8/1/1945 United States Army World War II H_33_N_3
Schinke Robert J. 7/9/1968 4/13/1945 7/25/1946 United States Army World War II 25_29_S_5
Buske Max C. 7/15/1968 5/1/1918 6/23/1919 United States Army CPL World War I 26_43_X_7
Spencer Lyle 8/21/1968 1/14/1943 12/11/1945 United States Army World War II U_13_X_2
Felzer Theodore W. 8/26/1968 7/18/1918 1/23/1919 United States Army World War I 9_9_E_1
Schneider Elmer Alvin 9/7/1968 2/19/1915 2/5/1918 United States Army World War I P_58_N_5
Atwood Carroll D 9/25/1968 4/7/1946 1/30/1948 United States Army World War II 17_71_X_10
Streck Otto A. 10/30/1968 United States Army World War I 10_50_X_3
Fraser Earle J. 12/2/1968 4/2/1917 4/19/1919 United States Army World War I 14_10_X_4
Hoppe Otto H 12/12/1968 7/8/1918 9/16/1919 United States Army World War I 11_33_SE_1
Christensen Robert A. 1/3/1969 O_67_X_4
Zuehlke Wm. H. 2/1/1969 04/28/1898 10/18/1898 United States Army Spanish American War D_3_X_10
Glander Carl A 2/5/1969 7/8/1918 5/17/1919 United States Army World War I 29_2_X_4
Bauman Stanley 3/16/1969 United States Army World War II 26_6_X_4
Sager Eugene R. 4/30/1969 12/14/1942 9/20/1945 United States Army World War II L_30_X_12
Winslow Kenelm 5/29/1969 8/30/1918 12/10/1918 United States Army World War I C_29_X_C
Klahorst Henry H. 5/31/1969 6/14/1918 1/13/1919 United States Navy World War I 29_23_S_6
Frese John W 7/23/1969 5/25/1918 2/19/1919 United States Army World War I 23_23_S_3
Pierre John A. 10/10/1969 7/23/1917 1/17/1919 United States Army World War I 14_45_X_12
Turkow Martin 10/15/1969 8/1/1918 12/16/1918 United States Army World War I 29_13_X_2
Risse Rudolph A. 10/21/1969 9/4/1918 3/13/1919 United States Army World War I 7_13_X_1
Schroeder Carl J. 12/9/1969 2/5/1918 1/30/1919 United States Navy World War I S_41_E_1



Grapengieser Earl H. 12/27/1969 6/24/1942 2/13/1943 United States Army World War II M_34_X_9
Boldt Oscar J. 2/8/1970 7/22/1918 12/13/1918 United States Army World War I S_13_E_1
Guenther Charles O 2/23/1970 10/2/1917 4/14/1919 United States Army World War I 12_15_X_9
Peotter Walter G. 4/1/1970 5/1/1918 7/3/1919 United States Army World War I 14_53_E_6
Lillge Gordon O. 4/18/1970 2/22/1944 5/8/1946 United States Navy World War II 23_14_S_4
Liesch Anton 5/7/1970 5/1/1918 1/3/1919 United States Army World War I 16_35_S_10
VanBuskirk William L. 5/30/1970 12/9/1942 6/18/1946 United States Army World War II 11_53_X_11
Bomier Raymond W. 8/5/1970 8/26/1942 3/20/1943 United States Army World War II L_73_N_5
Jury Lewis E. 10/1/1970 18_18_NW_2
Jabas Richard L 10/17/1970 6/20/1946 4/23/1948 United States Navy World War II R_14_X_6
Nicholson Harry 10/20/1970 1/25/1943 6/15/1943 United States Army World War II 7_25_W_4
Hess Reuben 1/8/1971 United States Army World War I 14_83_X_9
Tierney Gerald E. 2/1/1971 2/15/1955 9/10/1958 United States Navy Peace Time M_62_X_41
Baratell Willian 2/7/1971 7/22/1918 2/6/1919 United States Army World War I 16_50_X_4
Immel Victor H 2/10/1971 6/17/1941 10/4/1941 United States Army World War II 22_81_S_4
Verwey George 2/15/1971 7/3/1917 5/16/1919 United States Army World War I 14_54_E_3
Lastofka Louis J. 3/4/1971 1/5/1951 12/7/1954 United States Air Force Korean War 2_23_X_3
Carter John  A. 3/7/1971 World War II 29_20_X_12
Roth Ralph G. 3/31/1971 6/11/1942 11/5/1945 United States Army World War II 22_34_X_9
Schultz Walter J. 4/12/1971 4/2/1918 3/8/1919 United States Army World War I H_30_W_6
Feavel Leland 4/30/1971 4/23/1943 3/30/1945 United States Navy World War II O_79_X_12
Dietrich John C. 5/12/1971 12/14/1898 12/14/1899 United States Army Spanish American War 11_35_X_5
McGinty James T. 5/12/1971 4/25/1942 9/7/1945 United States Army World War II 29_63_X_8
Richter Fredrick 5/26/1971 25_41_S_6
Playman Harold L. Dr. 6/15/1971 9/25/1918 12/1/1918 United States Army World War I C_39_X_4
Peterson Raymond A. 6/17/1971 7/27/1918 2/10/1919 United States Army World War I V_35_W_4
Hoeppner Fred Jr 7/17/1971 5/25/1918 7/22/1919 United States Army World War I L_54_X_4
Gottschalk Lida Mae 7/31/1971 4/27/1967 11/11/1970 United States Army VietNam War M_47_X_51
Purdy Roy H. 8/9/1971 6/14/1918 1/24/1919 United States Army World War I E_8_X_5
Pond Charles Sr. 8/29/1971 5/6/1957 2/24/1959 United States Army Peace Time L_53_N_1
Kasten Herman 9/1/1971 World War I 33_49_S_4
Schmitz John E. 10/19/1971 5/25/1918 6/29/1919 United States Army World War I M_54_X_42
Reinke Harry F. 10/23/1971 United States Army World War II 16_4_X_3
Hoerning Bernard 11/3/1971 7/22/1918 12/13/1918 United States Army World War I 23_32_X_10
Voigt Raymond B 12/14/1971 3/29/1918 4/17/1919 United States Army World War I 2_35_E_3
Richter Jr. Gustave 12/20/1971 10/17/1942 3/10/1943 United States Air Force World War II 11_46_X_11
Hussner Helm C 2/22/1972 7/6/1918 1/8/1919 United States Navy World War I 33_48_X_1
Swamer Bernard 3/14/1972 6/13/1942 3/21/1946 United States Army World War II 22_53_X_4
Engler Carl H. 3/21/1972 6/6/1942 11/29/1945 United States Navy World War II K_7_X_5
Williams Kenneth O. 3/31/1972 1/6/1944 8/30/1945 United States Army World War II 14_41_E_3
Kahler Charles F. 4/4/1972 11/25/1942 3/29/1943 United States Army World War II 33_11_E_3
Sauer Tim A. 6/13/1972 5/2/1918 6/26/1919 United States Navy World War I 18_17_X_9
Johnson George E. 6/16/1972 7/25/1918 12/20/1918 United States Army World War I 29_65_W_1



Gruenstern Reinhold, A 7/8/1972 4/11/1941 9/6/1945 United States Army World War II N_92_X_12
Hertzfeldt Clarence L 7/16/1972 5/29/1943 3/3/1947 United States Navy World War II 17_26_X_5
Gurnee David C 7/20/1972 6/13/1945 12/1/1945 United States Army World War II D_71_X_13
Scheil Clarence 7/28/1972 10/2/1917 2/22/1919 United States Army VietNam War 27_37_X_10
Meyer Otto F. 9/17/1972 7/22/1918 12/24/1918 United States Army World War I 6_17_X_6
Peotter George E. 9/20/1972 1/30/1918 6/21/1919 United States Army World War I O_68_W_6
Niedzwiecke Lawrence 10/6/1972 7/24/1940 6/1/1943 United States Navy World War II S_65_X_1
Albrecht Sylvester 10/7/1972 10/10/1942 11/26/1945 United States Army World War II L_21_S_2
Breitzman Marvin E. 11/23/1972 10/28/1942 6/28/1945 United States Army World War II U_3_X_9
Griem Jon 11/23/1972 United States Army World War I 22_20_X_1
Grundeman Erwin 1/1/1973 United States Army K_72_X_4
Miller John P. 1/3/1973 5/29/1944 10/12/1945 United States Navy World War I 25_5_S_3
Reinke Clifford 1/14/1973 11/20/1942 11/18/1945 United States Army Cpl World War II 16_4_X_4
Neidhold Carl D.   Dr. 1/15/1973 7/30/1944 8/8/1949 United States Navy World War II 3_22_X_1
Burmeister Arthur 3/18/1973 United States Army World War I 25_6_N_5
Reinke Roy 5/14/1973 2/17/1942 1/1/1945 United States Army SGT World War II 16_4_X_5
Endter Richard P. 6/3/1973 9/19/1961 9/5/1964 United States Army VietNam War P_60_X_7
Miles Samuel W. 6/4/1973 7/15/1942 1/1/1946 United States Marine Corps World War II T_57_X_1
Wilbur Wayne W. 7/3/1973 6/24/1916 6/10/1919 United States Army World War I 27_11_X_10
Stark Ernest 11/22/1973 7/26/1918 12/11/1918 United States Army World War I 22_47_X_6
Ricker  Arthur P. 12/8/1973 7/22/1918 9/4/1918 United States Army World War I 10_58_X_5
Sherman Irvin C. 12/16/1973 5/31/1917 7/15/1919 United States Army Civil War 6_43_N_1
Bradford Sr. Alfred S. 12/29/1973 9/18/1967 9/5/1969 United States Army VietNam War U_7_X_7
Werner Rudolph N. 1/30/1974 5/25/1918 5/28/1919 United States Army World War I 17_69_X_8
Panfield Victor 3/22/1974 7/14/1917 5/24/1919 United States Army World War I 11_3_X_4
Bucklew John J 4/1/1974 3/19/1943 11/9/1945 United States Army World War II 27_21_X_1
Waldron Jonathon 4/6/1974 9/15/1942 10/12/1945 United States Army World War II O_89_X_13
Immel Herbert H 5/19/1974 10/10/1942 3/16/1943 United States Army World War II 17_43_S_4
Merollo Daniel J. Jr. 5/27/1974 5/4/1943 11/12/1945 United States Army World War II L_76_X_2
Ramminger Herbert 6/12/1974 6/21/1942 10/20/1945 United States Army World War II 4_39_X_1
Thies John 7/1/1974 2/22/1944 4/18/1946 United States Navy World War II N_71_X_6
Melchert Donald 7/23/1974 2/2/1943 1/22/1946 United States Army World War II T_56_X_6
Bishop Arthur J. 8/21/1974 7/22/1918 2/20/1919 United States Army World War I O_76_S_6
Hardacker Floyd A 9/12/1974 6/15/1918 12/13/1919 United States Army World War I 17_58_S_6
Polzin George W.  Dr. 9/27/1974 10/4/1918 12/18/1918 United States Army World War I 4_40_S_5
Ehlert Dennis A. 10/5/1974 10/12/1970 4/19/1972 United States Army VietNam War S_66_X_2
Bates Robert G. 11/4/1974 5/3/1948 5/2/1952 United States Navy Peace Time G_66_X_10
Saecker Austin H. 11/26/1974 5/15/1918 9/30/1921 United States Navy World War I 1_34-37_X_C
Steenis Wilbur H. 12/7/1974 1/23/1945 2/18/1946 United States Army World War II 16_39_N_1
Zumach Irvin W. 1/7/1975 7/1/1918 12/12/1918 United States Army World War I L_52_S_11
Hartsworm Gerald 1/13/1975 6/13/1941 10/19/1945 United States Army World War II 17_1_X_8
Noffke Sherman C. 4/2/1975 2/22/1944 5/3/1966 United States Navy World War II and Korean War18_4_N_3
Tippet Earl J 4/20/1975 United States Army World War I 2_26_X_5



Auterburn Herbert 6/18/1975 6/11/1943 11/26/1945 United States Navy World War II V_31_X_1
Voeltz Wayland 8/19/1975 United States Air Force Korean War 18_11_X_9
Hoffmann Rudolph H 8/30/1975 5/14/1917 10/10/1919 United States Army World War I M_26_X_6
Stoeger Charles F. 9/11/1975 12/7/1942 10/10/1945 United States Army World War II 32_29_X_5
Giuliani Joseph I. 9/14/1975 United States Army World War II 19_2_E_4
Herrmann Robert K 9/21/1975 1/22/1942 6/12/1945 United States Army World War II O_45_X_8
Calnin Michael H. 11/7/1975 10/30/1951 10/13/1953 United States Army World War II 11_41_N_6
Miller Clarence F. 2/1/1976 10/15/1942 1/17/1946 United States Navy World War II 29_13_X_12
Coulthard Homer William 2/28/1976 11/8/1942 11/25/1945 United States Army World War II 26_42_X_7
Dame George C. 3/9/1976 7/16/1918 2/18/1919 United States Navy World War I 33_43_S_4
Bucholtz Garnet L. 3/17/1976 8/27/1941 11/23/1945 United States Army World War II 19_5_W_5
Sairs George T. Sr. 7/24/1976 3/28/1942 12/11/1945 United States Army World War II V_34_X_7
Johnson Sigvard L. 8/19/1976 7/24/1942 8/29/1945 United States Navy World War II 22_86_S_3
Abbott Leslie C 9/10/1976 5/11/1955 5/10/1957 Peace Time O_72_X_7
Smith Leslie C. 9/11/1976 6/14/1918 6/12/1919 United States Navy World War I O_89_X_6
VanHandel Edward H. 10/25/1976 1/1/1942 12/8/1945 United States Army World War II M_78_X_31
Rule Clinton B. 1/11/1977 5/25/1918 9/6/1919 United States Army World War I I_3_S_4
Willer Gene D. 1/13/1977 1/7/1953 1/6/1956 United States Marine Corps Korean War 7_23_X_11
Gloff John 3/18/1977 11/24/1942 3/9/1943 United States Army World War II 19_28_E_6
Spaulding George H. 3/22/1977 United States Army World War I 17_105_N_3
Olson Robert G 6/10/1977 4/7/1917 5/18/1919 United States Army World War I 22_86_N_1
Boettcher Herbert J. 6/17/1977 9/4/1918 2/6/1919 United States Army World War I 27_18_X_6
Franke Douglas G. 7/6/1977 1/22/1970 9/27/2006 United States Army VietNam War 19_36_X_4
Rehlender Herman F. 8/22/1977 7/22/1918 12/16/1918 United States Army World War I 8_7_X_9
Grobe James M 9/2/1977 1/5/1953 12/25/1954 United States Army Korean War V_33_X_6
Frank Theodore 9/18/1977 6/15/1918 6/23/1919 United States Army World War I 25_33_X_10
Scheil Oscar G. G. 10/18/1977 12/14/1917 7/15/1919 United States Army World War I G_17_N_9
Sternagel Otto P. 10/20/1977 9/18/1917 7/2/1919 United States Army World War II 18_4_S_4
Elsner Sr. Willis W. 10/28/1977 United States Navy World War I 29_60_X_3
Brewer Frank Marshall 10/30/1977 2/18/1942 4/20/1946 United States Army T/SGT World War II 16_2_X_8
Roocks Erwin  F. 11/2/1977 United States Army World War II 26_42_X_4
Dreier Clarence L. 11/8/1977 2/22/1945 12/14/1946 United States Army World War II 19_40_S_16
Grobe Lewis E 1/10/1978 4/29/1918 6/3/1919 United States Army World War I 27_10_X_1
Behling Charles H 1/27/1978 5/27/1942 3/27/1943 United States Army World War II 10_52_X_10
Ballard Harry R 3/7/1978 6/30/1916 7/10/1916 United States Army T_39 &amp; 40_X_14
Laabs Harry 3/10/1978 2/18/1918 4/24/1919 United States Army World War I 15_31_X_3
Goldbeck Charles 3/19/1978 4/1/1918 6/13/1919 United States Army World War I K_86_X_2
Gleisner Henry G. 4/8/1978 10/26/1942 1/10/1945 United States Army World War II 11_21_X_10
LeGault Douglas A. 4/8/1978 10/15/1940 9/8/1945 United States Army TEC-5 World War II S_19_X_2
Roll George A. 4/29/1978 4/30/1917 5/19/1919 United States Army World War I 23_32_X_3
Arnell Joseph P 7/20/1978 2/27/1942 1/30/1946 United States Army World War II M_46_X_49
De Young Francis W. 8/19/1978 3/25/1941 10/5/1945 United States Navy World War II P_8_X_21
Filen Howard L. 8/28/1978 4/13/1945 12/13/1945 United States Army World War II 5_65_W_2



Page William G. 10/26/1978 10/15/1940 1/13/1946 United States Army World War II 23_39_X_6
Rosebush John McNaughton 11/5/1978 4/1/1942 1/6/1946 United States Marine Corps World War II 2_2_X_A
Jewell Thomas E. 11/13/1978 8/23/1976 9/13/1976 United States Army Peace Time 22_59_X_12
Landis Ralph V. Dr. 12/26/1978 6/8/1942 11/13/1945 United States Air Force World War I and World War IIP_31_X_13
Sabee Agnes 1/8/1979 5/25/1944 4/6/1945 United States Army World War II K_124_S_1
Dittmer Cedric K Dr. 1/11/1979 10/16/1918 12/14/1918 United States Army World War I 6_41_SE_4
VanderLois Russell F. 2/27/1979 2/17/1944 4/6/1947 United States Navy World War II R_14_X_12
Hoeppner Paul 3/9/1979 5/25/1918 5/30/1919 United States Army World War I L_54_X_1
Strobl Howard 3/18/1979 2/25/1953 2/15/1955 United States Army Korean War H_12_X_3
Krasinski Roman Z. 4/6/1979 3/5/1941 11/21/1944 United States Army World War II P_52_X_6
Chadek Edward 4/20/1979 1/18/1944 5/23/1946 United States Navy World War II I_31_X_3
Parish Harold F. 5/13/1979 United States Army World War I 25_32_S_1
Bauman Fenton E 6/2/1979 1/28/1942 9/13/1945 United States Army World War II 26_6_X_6
Gruentzel Bette R 7/14/1979 4/5/1943 5/25/1943 United States Navy World War II R_36_X_12
LeMieux Henri J. 7/14/1979 United States Navy World War II 7_5_X_12
Pederson Peter C. 7/31/1979 5/7/1918 7/5/1919 United States Army World War I S_53_X_1
Jurgensen Leonard R. 8/4/1979 6/27/1944 6/1/1946 United States Army World War II 23_31_S_2
Reick Clarence A. 8/7/1979 4/9/1941 1/7/1942 United States Army World War II 25_17_SE_10
VanLoo Clarence 8/29/1979 United States Marine Corps World War II L_74_X_2
Rochon Lawrence M. 9/6/1979 3/3/1943 10/31/1945 United States Army World War II N_81_X_5
Philipsen Wayne 9/24/1979 2/1/1950 11/24/1953 United States Navy Korean War 18_1_N_6
Chavez Joseph J. 10/3/1979 29_35_S_4
Peterson Talbot 10/4/1979 8/30/1943 5/8/1946 United States Army World War II V_35_W_2
Notaras John G. 11/5/1979 5/2/1945 7/6/1946 United States Navy World War II 33_14_X_8
Dietrich Herbert G. 1/8/1980 United States Navy World War I 11_35_X_6
Sabee James 1/16/1980 5/7/1940 5/1/1946 United States Navy World War II K_124_S_2
Andrews James J. 1/25/1980 2/24/1943 9/10/1943 United States Army World War II O_94_X_5
Smith Dean Allen 3/4/1980 3/4/1946 United States Navy World War II P_40_X_1
Kellner Roger 3/14/1980 9/18/1969 3/19/1972 United States Army VietNam War 22_62_W_3
Jorstad  Sr. Douglas Lee 3/27/1980 6/11/1968 6/4/1970 United States Army VietNam War 19_47_X_5
Baetz Sheldon P. 4/6/1980 11/20/1917 3/13/1919 United States Army World War I and World War IIP_8_X_22
Orbison Frank H. 4/7/1980 7/31/1942 5/3/1947 United States Army World War II D_69_X_D
Lappen Cliffird C. 5/19/1980 12/28/1942 11/17/1945 United States Army World War II 17_85_X_4
Burley Lawrence A. 5/20/1980 6/13/1944 1/30/1946 United States Navy World War II G_77_N_2
Schabo Elmer C. 6/15/1980 8/26/1918 1/7/1919 United States Army World War I 17_21_X_12
Gensler Melvin H. 6/21/1980 4/25/1942 11/11/1945 United States Army World War II 7_26_X_5
Wutt Delmar A. 6/26/1980 United States Navy Korean War M_47_X_52
Watkins Robert 6/27/1980 9/20/1917 6/7/1919 World War I O_92_X_2
Lahn Gerald 7/4/1980 1/4/1943 12/24/1945 United States Army World War II 25_29_N_1
Nass Harry W. 8/19/1980 8/28/1942 5/26/1945 United States Army World War II 17_61_X_4
Halfmann Phil B 8/21/1980 3/29/1918 6/9/1919 United States Army World War I N_63_X_7
Orbison Mary 9/10/1980 10/13/1918 1/16/1920 United States Army World War I D_69_X_A
Wheeler Richard A. 9/28/1980 6/19/1916 5/16/1919 United States Army World War I 32_3_X_1



Pollo John Jr. 10/23/1980 7/19/1916 6/27/1919 United States Army World War I 32_4_X_1
Johnson Yngve A. 11/8/1980 10/18/1940 1/22/1946 United States Army World War II 22_86_S_1
Abendroth Frederich C 11/11/1980 5/31/1918 12/30/1918 United States Navy World War I 16_29_X_6
Reinke Harold E. 12/14/1980 8/10/1942 1/21/1946 United States Army World War II 16_6_X_5
VanLinn David J. 12/27/1980 1/23/1976 1/22/1979 United States Marine Corps Peace Time 19_44_X_4
Schroeder Carl A. 1/14/1981 8/26/1942 2/12/1945 United States Army World War I 27_37_X_7
Hinnenthal Hugo H 1/25/1981 9/7/1917 2/19/1919 United States Army World War I N_55_X_12
Wolt Darold 2/12/1981 6/4/1944 7/5/1946 United States Navy World War II 6_59_X_8
Merollo Daniel J. Sr. 4/1/1981 5/8/1918 9/30/1920 United States Navy World War I L_76_X_9
Kasten Ervin E 5/4/1981 12/28/1943 3/2/1944 United States Army World War II P_63_N_3
Chern Michael 5/5/1981 7/3/1943 3/23/1946 United States Army World War II 28_13_X_12
Doerfler Harold G. 5/31/1981 1/4/1943 5/21/1943 World War II 25_1_N_6
Sager Arthur E. 8/22/1981 8/13/1918 1/24/1919 United States Army World War I 16_44_X_6
Herzberg Albert 10/2/1981 3/29/1918 5/30/1919 United States Army World War I 25_37_N_6
Nass Edward Wm. Jr. 10/4/1981 10/19/1965 10/19/1967 United States Navy VietNam War 17_62_S_6
Beschta Norman A 10/14/1981 9/26/1947 3/20/1968 United States Army World War II and Korean WarM_56_X_8
Lamers Richard H. 10/16/1981 10/1/1942 11/22/1945 United States Marine Corps World War II S_20_X_6
Bloom Donald A 11/11/1981 1/25/1945 2/22/1946 United States Army World War II 26_9_S_4
Muench Raymond J. 11/24/1981 11/16/1919 11/16/1920 United States Army World War I 27_37_X_4
Hartwig Earl W 1/12/1982 7/13/1917 5/17/1919 United States Army World War I M_62_X_38
Collins Joseph C. 4/11/1982 7/3/1964 8/30/1966 United States Navy VietNam War M_79_X_22A
Giles Albert Edward 6/7/1982 3/28/1944 11/7/1944 United States Army World War II 33_32_X_1
Wilken DuWayne E. 6/15/1982 5/31/1944 6/5/1946 United States Navy World War II 26_11_X_6
Porlier Warner A. 6/16/1982 4/4/1944 12/22/1945 United States Navy World War II 29_47_X_10
Muttart Raymond Joseph 7/20/1982 8/13/1918 3/14/1919 United States Army World War I T_43_X_11
Ahlschwede Joseph L 8/9/1982 8/28/1942 12/30/1944 United States Army World War II 9_16_X_9
Mayer Larry Norman 8/9/1982 10/15/1961 8/10/1962 United States Army Peace Time 23_31_N_5
Johnson Thorston Oscar 9/23/1982 4/11/1924 4/27/1928 United States Navy World War II 3_26_N_6
Gostas Spyro 10/7/1982 10/9/1942 12/21/1942 United States Navy World War II 28_13_X_7
Jahnke Wm. Edward 10/19/1982 2/24/1942 9/7/1945 United States Coast Guard World War II 34_5_S_4
Hartmanstorfer Frank 11/25/1982 10/27/1942 12/20/1945 United States Army World War II M_47_X_54
Reffke Erwin Carl 12/14/1982 11/25/1942 8/27/1943 United States Army World War II 25_10_X_13
Rusch Alvin E. 12/26/1982 11/26/1943 12/16/1945 United States Army World War II 28_45_X_1
Lemke Edward C. 1/5/1983 7/23/1918 7/9/1919 United States Army World War I 32_10_N_1
Plamann Melvin E. 1/9/1983 3/26/1942 11/5/1945 United States Navy World War II 27_31_X_1
Root Elmer Wallace 2/17/1983 9/30/1918 12/20/1918 United States Army World War I 27_23_X_7
Shimek Benjamin Chas. 3/7/1983 6/28/1918 6/23/1919 United States Navy World War I 26_11_X_10
Bartmann John Fred. 4/15/1983 6/24/1917 7/2/1919 United States Army World War I N_87_E_5
Buroughs Robert 4/15/1983 7/25/1939 8/23/1945 United States Army World War II N_94_E_3
Darling Joseph Willis 6/5/1983 2/17/1958 7/15/1958 United States Marine Corps Korean War K_102_N_2
Herrling Dennis W 6/25/1983 8/22/1954 8/21/1956 United States Army Korean War V_27_X_1
Bowlby Howard Wellington 7/24/1983 7/8/1943 2/4/1946 United States Army World War II 6_36_S_6
Robbins Dale Walder 8/5/1983 8/16/1967 6/3/1969 United States Marine Corps VietNam War C_31_X_5



Klundt Henry 9/12/1983 3/29/1918 1/25/1919 United States Army World War I 26_19_S_3
Daniels Daniel Melvin Sr 9/13/1983 1/23/1948 1/22/1952 United States Army World War II and Korean War23_51_X_4
Underhill Robert A. 9/24/1983 United States Navy D_1_X_17
Kaphingst Louis J. 10/18/1983 6/15/1918 12/12/1918 United States Army World War I 29_15_X_5
Hausher Gordon E 10/24/1983 12/2/1942 1/10/1946 United States Army World War II 4_2_X_1
Gregory Loranzo T 12/17/1983 6/13/1941 6/30/1961 United States Army World War II and Korean War18_12_X_5
McConagha William A. 12/21/1983 5/13/1918 8/13/1919 United States Marine Corps World War I S_61_X_11
Barth Clifford W. 12/23/1983 4/26/1943 4/13/1946 United States Army World War II 19_34_W_4
McDonald William James 12/25/1983 United States Air Force World War II 17_1_X_7
Rondou Clifford J. 1/6/1984 2/15/1943 10/4/1945 United States Army World War II 29_24_X_4
LaBerge Roger G. 1/11/1984 10/14/1943 10/22/1945 United States Army World War II M_79_X_27
Aspen Leonard Clifford 3/28/1984 2/15/1943 12/15/1945 United States Army World War II 22_59_X_7
Meidam Adrian W. 3/30/1984 United States Army World War II 15_12_S_3
Stillman Richard Lester 5/9/1984 9/14/1951 10/31/1951 United States Navy Korean War 9_53_SW_4
Elias Ewald 6/4/1984 9/4/1918 1/8/1919 United States Army World War I 17_76_X_8
Rechner John 6/28/1984 12/3/1943 12/30/1945 United States Navy World War II 11_2_X_8
Lorenz Kenneth Wm. 7/27/1984 Korean War 9_37_X_10
Bailey Sylvester M. 10/6/1984 8/4/1943 8/16/1946 United States Air Force Capt. World War II 22_75_N_3
Selingo Robert J. 10/7/1984 3/3/1943 12/22/1945 United States Army World War II V_30_X_2
Berholtz John A 10/13/1984 2/15/1944 2/27/1946 United States Army World War II 19_43_X_8
Spychalla Frank Charles 11/1/1984 4/21/1917 5/15/1919 United States Army World War I K_2_X_14
Neuman Albert 1/8/1985 United States Army World War II 19_15_W_6
Stillman Ellicott 1/12/1985 5/29/1918 12/24/1918 United States Navy VietNam War 33_21_X_4
De Janes Robert Floyd 2/20/1985 6/4/1942 1/6/1946 United States Army World War II 32_15_X_1
Mitchell John H. 4/15/1985 7/25/1918 7/18/1919 United States Army World War I 22_20_X_7
Tock Raymond Otto 4/19/1985 12/18/1943 10/30/1945 United States Army World War II 17_52_X_12
Niemuth Samuel P. 5/24/1985 9/12/1942 2/6/1945 United States Army World War II 28_9_N_6
Ducklow William 6/23/1985 United States Navy World War II E_31_X_6
Miller David Ervin Capt. 7/1/1985 7/15/1979 7/1/1985 United States Air Force Peace Time M_47_X_55
Lambie Del 8/1/1985 4/2/1918 3/29/1919 United States Army World War II I_8_E_1
Streufert Gerhardt F. 8/8/1985 8/31/1944 7/9/1946 United States Army World War II 19_40_S_8F
Brooks Frederick E Jr. 9/9/1985 6/10/1943 3/13/1946 United States Army World War II T_58A_X_1
Schroeder Brian Howard 10/2/1985 22_73_S_5
Hartzheim Emery Walter 10/14/1985 4/25/1942 2/6/1946 United States Army World War II P_8_X_23
Worcester John Bigelow 12/4/1985 12/14/1942 10/23/1945 United States Marine Corps World War II L_75_X_3
Rusch Gordon A. Sr. 12/9/1985 United States Army World War II M_56_X_5
Bellis Merlin Sr 2/15/1986 12/16/1941 9/22/1945 United States Navy World War II 26_7_X_12
Crowe Clarence 3/1/1986 3/18/1941 6/28/1945 United States Army World War II 6_47_X_3
Hoppe Eugene O. 3/14/1986 3/7/1946 8/1/1947 United States Army World War II 7_5_X_1
Roth Donald L. 3/16/1986 S_62_X_6
Wolfe Leigh S. 4/7/1986 2/1/1918 12/17/1918 United States Army World War I 1_34-37_X_E
Armstrong Clarence 5/9/1986 United States Army F_66_S_6
Ballard Jesse Earl 7/2/1986 7/3/1917 5/18/1919 United States Army World War I T_39 &amp; 40_X_17



Gregory Harvey G 7/17/1986 10/27/1941 9/20/1945 United States Army World War II 23_31_S_5
Comella Frank P. 8/18/1986 1/14/1946 3/22/1947 United States Army World War II L_22_S_6
Anderson Carl A. 8/20/1986 World War II 11_49_X_8
Maahs Charles John 8/27/1986 6/8/1918 9/3/1919 United States Navy FIREMN2C World War I 19_24_W_2
McMahon Lamoine 9/3/1986 10_48_X_8
Stabe Allen  9/12/1986 4/8/1942 11/10/1945 United States Navy World War II M_47_X_50
Noffke Harold L. 9/21/1986 10/10/1945 6/23/1947 United States Army World War II 18_4_N_4A
Kranzusch James Henry 9/24/1986 11/12/1944 12/21/1946 United States Marine Corps World War II M_2_N_7
Ziemer William F. 10/31/1986 9/4/1918 1/6/1919 United States Army World War I 22_54_S_6
Kruse Henry R. 11/1/1986 7/27/1944 7/29/1946 United States Army World War II O_15_X_2
Williams David L. 12/2/1986 7/25/1985 12/2/1986 United States Navy L_69_X_7
Prindle Kenneth G. 12/4/1986 7/15/1941 6/28/1943 United States Army World War II P_54_X_1
Reams Olin M. 12/15/1986 Korean War and VietNam WarG_49_N_5
Schoepke Gerald 1/8/1987 1/20/1958 12/21/1959 United States Army Peace Time M_79_X_26
Fritz Sydney 1/26/1987 World War II S_35_X_2
Budrick Robert Paul 3/12/1987 12/31/1974 12/7/1981 United States Marine Corps VietNam War 7_27_X_4
Tobin Ernest James 3/17/1987 8/11/1942 12/29/1945 United States Army World War II M_44_X_4
Bartelt Donald 3/22/1987 United States Army World War II 33_18_X_1
Leman Craig 3/31/1987 12/9/1913 7/7/1919 United States Army PVT World War I N_72_X_4
Totzke Elmer 5/6/1987 27_49_X_5
Lyons Joseph 5/9/1987 National Guard 2_5_X_16
Watters Dale 5/9/1987 2/27/1946 4/19/1947 United States Army World War II 4_11_X_5
Dercks John L. 5/11/1987 3/3/1943 11/13/1945 United States Navy World War II 17_42_X_10
VanPatten Cornelius J. 5/12/1987 United States Navy VietNam War 23_36_W_11
LaChappelle William Joseph 6/3/1987 United States Navy World War II 15_33_X_3
Johnson Melvin 7/8/1987 12/19/1944 10/29/1946 United States Army World War II 3_1_X_6
McHugh Francis J. 7/26/1987 9/10/1945 4/29/1947 United States Army World War II 26_17_X_8
Burgess Jack Ray Sr. 8/7/1987 10/25/1960 10/23/1964 United States Air Force VietNam War 28_20_X_2
Kerschl Freidrich 9/15/1987 S_65_X_5
Stolzman James R. 9/15/1987 2/10/1959 2/7/1964 United States Coast Guard Peace Time 2_19_X_4
Bartelt Harvey A. 9/21/1987 33_18_X_1
Tornow Raymond W.A. 9/28/1987 World War II 12_57_X_9
Gasper Raymond 10/5/1987 1/30/1951 1/29/1954 United States Marine Corps Korean War 2_23_X_15
Schnetzer Robert G. 10/16/1987 7/9/1952 4/25/1954 United States Navy Korean War 2_22_X_1
DeZemler Charles 10/27/1987 4/25/1942 11/20/1945 United States Army World War II S_39_X_12
Pingel Alfred W. 11/2/1987 7/3/1917 3/27/1919 United States Army World War I 7_10_X_2
Nutting Harry E. 11/7/1987 S_61_X_7
McGuire Leland 11/17/1987 6/25/1943 8/28/1945 United States Marine Corps World War II 25_11_X_11
Schulze John W. 12/23/1987 2/18/1942 12/8/1945 United States Army World War II 22_62_E_8
Merkle Chester A. 12/26/1987 8/13/1918 1/28/1919 United States Army World War I M_37_X_4
Miller Harold W 12/26/1987 8/5/1917 6/17/1919 United States Army World War I I_9_W_3
Kranzusch Melvin 1/3/1988 3/27/1942 11/19/1945 United States Army World War II 8_10_W_11
Weber Russell G. 1/28/1988 8/10/1953 8/9/1956 United States Marine Corps Korean War F_9_S_11



Brandt Chester F. 2/1/1988 10/29/1942 11/5/1945 United States Navy World War II U_19_X_12
Timmel Alfred R. 2/11/1988 1/23/1946 9/20/1947 United States Army World War II E_65_X_8
Sorenson LeRoy J. 2/15/1988 4/11/1951 4/1/1953 United States Army Korean War U_3_X_13
Armstrong Robert C 2/22/1988 12/29/1942 11/5/1944 United States Army World War II 14_13_X_3
Deckers Adrian J. 3/22/1988 World War II S_16_X_1
Piette Robert J. 4/7/1988 United States Navy V_31_X_12
Bodner Clarence 4/16/1988 7/22/1918 9/6/1919 United States Army World War I 27_49_X_10
Badtke Harvey 6/1/1988 8/27/1942 10/20/1945 United States Marine Corps World War II 4_2_X_6
Reetz William Albert 6/7/1988 4/25/1917 6/1/1919 United States Army World War I 9_72_X_10
Holtz Lyle 6/16/1988 2/15/1944 5/29/1946 United States Army World War II 22_40_X_5
Saiberlich Raymond A. 6/21/1988 10/15/1918 12/12/1918 United States Army World War I N_64_W_3
Smith Edward A. 7/3/1988 7/28/1944 11/7/1945 United States Army World War II 3_29_X_1
Jorgenson Harvey 8/17/1988 9/15/1942 10/7/1946 United States Army World War II 29_24_X_10
Thiel Robert L 9/5/1988 6/10/1943 10/31/1962 United States Army World War II and Korean War18_20_S_3
Glass Roy 9/18/1988 1/11/1952 10/10/1953 United States Army Korean War 22_18_X_8
Bauer Louis W. 10/13/1988 2/4/1943 10/28/1945 United States Navy World War II 4_20_X_5
Wiegand Robert John 10/19/1988 8/10/1942 11/7/1945 United States Army World War II 22_43_S_6
Grearson Filmore 11/9/1988 8/13/1943 9/23/1945 United States Army World War II 6_61_S_2
Herber Francis N. 11/27/1988 5/22/1945 7/18/1946 United States Navy World War II M_56_X_7
Mandel Raymond A. 12/31/1988 7/9/1942 11/23/1945 United States Army SGT World War II 28_39_X_1
Washechek Geo. J. 1/11/1989 3/12/1944 10/23/1945 United States Army World War II 33_22_X_1
Kuban Walter 1/18/1989 8/19/1942 12/28/1943 United States Army World War II 14_54_W_6
Zschaechner Robt. H. 2/8/1989 1/5/1943 12/8/1945 United States Army TEC 3 World War II O_39_X_4
Elm Lemuel Nelson 2/25/1989 6/13/1945 7/28/1949 United States Navy World War II 25_11_X_12
Hanselman Norman Wm 3/2/1989 10/14/1942 2/9/1946 United States Army World War II 7_2_N_10
Strover Glendale James 3/16/1989 1/18/1945 1/21/1945 United States Coast Guard World War II 22_45_X_12
Peterson Russell 3/20/1989 6/30/1943 3/29/1946 United States Army World War II T_39 &amp; 40_X_20
Harris Richard 6/10/1989 5/26/1942 10/20/1945 United States Coast Guard World War II 15_32_X_4
Danielsen Ralph 7/6/1989 2/23/1944 11/10/1945 United States Army World War II D_45_X_1
Buesing Melvin 7/28/1989 3/10/1941 3/26/1946 United States Army World War II 6_62_X_4
Neller  Robert J. 8/9/1989 8/13/1943 11/29/1945 United States Army World War II 3_37_X_5
Fiscella Ben J. 8/17/1989 9/26/1942 10/27/1945 United States Army World War II V_34_X_3
Balch Robert 10/13/1989 United States Army S_18_X_6
Smith Douglas D. 10/23/1989 7/31/1972 7/30/1976 United States Navy VietNam War P_36_X_12
Probst Jason 12/12/1989 7/11/1984 2/17/1988 United States Navy Peace Time 2_38_X_8
Baer Albert W. Sr. 2/26/1990 10/15/1940 6/11/1945 United States Army World War II I_42_X_6
Knuth Elmer C. 2/26/1990 3/20/1942 10/19/1945 United States Army World War II 14_6_E_3
Ronk Robert C. 3/9/1990 World War I S_26_X_11
Malott Gregory 3/31/1990 9/13/1973 9/8/1976 United States Army VietNam War S_30_X_5
Neville Almond 4/4/1990 5/17/1949 1/5/1953 United States Air Force A1C Korean War M_48_X_4
Sonsthagen Allen D. 4/4/1990 P_18_X_4
Anholzer George 4/15/1990 8/13/1918 1/7/1919 United States Army World War I 26_7_X_6
Lust William E. 6/15/1990 World War I 27_48_X_3



Knutson Douglas Dean 6/19/1990 2/24/1943 2/26/1946 United States Army World War II C_39_X_2
Relien Gilbert J. 6/25/1990 5/28/1944 4/22/1946 United States Navy World War II 33_26_X_3
Goehler Robert L. 7/2/1990 1/31/1946 6/8/1948 United States Army World War II 11_24_N_6
Swiekatowski John A. 8/7/1990 7/7/1955 12/15/1967 United States Air Force VietNam War 3_40_N_1
Cleveland Theodore 8/11/1990 7/5/1946 11/6/1947 United States Army World War II and Korean War16_24_S_6
Faas Bob Adrian 9/22/1990 2/10/1953 2/5/1957 United States Navy Korean War 6_38_X_6
Thiel Robert Bruce 11/10/1990 9/26/1966 9/18/1969 United States Army VietNam War 18_21_X_9
Butch Amel 12/3/1990 6/13/1944 1/30/1946 United States Navy World War II S_62_X_12
Gabathuler Roland L. 12/20/1990 United States Army World War II 33_18_X_12
Stake Sylvester V. 1/14/1991 9/24/1940 7/1/1945 United States Army S/STG World War II 22_49_X_10
Dowe John H. 2/23/1991 World War II 7_25_E_6
Hammond James Gordong 3/7/1991 United States Army MAUS_101_3_C
Peterman Steve 5/11/1991 7/19/1979 7/17/1984 United States Army Peace Time D_81_X_11
Pettegrew Percy D. 6/22/1991 10/1/1918 12/12/1918 United States Army World War II 33_7_X_1
VanHandel Anthony J. 6/24/1991 10/26/1948 10/20/1949 United States Army Peace Time M_68_X_9
Wienandt Kenneth 7/11/1991 1/11/1943 12/20/1945 United States Army World War II 3_18_X_12
Koch Frank C. 7/19/1991 9/18/1917 8/12/1919 United States Army World War I 34_12_N_3
Eastman Jan 9/14/1991 3/12/1969 1/19/1973 United States Navy VietNam War 25_16_S_6
Engel Albert F. 10/23/1991 7/20/1943 10/15/1945 United States Navy World War I 11_47_X_6
Christen Marjorie 12/4/1991 2/23/1944 1/5/1946 United States Navy World War II and Korean War3_14_S_2
Brackey Leslie C. 12/7/1991 7/3/1942 2/17/1946 United States Army World War II V_33_X_10
Volpe Geno 12/25/1991 7/24/1952 7/17/1954 United States Army Korean War M_80_X_21-A
Wilmsen Fredrich B. 12/26/1991 United States Marine Corps World War II 2_6_X_23
Ziemer Albert 12/28/1991 World War I 22_54_S_1
Lundgren Richard 1/15/1992 World War II T_13_X_1
Lehr Klaus W. 2/1/1992 National Guard 7_18_X_2
Miller Willis 2/4/1992 10/2/1944 2/21/1946 United States Army World War II C_32_X_4
VanderZanden Scott D. 2/26/1992 8/7/1986 5/23/1989 United States Army Peace Time M_47_X_57.5
Peot Arthur 3/3/1992 6/5/1942 1/20/1946 United States Army World War II 14_79_X_3
Goldbeck Beck H. 3/4/1992 11/18/1942 7/12/1945 United States Navy World War II 12_17_X_11
Oenes Erwin Julian 3/7/1992 United States Air Force World War II P_32_X_10
Palmbach Clemens 5/6/1992 World War II 27_50_X_9
Ernst Alvina D. 5/15/1992 United States Navy World War II MAUS_104_5_G
Bessett Roger J 5/26/1992 11/4/1942 11/4/1948 United States Navy World War II 22_18_X_2
Rogers Holbrook, (Bud) 6/9/1992 1/7/1942 9/7/1945 United States Navy World War II R_39_W_17
VanWyk Frank 8/16/1992 United States Army World War II R_28_X_15
Beula Richard J 8/30/1992 5/24/1944 6/4/1946 United States Navy World War II P_18_X_5
Schwingle Eugene 9/10/1992 9/29/1953 9/13/1956 United States Army Korean War and VietNam WarP_8_X_24
O'Bright George R. 9/14/1992 1/20/1951 1/19/1953 United States Army Korean War E_61_N_8
Klopstein Orville C. 9/17/1992 9/25/1941 10/26/1941 United States Army World War II M_48_X_59
Johnson Arlin E. 10/17/1992 1/9/1956 1/8/1958 United States Army Peace Time N_100_E_1
Sweetalla Delvin J. 11/21/1992 9/7/1951 6/17/1953 United States Army Korean War 3_36_X_2
Magnus James C. 11/23/1992 11/14/1951 11/13/1954 United States Marine Corps Korean War 11_14_N_7



Becker Robert M  Sr 11/27/1992 4/14/1952 4/13/1954 United States Army Korean War O_99_N_4
Beilke Kenneth H R 12/2/1992 3/30/1944 5/11/1946 United States Army World War II D_1_X_27
Busch Benjamin 12/16/1992 2/20/1960 6/27/1960 United States Army Peace Time 33_46_X_10
Johnston Fremont Faville 12/27/1992 9/30/1918 12/20/1918 United States Army World War I and World War IIG_2-4-5_X_13B
Bonger Roy E. 1/11/1993 7/2/1943 3/13/1946 United States Navy World War II 15_22_X_11
Greenman Edwin G 2/4/1993 5/15/1943 2/15/1946 United States Army World War II D_1_X_41
Buchanan William E. 2/13/1993 E_7_X_6
Bauer Billy A. 4/1/1993 United States Air Force World War II MAUS_201_6_A
Budrick John K. 4/17/1993 United States Army VietNam War 7_27_X_5
Braeger George W. 4/23/1993 2/26/1946 6/25/1949 United States Air Force World War II G_26_N_4
Burby Donald L. 5/6/1993 United States Army World War II 19_24_NE_4
Jahnke Floyd 5/15/1993 United States Army World War II and Korean War22_74_S_3
Burmeister Roy 5/16/1993 United States Navy World War II S_37_X_7
Krause Rudolph 5/26/1993 United States Army World War I 4_31_X_1
Slomski Mark 6/1/1993 VietNam War 7_7_X_2
De Leest Robert F. 6/27/1993 United States Army World War II T_21_X_7
Dutcher John W. 7/6/1993 10/14/1943 9/27/1945 United States Air Force World War II O_67_X_7
Cavert Kenneth G. 9/6/1993 United States Navy World War II 33_25_X_6
Mahloch Ronald J. 9/9/1993 4/19/1976 9/26/1991 United States Coast Guard Peace Time M_44_X_1
Patterson Wilson S. 10/4/1993 United States Army World War II 14_79_X_8
Larsen Niels C. 10/20/1993 3/21/1941 11/8/1945 United States Army World War II 33_53_X_3
Wells Day E 11/15/1993 3/18/1949 4/6/1951 United States Army Korean War P_27_X_8
Lashway Henry C. 11/22/1993 9/1/1942 1/5/1946 United States Army World War II D_27_X_14
Woosnam Jane 11/25/1993 12/16/1943 1/3/1945 United States Navy World War II 22_81_S_1
Koerner Edward C. 12/6/1993 World War II 28_27_S_2
Ellenbecker Raymond A. 12/9/1993 2/13/1951 2/12/1954 United States Army Korean War 26_33_X_11
Mielke Joseph 2/9/1994 12/1/1952 11/30/1956 United States Navy Korean War P_40_X_6
Noffke Ralph F 3/18/1994 2/2/1943 1/10/1946 United States Army World War II 18_4_N_6
Bauernfeind Dale O 4/15/1994 11/2/1961 11/1/1963 United States Army Peace Time 3_36_X_6
Behm Francis A 5/7/1994 12/20/1943 11/3/1945 United States Army World War II 32_22_X_1
Whitman Cecil E. 5/8/1994 5/11/1945 8/22/1946 United States Army World War II 15_26_N_6
Rohan Ben J. 5/23/1994 US Army and Air Force 1st LieutenantWorld War II O_49_X_9
Yaeger Harold G.C. 5/25/1994 12/28/1944 7/6/1947 United States Army World War II 32_15_X_3
Wiedemann Daniel 6/15/1994 6/8/1961 5/25/1965 United States Air Force VietNam War MAUS_201_2_A
Reichelt George C. 6/16/1994 11/18/1942 1/2/1946 United States Navy World War II I_37_X_3
Asmus John R 7/13/1994 12/30/1942 12/11/1945 United States Army World War I MAUS_101_6_G
Lamers Dennis D. 7/24/1994 6/24/1970 1/23/1972 United States Army VietNam War M_66_X_12
Owen James B. 8/2/1994 11/2/1955 10/31/1958 United States Army Peace Time C_36_X_3
Bruehl William C. 8/19/1994 5/22/1943 8/23/1945 United States Navy World War II 33_48_X_12
Burhans Donald E. 8/20/1994 12/28/1942 1/9/1946 United States Army World War II 12_22_X_8
Fenner Donald B. 9/18/1994 5/22/1944 4/6/1946 United States Navy World War II M_46_X_99
Heinritz Jay R 12/7/1994 11/4/1948 5/28/1952 United States Army Korean War 26_43_X_9
Dix Harold E. 12/10/1994 World War II 17_32_X_14



Salentine Carl 12/16/1994 10/16/1942 3/17/1954 United States Air Force World War II and Korean War19_1_E_12
Willer Harvey E. 12/19/1994 2/23/1949 2/21/1950 United States Navy Korean War 7_23_X_10
Priebe Thomas G. 12/28/1994 10/6/1952 10/2/1956 United States Navy Korean War 26_39_X_6
Smith Corwin L. 1/21/1995 7/27/1949 11/25/1952 United States Army Korean War M_67_X_3
Skarweski Gaylord A. 2/12/1995 7/2/1942 10/27/1946 United States Army World War II M_46_X_97
Gast Daniel F. 2/14/1995 3/24/1971 4/23/1974 United States Army VietNam War S_48_X_7
Blaese Roger C 2/20/1995 4/16/1952 4/15/1955 United States Army Korean War M_48_X_60
Grishaber Carleton G 3/5/1995 2/18/1942 11/25/1946 United States Air Force World War II 22_84_X_3
Tobin James Lee 3/8/1995 6/5/1969 7/29/1973 United States Air Force VietNam War M_44_X_6
Daily Tom  J. 3/22/1995 World War II 26_19_S_6
Carnes Robert M. 4/10/1995 United States Navy World War II 2_6_X_10
Krueger Harold P. 4/13/1995 11/16/1951 11/1/1955 United States Air Force Korean War 3_13_X_2
Weber Norbert Arthur 4/23/1995 7/29/1953 7/11/1955 United States Army Korean War M_46_X_98
Kronberg Douglas R. 5/4/1995 M_45_X_4
Bremer Charles B. 5/16/1995 3/29/1951 3/20/1953 United States Army Korean War V_33_X_4
Jury Emerson E.  Rev. 6/10/1995 United States Army World War II 18_20_S_4
Campbell Howard 7/7/1995 2/5/1943 7/31/1945 United States Army World War II 14_53_W_4
Grobe Laurence D 7/8/1995 9/28/1944 7/27/1946 United States Army World War II M_48_X_61
Reese David E. 7/13/1995 United States Army 12_77_X_8
Sindahl Armond C. 7/13/1995 12/28/1943 6/8/1944 United States Army World War II 22_57_N_1
Bradley Greg 7/16/1995 11/30/1993 7/16/1995 United States Army M_54_X_96
Groth Gerald K 9/11/1995 6/24/1955 6/23/1957 United States Air Force Peace Time 22_41_X_3
Christen Wilbert F. 9/15/1995 5/27/1942 3/4/1946 United States Army World War II 3_14_S_3
Steward James G. 9/18/1995 United States Army World War II 12_43_X_5
Gonnering Sylvester L 9/26/1995 10/15/1961 8/10/1962 United States Army Peace Time 24_31_X_1
Sigler Samuel Y. 11/3/1995 9/20/1959 3/13/1960 United States Army Peace Time 4_37_X_17
Berggren Russell E. 11/12/1995 4/15/1941 10/28/1945 United States Army World War II M_54_X_94
Holbrook Ronald L 11/18/1995 7/3/1961 7/1/1964 United States Navy Peace Time 4_41_X_15
Lewis Chester J. 11/26/1995 P_18_X_7
DeShaney James L. 12/4/1995 World War II 25_38_S_4
Damon Richard O. 12/17/1995 1/7/1943 1/6/1956 United States Army Korean War D_81_X_9
Zwack James Bertae 12/23/1995 United States Air Force World War II V_25_X_5
Emrich Roger C. 12/28/1995 10/25/1943 10/29/1945 United States Army World War II 25_8_X_3
Streck Viola M. 1/27/1996 11/7/1943 11/2/1945 United States Army World War II 11_26_S_6
Roth Walter E. 1/30/1996 8/12/1941 9/23/1944 United States Army World War II 32_24_X_6
Wurm Emil C. 2/26/1996 4/25/1942 8/21/1945 United States Army World War II M_31_S_5
Gooding Charles L 4/17/1996 11/9/1942 11/7/1945 United States Army World War II G_80_X_11
Wheeler Clifford A. 4/21/1996 9/13/1949 11/30/1952 United States Army Korean War 33_30_X_3
Yach Jerome S. 5/22/1996 4/18/1941 4/24/1943 United States Air Force World War II MAUS_104_2_G
Jorstad Vernon L. 6/24/1996 3/16/1945 12/8/1945 United States Army World War II 19_47_X_3
Schmidt Franklin 6/28/1996 United States Navy World War II 6_15_E_4
Schiller LaVern E. 7/15/1996 2/25/1953 9/8/1959 United States Army Korean War D_1_X_24
Wiegand John  W. 7/20/1996 3/3/1943 1/7/1946 United States Army World War II 18_1_S_4



Hammond Benjamin D 7/23/1996 11/24/1982 7/22/1996 United States Army VietNam and Desert StormMAUS_101_3_C
Reifsnyder S. Boyd 8/4/1996 United States Air Force World War II MAUS_202_4_A
Kranzusch Theodore A 8/22/1996 6/13/1945 10/22/1945 United States Navy World War II 23_21_X_12
Falk Stanley W. 9/2/1996 1/19/1940 9/24/1945 United States Army World War II L_51_X_6
Doerfler Reno S. 9/11/1996 9/30/1918 12/20/1918 United States Army World War I 34_4_S_6
De Noble Lloyd A. 9/16/1996 2/10/1943 2/23/1946 United States Army World War II P_32_X_11
Doerfler Joseph H. 10/21/1996 1/5/1943 11/2/1945 United States Army World War II 6_20_N_2
Keller Raymond Fred 11/3/1996 United States Air Force World War I 7_25_W_6
Cronmiller Bruce 11/11/1996 12/11/1942 12/3/1945 United States Army World War II 4_41_X_4
Sonnleitner Joseph John 11/20/1996 1/5/1943 12/4/1945 United States Army World War II M_54_X_95
Portmann Joseph 12/30/1996 1/27/1941 12/22/1945 United States Army World War II 14_41_E_4
Heeter Charles 1/2/1997 6/29/1942 11/7/1945 United States Army World War II MAUS_201_5_G
Phillips Carl Roy 1/22/1997 10/4/1951 10/2/1953 United States Army Korean War 27_33_X_1
Smyrneos Charles 2/2/1997 10/10/1942 12/16/1945 United States Army World War II E_70_X_13
Alstad Alvin C. 3/7/1997 8/4/1944 2/20/1946 United States Navy World War II 4_37_X_10
Radtke Norman A. 3/17/1997 2/4/1942 12/31/1945 United States Coast Guard World War II 33_23_X_2
Meyer Raymond 4/23/1997 3/5/1947 5/20/1947 United States Army Korean War O_14_X_4
VanRooy Thomas 5/14/1997 3/11/1959 2/24/1961 United States Army Peace Time 33_52_N_14
Radtke Richard T. 5/30/1997 9/14/1953 9/13/1955 United States Army Korean War 25_22_X_8
Lappen Daniel E. 6/15/1997 2/23/1982 7/25/1982 United States Marine Corps Peace Time 8_16_X_6
Never Lee G. 7/4/1997 9/27/1956 10/2/1958 United States Army Peace Time V_24_X_11
Reinke Herman G. 7/4/1997 United States Army World War II 25_2_X_7
Morgan William J. 7/13/1997 10/8/1940 11/12/1946 United States Marine Corps World War II M_48_X_62
Timmins Thomas J. 7/30/1997 8/8/1974 8/5/1977 United States Army VietNam War V_20_X_8
Godschalx Raymond J. 8/4/1997 1/27/1942 10/17/1945 United States Air Force World War II V_33_X_21
Johnson Jack 8/4/1997 9/15/1942 9/8/1945 United States Air Force World War II 3_8_X_12
Sengstock Victor M. 8/8/1997 4/19/1943 12/7/1944 United States Army World War II L_70_X_1
Zimmerman Karel K. 8/30/1997 9/9/1942 6/19/1944 United States Army World War II O_32_X_5
Sagert Charles Wm. 9/12/1997 10/26/1961 5/1/1964 United States Army Peace Time M_54_X_93
Sherry Carl A. 9/24/1997 2/27/1918 2/4/1919 United States Army World War I N_35_E_5
Neiderhauser Les 10/4/1997 6/29/1951 3/28/1953 United States Army Korean War 3_7_X_5
Lichterman Gerald A. 10/9/1997 11/25/1983 2/24/1988 United States Navy Peace Time 5_31_X_18
Nabbefeld Arthur John 10/21/1997 5/2/1946 3/8/1948 United States Navy World War II 32_18_N_4
Belling Richard E. 11/6/1997 2/25/1942 1/27/1945 United States Army World War II MAUS_104_3_F
Pierce Allan A. 11/29/1997 1/10/1962 12/13/1963 United States Army VietNam War F_55_X_14
Bowlby Claude 12/24/1997 9/30/1943 11/8/1945 United States Navy World War II 6_36_S_4
Meidam Miles R. 12/28/1997 3/30/1943 6/10/1943 United States Army World War II R_31_X_8
Rogers Richard E. 12/29/1997 1/6/1951 1/6/1954 United States Air Force Korean War O_55_X_5
Reuss James E. 2/6/1998 12/9/1942 2/14/1946 United States Army World War II R_34_X_12
Rothe Eugene G. 2/18/1998 9/8/1943 3/19/1946 United States Navy World War II 15_16_X_7
Bermann Harold 2/22/1998 World War II 23_35_S_7
Smith Fredrick 2/23/1998 8/10/1948 8/15/1952 United States Army Korean War 22_31_X_12
Fries John M. 2/25/1998 10/31/1962 10/28/1966 United States Air Force Peace Time M_62_X_92



Greselin Geno 3/3/1998 7/13/1942 5/25/1945 United States Army World War II 27_48_X_11
Kuntsman Richard 3/12/1998 United States Navy 10_57_X_5
Macklin Wilmot F. 3/12/1998 World War II 34_8_N_3
Werth Robert L. 3/18/1998 United States Navy World War II 5_31_X_12
Kampo Alex F. 3/19/1998 10/15/1940 7/13/1945 United States Army World War II 17_2_S_9
Downer Arthur B. 4/7/1998 World War II R_27_X_12
Tawter Joseph T. 4/11/1998 United States Navy World War II 19_15_W_2
Craig Clinton Arthur 4/28/1998 6/13/1940 6/21/1945 United States Army World War II M_48_X_63
Kranz Douglas A. 5/24/1998 3/24/1943 12/1/1945 United States Army World War II 17_17_X_9
Fink Robert H. 5/27/1998 2/18/1957 1/29/1960 United States Army Korean War M_56_X_64
Frederick Wilbert J. 5/30/1998 12/28/1942 12/20/1945 United States Army World War II 18_2_S_5
DeShaney Walter M. 6/3/1998 3/14/1945 10/30/1946 United States Army World War II 25_39_S_3
Gibson Wm. (Bill) 6/13/1998 10/29/1959 9/30/1960 United States Air Force Peace Time 9_47_X_9
Balestrieri Jerome 6/17/1998 12/5/1942 2/12/1946 United States Army World War II S_65_X_3
Conard Ralph J. 6/30/1998 8/6/1941 10/8/1945 United States Army World War II S_7_X_9
Jesser Eugene A. 7/17/1998 United States Army V_30_X_8
Elseth Jeanette E. 8/8/1998 4/20/1944 2/20/1946 United States Navy World War II 23_33_N_3
Giebisch Herbert 8/12/1998 1/19/1942 10/12/1945 United States Army World War II 32_10_S_5
Reitz Herbert 8/30/1998 34_26_S_8
Radtke Paul A. 9/10/1998 11/15/1943 4/29/1946 United States Army World War II P_58_S_4
Fahrenkrug Carl F. 9/15/1998 United States Army Korean War S_34_X_3
Stein John D. 9/29/1998 United States Air Force World War II MAUS_201_5_F
Tesch Lester E. 9/30/1998 United States Army World War II MAUS_104_4_C
Johnson Donald  D. 10/1/1998 1/26/1956 11/22/1957 United States Navy Peace Time M_56_X_65
Everson Sr. Harold W. 1/13/1999 United States Air Force World War II 15_23_N_5
Quigg Jr. Edward C. 1/14/1999 3/8/1943 10/18/1945 United States Army Corpl. World War II 27_37_X_12
Barnard Allan L. 1/15/1999 8/4/1955 8/1/1958 United States Army Peace Time M_56_X_67
Calahan John F. 1/17/1999 12/17/1943 5/3/1946 United States Navy World War II MAUS_201_8_G
Kerrigan Earl J. 1/21/1999 1/19/1942 12/4/1945 United States Army World War II M_62_X_91
Kuck Carlton E  Sr. 2/3/1999 11/7/1942 1/24/1946 United States Army World War II 29_33_X_5
Schinderle Arthur J. 2/11/1999 10/8/1942 11/24/1945 United States Air Force World War II M_64_X_68
Grogan Jerome J. 3/9/1999 9/25/1951 6/4/1953 United States Army Korean War 33_46_X_3
De Bruin Harold F. 3/20/1999 7/6/1945 8/17/1945 United States Army World War II O_92_X_9
Noffke Roy O. 3/21/1999 9/9/1942 9/30/1945 United States Army World War I MAUS_202_7_G
Brehmer Leroy E. 4/1/1999 1/19/1943 12/30/1945 United States Army World War II 27_44_X_2
Nitzbond Eugene J. 4/4/1999 11/15/1943 3/28/1946 United States Army World War II 6_52_X_9
Tidwell Charles E. 4/9/1999 2/22/1945 11/30/1946 United States Army World War II 4_20_X_2
Chern Diomed M. 5/1/1999 7/3/1943 2/23/1946 United States Army World War II 28_13_X_6
Buchanan Merlin G. 5/3/1999 3/16/1944 3/6/1945 United States Army World War II P_15_X_10
Peterson Ralph 6/21/1999 8/21/1940 5/31/1944 United States Army World War II M_76_X_8
Molling Joseph J. 6/27/1999 3/14/1941 10/30/1945 United States Army World War II 29_66_X_6
Gottschalk Donald L 7/19/1999 7/29/1964 9/19/1967 United States Army VietNam War P_19_X_11
Bellrichard Andrew A. 7/25/1999 3/8/1957 4/23/1962 United States Army Peace Time M_64_X_69



Brokaw Norman E. Jr. 7/26/1999 United States Marine Corps World War II 2_42_X_9
Bamke Neil P. 8/6/1999 12/21/1945 11/2/1947 United States Navy World War II 3_2_X_12
De Shaney June E. 8/8/1999 9/26/1942 11/27/1945 United States Army World War II 25_38_S_4
Timm Earl J. 8/19/1999 2/21/1941 10/3/1945 United States Army World War II 22_20_X_12
Reynolds Laurence W. 9/3/1999 2/15/1943 12/5/1945 United States Army World War II S_8_X_7
Smith Paul 9/6/1999 5/26/1944 9/13/1944 United States Army World War II D_46_X_4
Gilbertson Gordon 9/13/1999 1/13/1942 11/30/1945 United States Army World War II 15_13_N_2
Laabs Mahlon W. 10/11/1999 10/31/1941 9/3/1945 United States Army World War II I_16_X_11
Hendricks Robt. J 10/13/1999 6/16/1943 1/18/1946 United States Navy World War II 23_27_S_4
Miotke George C. 11/14/1999 7/5/1943 12/22/1945 United States Navy World War II 14_28_X_10
Prink Verne E. 11/29/1999 5/27/1942 2/18/1946 United States Air Force World War II 17_36_X_8
LaRocco John T. 12/11/1999 4/1/1943 2/26/1946 United States Army World War II 3_6_X_10
Laemmrich Robet P. 12/19/1999 10/13/1958 10/12/1962 United States Navy Peace Time 33_22_X_4
Horn Glenn Joseph 12/26/1999 1/11/1951 10/7/1959 United States Army Korean War 29_18_X_8
Muenster Lester E. 12/30/1999 9/26/1942 12/4/1943 United States Air Force World War II 18_22_X_6
Kutler Fred W. 1/1/2000 08/01/1862 07/02/1865 United States Army Civil War D_74_X_5
Bergner Robert B. 1/8/2000 9/24/1969 5/2/1971 United States Army VietNam War M_2_N_4
Ryan Francis D. 1/10/2000 United States Army Korean War MAUS_201_3_E
Yost Donald E. 1/12/2000 United States Navy World War II 28_19_X_4
Missling Ralph J. 1/16/2000 2/24/1943 12/1/1945 United States Air Force World War II 33_53_X_2
Standiford Justin H. 2/1/2000 10/2/1946 4/1/1948 United States Army World War II 27_33_X_4
Hehne Mildred L. 2/27/2000 11/9/1918 11/5/1920 United States Army World War I F_20_W_6
Judge Basil T. Sr. 3/4/2000 9/30/1946 7/21/1949 United States Air Force World War II and Korean WarM_64_X_70
Schmitz Richard R. 3/10/2000 7/1/1944 6/30/1947 United States Navy World War II P_39_X_10
Giuliana Joseph Chas. 3/27/2000 9/11/1947 9/10/1951 United States Marine Corps Korean War 19_2_E_6
Arenz Donald E. 3/29/2000 11/25/1941 3/5/1943 United States Army World War II 32_26_X_1
Kuehnl John 4/23/2000 6/17/1969 12/22/1971 United States Army Korean War and VietNam War34_22_X_6
Wilson James A. 4/27/2000 Korean War MAUS_102_3_D
Benishek Carl F. 5/13/2000 7/31/1964 9/29/1965 United States Army VietNam War 27_33_X_7
Kretzschmar Hanns O. 5/15/2000 2/15/1955 10/31/1978 United States Navy VietNam War V_20_X_2
Christensen Carlyen  H. 6/3/2000 7/22/1942 11/2/1943 United States Army World War II M_78_X_112
Huth Elton C. 7/3/2000 2/25/1953 2/18/1955 United States Army Korean War 12_70_E_3
LaBorde Eugene F. 7/18/2000 5/21/1942 12/20/1945 United States Army World War II E_63_X_8
Murray Kenneth L. 7/19/2000 1/29/1940 11/2/1945 United States Army World War II 14_78_E_5
Radtke Clarence C. W. 8/4/2000 1/29/1945 10/24/1946 United States Army World War II 17_41_X_6
Much Richard J. 8/20/2000 10/18/1972 10/12/1974 United States Army VietNam War P_59_X_3
Krynock Robert C. Sr. 8/22/2000 7/29/1948 10/15/1948 United States Marine Corps Peace Time 3_3_X_4
Laabs Marguerite 8/26/2000 11/22/1944 9/27/1945 United States Army World War II I_16_X_12
Haase Roy Reynold 8/28/2000 7/29/1941 5/20/1945 United States Army World War II 22_20_X_10
Dilley Darrell G. 10/1/2000 2/25/1955 12/9/1963 United States Air Force Peace Time 28_16_N_8
Onkels Melvin K. 10/30/2000 United States Army Korean War MAUS_104_3_E
Pompa Harold G. 11/3/2000 1/4/1943 1/8/1946 United States Air Force World War II 4_1_X_1
Murray Gordon James 11/22/2000 6/21/1971 6/20/1975 United States Air Force VietNam War M_62_X_89



Smith Carl W. 11/27/2000 3/24/1943 5/8/1945 United States Army World War II 10_63_E_6
Pierce Kenneth W. 12/10/2000 9/28/1942 11/23/1946 United States Navy World War II L_11_X_5
Bradley Everett J. 1/3/2001 10/16/1942 12/9/1945 United States Army World War II 7_13_X_1
Gass Orville 1/10/2001 5/27/1949 11/10/1952 United States Army Korean War 22_35_X_11
Cutshall Hudson W. 1/12/2001 1/31/1955 9/17/1958 United States Air Force Korean War M_70_X_88
Schuck Pearl 1/12/2001 6/29/1945 7/10/1946 United States Navy World War II 22_73_S_3
Jansen Edward C. 1/13/2001 1/4/1943 3/4/1946 United States Army World War II 25_15_N_6
Hartel John F. 2/19/2001 10/2/1940 12/3/1945 United States Army TSGT World War II M_79_X_115
Gitter Richard E. 3/7/2001 9/19/1967 8/15/1971 United States Air Force VietNam War 19_40_S_11
Beyer Vernon M. 3/29/2001 12/13/1949 12/12/1953 United States Air Force Korean War 27_32_X_4
Green John T. 4/7/2001 9/9/1942 10/14/1945 United States Army World War II 22_39_X_3
Kahler Harvey I. 4/20/2001 17_74_W_3
Clark Dean E. 5/3/2001 9/12/1960 9/11/1962 United States Army Peace Time V_27_X_4
Gutche Melvin E. 5/9/2001 United States Navy World War II 29_42_SW_5
Sample Charles 5/15/2001 1/4/1943 11/1/1945 United States Army World War II D_10_X_12
Roberts John David 5/20/2001 United States Army World War II 2_33_X_1
Morgan Bernard R. 5/28/2001 4/3/1945 7/30/1946 United States Army PFC World War II 22_57_S_6
Jensen Arthur R. Bob 6/4/2001 5/15/1947 5/15/1947 United States Army World War II 33_10_X_8
Pozolinski Joseph H. 7/2/2001 3/6/1946 3/25/1947 United States Army World War II M_70_X_84
Stelzer George 7/15/2001 1/6/1954 12/24/1955 United States Army Korean War P_35_X_8
Immel Norman W. 7/24/2001 7/18/1952 7/16/1954 United States Army Korean War MAUS_104_4_D
Slomski Alvin T. 8/19/2001 9/23/1940 8/18/1945 United States Army World War II 7_7_X_1
Hulbert Clyde Ira 9/14/2001 9/16/1947 9/9/1949 United States Army Korean War O_87_E_5
Williams Richard G. 11/8/2001 1/13/1949 12/1/1952 United States Army Korean War M_56_X_66
Steward Rodger E. 11/12/2001 10/15/1961 8/1/1962 United States Army Peace Time 3_33_X_10
Weisshahn Clifford F 11/17/2001 5/31/1951 5/24/1955 United States Navy Korean War P_26_W_2
Wege Roger 12/7/2001 1/30/1952 1/6/1954 United States Army Korean War 7_5_X_7
Springer Kenneth W. 12/17/2001 6/20/1946 4/16/1948 United States Navy World War II MAUS_101_3_G
Kugel James M. 1/13/2002 6/4/1945 8/19/1946 United States Navy World War II D_46A_X_1
Yingling Francis H. 2/12/2002 United States Marine Corps 32_10_S_3
Ecker Robert F 2/24/2002 United States Army World War II 29_49_X_8
Kleinhans Theodore J. Rev 2/27/2002 United States Air Force Korean War and VietNam WarL_9_X_3
Bauer Clifford A. 3/19/2002 United States Air Force World War II 17_48_X_8
Horn Henry H. Jr. 4/3/2002 11/10/1941 10/21/1945 United States Army World War II MAUS_102_4_H
Wundrow Wilbert Len 5/6/2002 6/26/1944 7/28/1944 United States Army World War II 15_10_X_7
Maves Robert 5/11/2002 11/13/1942 10/9/1945 United States Navy World War II T_39 &amp; 40_X_13
Barney Milo Chas. 5/22/2002 5/16/1934 5/1/1939 United States Marine Corps World War I P_35_X_10
Morris John P. 6/3/2002 9/12/1945 2/6/1946 United States Army World War II 4_39_X_16
Calto George Wm. 6/5/2002 5/29/1943 3/3/1946 United States Army World War II MAUS_104_6_I
Wiegand Clara M. 6/11/2002 12/28/1942 3/31/1946 United States Army World War II 22_43_S_4
Meagher William D. 6/17/2002 United States Army World War II P_44_X_5
Buss George J. 6/22/2002 1/23/1951 5/3/1974 US Army and Air Force Korean War and VietNam WarS_28_X_9
Vaughn Russell A. 7/11/2002 4/5/1941 4/5/1946 United States Coast Guard World War II S_7_X_1



Rupiper Donald J. 7/13/2002 3/15/1950 10/9/1953 United States Navy Korean War M_72_X_74
Krueger John H. 7/15/2002 2/10/1966 1/21/1968 United States Army VietNam War 3_16_S_6
Carlson Harold P. 7/17/2002 4/3/1942 10/12/1945 United States Navy World War II S_9_X_5
Holub Sylvester G. 7/20/2002 7/20/1942 11/30/1945 United States Army World War II S_3_X_2
Steudel John D. 8/3/2002 9/9/1942 11/30/1945 United States Navy World War II 3_27_X_5
Karrow Herbert H. 8/15/2002 2/4/1942 2/28/1945 United States Coast Guard World War II 29_42_NW_5
Swanson Robert L. 8/15/2002 11/26/1957 11/16/1961 United States Navy Peace Time V_34_X_4
Ince Frank 8/23/2002 9/7/1950 9/30/1966 United States Army World War II and Korean WarM_78_X_83
Scott Bruce Robt. 9/2/2002 8/2/1943 5/15/1946 United States Army World War II L_9_X_7
Kiar Robert T. 9/23/2002 6/7/1942 9/18/1945 United States Army World War II M_80_X_77
DeLong Donald V. 9/30/2002 3/26/1951 3/3/1953 United States Army Korean War M_72_X_76
Eggert Francis R. 10/16/2002 6/14/1945 12/11/1945 United States Army World War II 19_1_W_8
Timm Jane A. 10/16/2002 United States Army VietNam War MAUS_104_6_J
Grootemont John M. 11/22/2002 United States Air Force World War II P_22_X_11
Schulze Willard R. 12/3/2002 5/14/1945 8/15/1945 United States Marine Corps World War II 22_65_S_4
Treiber David A. 12/23/2002 7/14/1956 12/20/1956 United States Army Peace Time M_2_N_6
Mann Marie M. 1/6/2003 United States Navy World War II 29_66_X_8
Noyes Russell L. Jr. 1/6/2003 United States Navy Korean War S_9_X_7
Whitcomb Robert T. 1/13/2003 World War II P_35_X_12A
Knuijt Jeffery J 2/20/2003 32_8_X_5
Tedford Clinton S. 3/18/2003 10/21/1958 7/21/1961 United States Army Peace Time P_27_X_11
Gosz Clarence 3/23/2003 11/10/1941 11/10/1945 United States Army World War II L_12_X_7
Ferron Willard P. 3/26/2003 7/8/1943 2/13/1946 United States Army World War II 33_50_X_1
Gregory Eleanor E. 4/4/2003 World War II 23_31_S_6
Bergan Robert L. 4/8/2003 12/7/1951 12/4/1955 United States Air Force Korean War 32_15_X_6
Stadler Marvin W. 4/27/2003 12/10/1958 3/6/1962 United States Army World War II P_21_X_1
Konrad Dean P. 5/7/2003 10/22/1952 6/30/1953 United States Army Korean War 6_4_X_8
Ingenthron Richard J. 6/22/2003 10/25/1946 4/1/1948 United States Army World War II 7_5_X_3
Talbot Marvyn A. 7/7/2003 1/13/1943 1/24/1946 United States Army World War II 3_10_X_4
Dennis Philip Leo 7/10/2003 2/2/1961 1/26/1965 United States Air Force VietNam War 22_48_X_3A
Peot Marjorie J. 7/14/2003 1/10/1944 12/3/1945 United States Marine Corps World War II 14_79_X_2
Norman Lawrence T. 8/6/2003 6/27/1941 6/26/1946 United States Army World War II 15_10_X_5
Hoffman Harry K. Sr. 9/5/2003 8/10/1948 8/12/1952 United States Air Force Korean War M_78_X_108
Gasper Merton A. 9/22/2003 11/18/1942 3/22/1944 United States Army Cpl. World War II 32_27_X_2
Miller Carlton H. 9/28/2003 United States Army Korean War and VietNam War15_31_X_6
Schultz Junior H. 10/13/2003 12/12/1942 10/13/1946 United States Navy World War II 29_40_S_5
Petraske Glenn 10/26/2003 United States Army World War II D_62_X_14
Haroski John 11/18/2003 33_49_S_2
Haufschildt Leroy 12/1/2003 1/11/1943 1/10/1946 United States Army World War II 22_45_X_1
Brew David L. 12/12/2003 United States Coast Guard Korean War 3_10_X_6
Glaser Dwain R. 12/16/2003 4/15/1944 11/10/1945 United States Air Force World War II 1_29_E_10
Alexander Harold J. 1/19/2004 United States Army World War II V_28_X_7
Bahr Willian H. 2/8/2004 United States Marine Corps Korean War M_76_X_12



Wilfer Michael J. 2/28/2004 7/1/1969 5/4/1973 United States Air Force VietNam War MAUS_102_3_L
Schroeder Clifford A. 3/4/2004 3/18/1960 3/24/1961 United States Army Peace Time 4_22_X_8
Engelland Arthur H. 3/26/2004 1/18/1944 2/12/1946 United States Army World War II 6_65_N_2
Learman Anthony E. 3/29/2004 United States Navy VietNam and Desert StormP_47_X_6
Barney Steven C. 4/13/2004 3/19/1965 1/12/1970 United States Marine Corps VietNam War M_78_X_81
Klarner Ervin W. 5/27/2004 10/14/1943 11/8/1945 United States Army World War II 23_27_S_5
Elmer Wayne F. 5/30/2004 4/25/1960 5/24/1962 United States Army Peace Time S_53_X_13
Christianson Lewis M. 7/4/2004 D_4_X_5
Nelis James H. Sr. 7/26/2004 1/28/1957 1/27/1959 United States Army Peace Time T_35_X_11
Wunderlich Lyle W. 8/1/2004 9/24/1942 3/11/1946 United States Marine Corps World War II R_38_X_3
Kamasky Mary M. 8/3/2004 3/15/1945 1/11/1946 United States Army World War II M_64_X_71
Kimball Thomas E. 8/3/2004 4/9/1945 4/11/1949 United States Navy World War II 17_19_X_6
Carlson Clarence D. 8/24/2004 4/3/1942 10/12/1945 United States Army World War II M_78_X_29
Hand Norman L. 8/30/2004 9/10/1954 8/30/1956 United States Army Korean War 32_1_X_5
Woldt Gilbert W. 9/19/2004 10/26/1942 10/13/1945 United States Army World War II L_59_X_12
Janda Rudolph Rudy 10/23/2004 United States Marine Corps Korean War L_29_N_8
Hogenson John R. 11/3/2004 7/16/1952 7/15/1956 United States Marine Corps Korean War D_4_X_8
Jones Billie 11/25/2004 United States Navy World War II G_85_X_5
Driessen Leo A. 12/9/2004 2/22/1945 12/14/1946 United States Army World War II 25_40_X_1
Fischer   Cyril J. 12/24/2004 9/10/1958 8/9/1961 United States Army Korean War 32_15_X_11
Ruth William L. 12/25/2004 6/2/1964 5/14/1968 United States Army VietNam War M_78_X_109
VanLinn Edward J. 1/25/2005 9/19/1946 2/7/1948 United States Air Force Korean War 19_44_X_5
Gurnee Franklin S. 2/11/2005 United States Navy D_72_X_9
Tradewell Jean 2/18/2005 10/9/1944 2/8/1946 United States Navy World War II R_36_X_10
Getsfried Leo P. 2/21/2005 12/30/1941 2/16/1945 United States Army World War II 25_31_NW_5
Friedwald George B. 3/5/2005 2/20/1942 9/5/1945 United States Army World War II S_5_X_13
Barth Kenneth 3/18/2005 2/25/1953 2/24/1955 United States Army Korean War 3_15_S_3
Spencer Dorothy 3/24/2005 United States Marine Corps H_6_X_6
Speel Francis L. 3/26/2005 United States Army World War II 27_44_X_11
Downey Herbert F. 3/30/2005 3/2/1943 2/4/1946 United States Marine Corps World War II 26_17_X_12
Keane Elizabeth 4/26/2005 United States Air Force 16_16_S_7
Dhein Neil Edward 5/11/2005 8/31/1942 10/26/1945 United States Air Force World War II 27_12_X_12
Powell Duane L. 5/31/2005 7/21/1965 7/20/1967 United States Army VietNam War MAUS_103_3_B
Armstrong Thomas M. 6/14/2005 8/31/1962 8/30/1965 United States Army VietNam War 14_13_X_4
Schmidli Emil H. H. Jr. 6/18/2005 6/13/1942 2/5/1946 United States Army World War II 8_12_E_10
Losse Howard H. 6/28/2005 5/28/1941 6/3/1945 United States Army World War II 33_47_X_15
Czechowicz Dennis S. 7/19/2005 4/19/1971 4/18/1973 United States Army VietNam War L_29_N_7
Cumber Charles S. 9/25/2005 World War II 28_40_X_2
Lowery Jaime M. 10/5/2005 United States Army M_48_X_3A
Wilbur Russell W. 10/15/2005 8/30/1951 8/20/1955 Royal Air Force Korean War 27_11_X_8
Haferbecker Howard 11/27/2005 2/15/1949 4/30/1966 United States Army World War II and Korean War33_50_X_3
Wunderlich Michael 1/4/2006 M_78_X_111
Vinci Harold 1/25/2006 3/22/1944 7/9/1946 United States Navy World War II M_72_X_75



Hameister William C. 2/25/2006 United States Army Korean War 15_20_X_5
Crapeau Philip G. 3/27/2006 2/10/1943 3/9/1946 United States Air Force 1st Lt. World War II and Korean War28_41_X_4
Ester Leland 4/13/2006 United States Army Korean War 5_32_X_21
Ohler Richard E 4/16/2006 VietNam War 32_19_N_2
Wegenke George D. 4/26/2006 5/22/1942 11/12/1945 Royal Air Force World War II N_70_X_4
Borden Keith F. 5/22/2006 United States Navy Korean War 5_83A_X_2
Miller Robert E. 5/22/2006 United States Army M_41_W_12
Doire Jr. George V. 6/3/2006 10/27/1972 6/8/1976 United States Air Force VietNam War 33_18_X_3
Schabo Earl W. 6/24/2006 United States Army World War II 17_106_S_3
Gmeiner Russell L. 7/12/2006 16_54_N_6
Bertrand Steven R. 7/14/2006 9/30/1971 8/8/1978 United States Army VietNam War M_47_X_101
Dresang David L. 8/7/2006 United States Air Force Korean War and VietNam War33_18_X_6
Pommerenke Walter J 8/21/2006 United States Army World War II 15_36_X_6
Kiser Kenneth 9/9/2006 United States Air Force 27_32_X_8
Dutton Arthur H. 9/21/2006 2/7/1943 11/1/1948 United States Army World War II N_76.5_X_6
Brophy James R. 10/22/2006 United States Navy Korean War C_7_X_6
Glass John J. 12/9/2006 12/3/1952 12/2/1954 United States Army Korean War 22_38_X_7
Krause Arthur R. 12/12/2006 United States Navy World War II P_32_X_3
Waugus Clyde W. 12/13/2006 10/15/1940 3/23/1946 United States Army World War II 6_32_X_5
Newling Maurice 12/22/2006 11/23/1942 2/7/1946 United States Army World War II M_47_X_103
Heiges Howard M. 1/2/2007 United States Army World War II 33_19_X_11
McSorley Jeffrey J. 1/22/2007 5/13/1969 5/1/1971 United States Army VietNam War V_25_X_14
Maynard William 2/5/2007 United States Air Force World War II 17_79_X_4
Ray David A. 2/15/2007 7/8/1952 1/14/1955 United States Navy World War II and Korean War19_16_W_5
Nagan Robert F. 2/18/2007 World War II 33_14_X_10
Lyman Gerald H. 2/27/2007 2/2/1950 2/2/1953 United States Army Korean War D_46_X_1
Kuenzli Quentin D. 3/5/2007 World War II S_19_X_3
Crowe Pat M. 3/12/2007 10/26/1965 10/31/1985 United States Army VietNam War 6_40_X_4
Wendt Wilburn E. 3/23/2007 World War II S_3_X_6
Sheridan Neil P. 5/3/2007 3/24/1951 3/25/1952 United States Marine Corps Korean War 19_46_X_13
Brandt David L. 5/7/2007 1/18/1952 1/17/1956 United States Air Force Korean War M_47_X_105
Chapman Charles D. 5/7/2007 9/3/1942 11/3/1945 Royal Air Force World War II P_45_X_5
Ritchie Garrett B. 5/8/2007 12/12/1941 9/27/1945 United States Army World War II 33_19_X_9
Zibolsky Bernhart C. 5/11/2007 9/29/1944 7/13/1946 United States Navy World War II 3_4_X_9
Paul William L. 5/13/2007 United States Army 34_26_S_3
Wiersema Jim A. 5/20/2007 United States Air Force 23_10_X_4
Rahn Carl D. 5/29/2007 World War II 3_27_X_14
Azzi Frank 6/10/2007 United States Marine Corps World War II MAUS_201_3_B
Klahorst Jr. Edward A. 6/12/2007 United States Army World War II 33_25_X_3
Johnson Robert E. 6/17/2007 United States Army World War II 29_65_E_3
Neimuth Karl P. 7/25/2007 7/10/1958 7/9/1962 United States Air Force World War II and Korean War28_33_X_6
Schleis Edward L. 8/5/2007 World War II I_9_W_4
Losselyong Donald F. 8/19/2007 United States Marine Corps Korean War 32_13_X_11



Hollenback Jerome N. 8/24/2007 9/4/1946 12/9/1947 United States Army World War II M_47_X_106
McGuire Jr. Howard R. 9/25/2007 United States Navy World War II 25_23_X_2
Mitchler Sr. Gerald Geo. 11/4/2007 10/23/1969 6/30/1972 United States Air Force World War II and Korean WarM_47_X_107
Swamp Gordon L. 11/23/2007 United States Air Force World War II H_33_S_5
Annen Sr. Harold W. 12/5/2007 United States Air Force Korean War and VietNam WarMAUS_103_3_G
Rehbein George R. 1/5/2008 6/5/1959 6/7/1960 United States Air Force Korean War 19_38_S_11
Herrmann Donald M. Sr. 1/17/2008 United States Air Force 16_19_S_3
Stierman Paul T. 1/24/2008 2/19/1970 9/24/1971 United States Army SP4 VietNam War M_49_X_155
Vanden Berg Elmer J. 1/27/2008 United States Navy World War II 29_32_SW_11
Barlow Raymond C. 2/2/2008 9/14/1961 3/30/1962 United States Air Force VietNam War V_20_X_9
Gundlach Audrey R. 2/22/2008 5/24/1944 4/7/1950 United States Navy World War II M_70_X_85
Schroeder Carlton J. 2/29/2008 United States Navy Korean War 22_73_S_1
Peotter Gilbert E. 3/17/2008 7/28/1944 8/21/1946 United States Air Force Cpl. World War II 32_29_X_7
Koletzke Dean R. 3/18/2008 United States Army World War II 28_2_N_3
Rydell Edward A. 4/14/2008 World War II 27_18_X_3
Wichman Kenneth E. 5/2/2008 7/15/1960 7/13/1962 United States Army SP4 VietNam War 25_27_N_9
Cook  Jr. Lawrence S. 5/22/2008 6/23/1952 6/22/1955 United States Army CPL Korean War 4_41_X_1
Knauf Charles F.  Dr. 6/3/2008 United States Army World War II S_52_X_1
Wakeland George 6/3/2008 8/27/1962 8/26/1964 United States Army SP4 VietNam War 27_46_X_6
Spychalla Leonard J. 6/7/2008 1/5/1944 5/18/1946 United States Air Force PFC World War II 18_50_X_14
Carnes F. Clark 6/25/2008 5/1/1943 1/19/1945 United States Navy PT Boat CaptainWorld War II 2_6_X_21
Maloney Francis D. 6/25/2008 1/9/1951 12/27/1954 Royal Air Force SSGT Korean War M_79_X_116
Hough Shannon L. 7/5/2008 6/14/1994 6/24/2005 United States Army SPC M_69_X_9
Zuhlke Raymond J. 8/17/2008 United States Marine Corps VietNam War 22_50_S_6
Fischer   Donald C. 9/12/2008 United States Air Force World War II 10_65_X_6
Melzer Willilam G. 10/13/2008 United States Navy Korean War MAUS_104_2_F
Goman Helen 10/15/2008 4/26/1943 1/14/1946 United States Navy PM2C World War II 9_80_X_3
Dorschner Roger F. 11/12/2008 4/6/1955 4/5/1957 United States Army SP3 17_28_S_6
Meltz Lawrence L. 11/17/2008 United States Air Force World War II 22_87_X_7
Recker David R. 12/2/2008 7/12/1965 4/30/1969 United States Marine Corps SGT &amp; 1SGVietNam War 19_36_X_11
Kamasky Edmund J. 12/10/2008 3/22/1944 7/9/1946 United States Navy World War II M_72_X_72
Hrdlick Richard J. 1/20/2009 United States Army World War II O_8_X_4
Stapel Carl A. 2/5/2009 United States Navy World War II 33_39_X_9
Brown James E. 2/10/2009 3/30/1959 3/29/1962 United States Navy Peace Time 5_21_X_2
Vandenhoy Jr. Richard J. 3/13/2009 3_17_X_7
Weller John F. 4/3/2009 United States Army World War II P_45_X_10
Kolosso Sr. Jerome E. 4/11/2009 United States Army C_31_X_15
Sannes Kenneth E. 5/25/2009 United States Navy World War II O_64_X_4
Lillge Melvin R. 6/2/2009 United States Navy World War II L_60_X_1
Larsen LaVerne R. 6/14/2009 United States Air Force Korean War and VietNam War22_24_X_5
Strehmel John D. 6/30/2009 8/25/1954 8/24/1956 United States Army Korean War M_66_X_14
Chavlovich Stephen 7/16/2009 United States Army Korean War 28_44_X_2
Lange Eugene F. 8/19/2009 United States Navy World War I 17_89_S_2



Field Walter  F. 9/2/2009 6/1/1953 6/1/1955 United States Navy Korean War MAUS_202_2_A
Speilmann Siegried 9/15/2009 United States Air Force 3_33_X_12
Vanden Boogaard Elmer J. 10/2/2009 S_15_X_5
Goldgar Bertrand A. 10/14/2009 United States Army Korean War S_31_X_7
Stricker Nicholas H. 10/22/2009 4/9/1964 10/17/1966 United States Army PFC VietNam and Desert StormM_41_W_6
Brannan William 10/27/2009 United States Navy SM 1st. ClassWorld War II S_13_W_6
Keddell Kenneth R. 11/1/2009 National Guard 18_3_X_4
Kuebler John I 11/3/2009 United States Navy World War II MAUS_103_5_K
King Ronald L. 11/23/2009 United States Coast Guard VietNam War 3_7_X_11
Boettcher Adelbert L. 12/2/2009 United States Army World War II 32_28_X_5
Craven Daniel H. 12/7/2009 United States Air Force VietNam War M_80_X_78
Wagner Ellde I 12/8/2009 United States Army World War II 25_44_S_4
Frazier Drew C. 12/19/2009 4/2/1945 7/16/1946 United States Army TEC5 World War II M_80_X_120
Davis Clyde R. 1/22/2010 2/7/1964 2/5/1967 United States Navy VietNam War 4_38_X_10
Bruss Llyod 1/29/2010 United States Coast Guard MAUS_101_6_E
Gabert Stanley R. 2/1/2010 United States Navy S_32_X_1
Hidde Roland "Jack" 2/11/2010 Korean War V_22_X_5
Clarke James A. 2/13/2010 United States Navy V_33_X_13
Lingelbach Charles J. 2/27/2010 3/8/1942 3/3/1946 United States Air Force Lt. Col World War II V_31_X_7
Wiegand Frank H. 2/27/2010 United States Army World War II 22_43_S_3
Hoffman Kenneth B. 3/8/2010 United States Navy World War II 34_12_N_5
Roesken Juergen H. 3/11/2010 United States Navy quatermasterVietNam War N_97_X_4
Dorchester Daniel E. 3/19/2010 33_31_X_1
Wallis Donald C. 3/21/2010 United States Marine Corps World War II 3_10_X_3
Falk Regina V. 3/25/2010 5/18/1944 2/18/1946 United States Navy PR3C World War II L_51_X_5
Wilber Marion B. 4/20/2010 United States Army Korean War 5_53_X_3
Timm Jr. Marvin W. 5/2/2010 United States Army VietNam War MAUS_104_6_J
Costello Philip A. 5/24/2010 United States Army 3_39_X_9
Claypool Blaine W. 6/20/2010 United States Army World War II 4_27_X_12
Deltour Richard M. 6/25/2010 8/13/1968 8/12/1970 United States Army SP4 VietNam War 22_47_X_12
Ernst Delbert 6/25/2010 United States Navy World War II MAUS_104_5_G
Goodman Solomon 6/26/2010 United States Army World War II M_78_X_110
Porter James E. 7/3/2010 United States Navy World War II D_49_X_8
Hansen Wayne F. 7/19/2010 United States Marine Corps World War II C_12_X_4
Bartelt James A. 8/9/2010 United States Army Korean War 33_3_X_11
Holeton Joseph R. 8/30/2010 United States Air Force Korean War 32_8_X_4
Cotter James C. 9/11/2010 33_6_X_3
DeBruin Henry P. 10/14/2010 United States Marine Corps Korean War O_92_X_5
Ehrhardt Earl W. 10/22/2010 United States Army L_76_X_8
Hoppe Earl 10/27/2010 United States Army World War II D_34_X_11
Dyer John D. 11/25/2010 United States Army World War II MAUS_201_2_C
Reinke Richard W. 12/23/2010 1/11/1952 1/12/1954 United States Army Pvt. 1st. CLassKorean War 25_2_X_8
Zimmerman Robert 3/26/2011 United States Navy VietNam War N_42_W_4



Sheldon Willard R. 4/14/2011 United States Navy World War II MAUS_104_3_A
Hermanson Matthew D. 4/28/2011 United States Army SSG S_19_X_7
Behl Gerald H. 4/29/2011 6/26/1944 7/5/1946 United States Navy PM2C World War II 22_64_X_12
Hardy Norbert 5/22/2011 12_70_W_7
Schuck Kenneth J. 6/10/2011 United States Air Force World War II 22_73_S_2
Tischer Kenneth W. 7/1/2011 United States Marine Corps VietNam and Desert Storm19_4_W_3
Langdon Duane C. 8/2/2011 United States Army MSGT World War II 22_33_X_9
Miller Wilbur 8/4/2011 United States Army World War II 14_73_X_6
DuVall   Jr. Kenneth K. 8/23/2011 United States Navy Korean War 3_4_X_2
Vail John 9/26/2011 United States Army World War II MAUS_202_2_F
Baumler John L. 10/8/2011 6/27/1946 5/4/1948 United States Navy World War II 6_63_N_12
Duvernay Ronald W. 10/13/2011 United States Navy VietNam War P_39_X_1
Keane Keith 10/13/2011 United States Army 16_16_S_7
Clanton John 10/19/2011 United States Air Force Korean War 3_7_X_9
Manske Clifford R. 10/25/2011 United States Air Force World War II 7_7_X_4
Britton Gene E. 11/10/2011 United States Army Korean War MAUS_101_6_B
Zarins Gunars 11/24/2011 1/1/1954 1/1/1956 United States Army Korean War 32_23_X_5
Martell Michael 12/3/2011 5/28/1986 United States Army 32_14_X_6
Warren Dwight D. 12/4/2011 United States Army World War II and Korean War7_11_X_4
Coakley Robert 12/7/2011 United States Navy Korean War M_78_X_114
Staedt Thomas 12/9/2011 United States Air Force Korean War MAUS_102_1_A
Copper David 12/21/2011 United States Army Korean War 6_14_E_5
Sherry William C 1/10/2012 United States Army World War I N_35_E_6
Busch Edward J. 1/28/2012 United States Army Korean War 15_36_X_8
Johnson Robert W. 2/16/2012 United States Navy Lt. Jr. GradeWorld War II R_26_X_10
Decleene Bernard J. 3/27/2012 National Guard MAUS_102_3_I
Brown Gordon A. 4/13/2012 United States Army World War II 25_21_S_2
Mitala Joseph 5/18/2012 United States Navy MAUS_102_6_E
Goman Robert 5/19/2012 World War II and Korean War9_80_X_3
Thatcher Stanley 6/4/2012 United States Navy 28_4_X_1
Ruwoldt John 6/26/2012 United States Army VietNam War 29_27_X_7
Bruchs Ira 7/12/2012 United States Army 18_25_X_12
Rusch Jr. Alvin 8/21/2012 US Army and Air Force 28_44_X_6
Belling John 11/11/2012 United States Army 34_18_X_4
Herzog Bruce 11/13/2012 United States Air Force 25_9_X_6
Peterson Eugene 11/21/2012 United States Air Force VietNam War 22_16_X_7
Schaefer Donald 12/27/2012 32_8_X_1
Plainse Ross 1/17/2013 2/28/1944 4/22/1946 United States Army World War II S_52_X_4
Wolff Delbert 1/28/2013 10/23/1942 11/1/1945 United States Navy MAUS_202_6_C
Carr Charles "Chuck" 1/30/2013 United States Marine Corps Korean War 33_30_X_9
Rouman John 2/16/2013 World War II P_34_X_2
Stratton Dale 2/24/2013 S_50_X_9
Hauert Robert 3/8/2013 United States Navy VietNam War 11_1_X_9



Bishop Glenn 3/10/2013 United States Air Force O_75_X_6
Retzlaff Gerald 3/20/2013 United States Army P_48_X_4
Mach Robert L. 3/30/2013 United States Army World War II MAUS_103_3_H
Mahloch Kenneth 4/3/2013 National Guard M_75_X_2
Meisenhelder Daniel 4/3/2013 United States Army VietNam War 22_4_X_5
Bodway Norbert M. 4/20/2013 United States Army Korean War 22_20_X_6
Dalke Ronald 4/22/2013 World War II and Korean WarM_80_X_121
Welsch Herbert 5/5/2013 United States Army Officer World War II 6_64_N_4
Kielgas Allan 5/7/2013 United States Army 28_12_X_2
Morris Marion 5/12/2013 United States Air Force S_8_X_12
Wood Carolyn 5/13/2013 United States Air Force World War II L_9_X_6
Torres Jesus 5/21/2013 United States Army U_6_X_5
Johnson II Fredrick 5/26/2013 United States Air Force 28_6_X_5
Lee Donald L. 5/28/2013 United States Navy 28_21_X_1
Miller William T. 6/2/2013 United States Army 14_46_X_10
Doering Ronald 6/7/2013 1/22/1969 11/8/1970 United States Army VietNam War M_49_X_140
Loveall Thomas R. 6/7/2013 United States Army M_42_X_6
Gosz Richard 6/12/2013 United States Army VietNam War L_12_X_11
von Allmen Joseph R. 6/13/2013 United States Army D_1_X_45
Johnson Kenneth 7/8/2013 United States Army VietNam War 29_17_N_3
Sanchez Arturo 7/12/2013 M_53_X_1
Ehlert Elroy 7/19/2013 United States Army World War II S_66_X_3
Prink James 7/30/2013 United States Navy 9_18_X_8
Braeger Marvin 8/13/2013 United States Navy G_26_N_3
Lichterman Lynn 8/25/2013 5_31_X_16
Skeens Michael 9/2/2013 United States Army 32_31_X_8
Brennecke Richard 9/4/2013 United States Army 27_32_X_1
Timm Sr. Marvin 9/4/2013 United States Navy World War II MAUS_104_6_K
Hastings Fredrick 10/6/2013 United States Army VietNam War 28_1_X_10
Schmelzling Hans 10/11/2013 National Guard 22_79_SW_5
Lundt Warner O. 10/14/2013 United States Navy World War II P_42_X_11
Hill Charles 10/15/2013 United States Army 11_41_S_11
Nielsen Arthur 10/27/2013 World War II S_24_X_4
Taubel Raymond 10/27/2013 United States Navy 23_36_W_12
Burton Francis 11/26/2013 United States Navy V_14_X_6
Weiland Gary 12/1/2013 United States Navy VietNam War V_16_X_10
Clark John T. 12/8/2013 United States Air Force 34_15_X_10
Haas Francis 12/26/2013 United States Army 27_32_X_9
Hartel Margaret 12/29/2013 United States Navy M_80_X_122
Harn Mark 1/18/2014 United States Army D_71_X_4
Gibbs Charles 1/23/2014 United States Army VietNam War 33_37_X_10
Scheig Henry 2/3/2014 World War II V_33_X_16
Kallio Robert W. 2/14/2014 United States Army VietNam War S_50_X_14



Tock Edward 2/14/2014 United States Navy World War II 17_52_X_4
Smith Philip 3/4/2014 United States Army VietNam War P_40_X_2
Harper Glenn 3/9/2014 33_47_X_7
Mueller Bruce 5/10/2014 United States Army 8_9_E_8
DeFord Joshua 6/10/2014 United States Army 17_104_X_9
Klemp Clyde 6/13/2014 United States Navy 22_84_X_7
Haas Louis A. 7/10/2014 United States Army MAUS_101_5_C
Pooler Larry 8/3/2014 United States Navy V_30_X_9
Walker Gordon 8/14/2014 United States Marine Corps Aviator CaptainWorld War II K_86_X_1
Voigt Steven 8/26/2014 United States Navy VietNam War 33_12_S_4
Managan Thomas 9/8/2014 United States Navy World War II 22_60_X_7
Barry John 9/10/2014 United States Navy 15_26_S_6
Alsbury Charles R. 9/22/2014 United States Army MAUS_104_1_L
Waters Emery 11/9/2014 United States Air Force M_78_X_80
Miller George 11/15/2014 United States Marine Corps VietNam War M_48_X_58
Kowald Margaret 11/18/2014 8/28/1950 11/1/1972 United States Air Force Master Sergeant D_12_X_2
Porter David 12/17/2014 United States Army Peace Time 33_5_X_5
Stark James J. 12/20/2014 United States Army D_55_S_6
Filen James 12/22/2014 United States Navy 5_65_W_13
Huven James 12/27/2014 United States Army 6_47_X_9
Wingert Eugene 1/1/2015 World War II MAUS_101_3_L
Hurst Harry 1/2/2015 United States Army World War II 29_60_X_8
Janssen James 1/5/2015 United States Navy MAUS_101_6_A
Tralongo Salvatore 1/6/2015 United States Coast Guard World War II 28_22_X_5
Schubbe Burnell 1/9/2015 United States Navy Korean War S_32_X_8
Mueller Lloyd 1/14/2015 United States Army World War II 7_26_X_9
Moder Luke 2/3/2015 United States Army P_68_X_8
Elgin June 3/7/2015 3_40_N_5
Newhouse Eugene 3/11/2015 United States Air Force 33_46_X_7
Jury Donald 3/14/2015 United States Navy World War II 18_20_S_5
Skeens Lowell 3/16/2015 United States Navy 32_31_X_2
Graham Michael 3/27/2015 United States Marine Corps Captain M_78_X_82
Puffer Richard 4/28/2015 United States Army Korean War K_20_X_11
Ward Richard 6/2/2015 United States Army VietNam War L_74_X_12
Errington William 6/6/2015 United States Army 16_34_X_10
Feavel Robert 6/13/2015 National Guard O_79_X_10
Scheibe Harold 6/22/2015 United States Army Korean War 23_12_S_6
Kuebler james 8/14/2015 Korean War E_30_X_9
Besch Donald 8/31/2015 World War II 29_10_N_6
Hoffman Archabald 9/7/2015 United States Army K_39_X_1B
Wolff Lyle 9/8/2015 United States Coast Guard World War II 11_54_X_5
Kuschel Omar 9/10/2015 United States Army 17_53_X_8
Doire Sr. George 10/3/2015 United States Army World War II and Korean War33_18_X_9



Reinke Rob John 10/7/2015 28_42_X_10
Landmann Ted 10/21/2015 United States Air Force 28_41_X_1
Sawyers Robert 10/23/2015 United States Marine Corps P_37_X_8
Hawkins Robert, B 11/11/2015 United States Army 22_17_X_3
Johnson Stanley 12/9/2015 United States Navy K_80_X_7
Thompson John "Jack" 12/11/2015 United States Navy World War II and Korean WarP_24_X_9
Waugus Glenne 12/15/2015 United States Marine Corps 6_32_X_6
Schutte Frederick 12/16/2015 United States Army K_45_N_3
Rice Otis 12/17/2015 11/13/1942 1/11/1946 United States Army World War II V_7_X_5
Wick Raymond M. 12/24/2015 United States Air Force Captain World War II 25_32_N_4
Gennigen Paul W. 1/14/2016 United States Marine Corps Korean War K_9_X_3
Reynebeau Richard 1/30/2016 United States Army 22_4_X_4
Thao Yeng Pao 2/25/2016 7_23_X_5
Kamine Reinhart 2/27/2016 19_3_E_6
Schmelzer Eugene R. 3/14/2016 United States Navy 33_9_X_4
McCrory Robert G. 3/21/2016 United States Army World War II 27_21_X_7
Vaughan James J. 3/24/2016 United States Navy Korean War S_51_X_8
Ramsay William 4/1/2016 United States Army 4_2_X_10
Kamphuis Jerome 4/13/2016 United States Army Peace Time 2_16_X_8
Schoen William 4/14/2016 United States Air Force D_1_X_19
McGowan John F. 7/4/2016 United States Army 4_13_X_5
Kasten Stephen 7/7/2016 United States Navy 3_5_X_11
Ultang James 7/25/2016 United States Air Force P_59_X_9
Hulsey Fred 8/13/2016 United States Army Korean War 4_39_X_9
Strutz Donald 8/13/2016 US Army and Air Force World War II 17_11_N_3
Kuusisto Ronald, Sr. 8/27/2016 United States Marine Corps MAUS_101_1_A
Hawley David L. 9/14/2016 United States Air Force 12_69_X_5
Spencer Frank Sibley 9/16/2016 9/22/1942 12/15/1945 United States Navy Radioman Second Class, USNRWorld War II H_6_X_5
Schleitwiler Frank J. 10/6/2016 United States Navy World War II COL N1_400_5_D
Miller James 10/28/2016 US Army and Air Force World War II S_31_X_9
Radtke John 10/28/2016 United States Army 25_22_X_11
Bittorf Fred 11/6/2016 United States Army 24_21_X_5
Brueggemann Richard 11/30/2016 United States Navy 19_40_NW_3
Gabrielson Floyd 11/30/2016 United States Army SGT World War II and Korean WarM_79_X_117
Reetz Wayne 12/29/2016 United States Army 33_51_X_11
Kottke Jack E. 12/30/2016 18_26_X_6
Porlier George 1/27/2017 United States Navy Chief Petty OfficerVietNam and Desert Storm28_11_E_6
Jewell Clifford 3/10/2017 US Army and Air Force World War II 22_59_X_10
Kowald Roger 4/1/2017 3/1/1951 8/1/1952 United States Air Force S/SGT Korean War D_12_X_1
Griffin Gary 4/6/2017 United States Navy S_33_X_7
Hayford Donald 5/15/2017 S_51_X_7
Walker Thomas L. 5/28/2017 United States Army 4_20_X_10
Lindloff William K. 6/3/2017 United States Navy World War II D_18_X_9



Parker Ronald A. 6/18/2017 United States Navy M_81_X_171
Parker John M. 6/26/2017 United States Navy World War II S_26_X_10
Schroeder Arthur 7/24/2017 United States Army World War II 23_48_S_4
Olson Alton Arthur 8/28/2017 United States Army 28_6_X_12
Lee O. Richard 9/2/2017 National Guard MAUS_202_3_H
Neveau Alfred G. 9/2/2017 United States Army 32_8_X_9
Kohl Charles 9/12/2017 United States Army 25_30_N_6
Stephan John J. 9/14/2017 US Army and Air Force World War II MAUS_202_5_A
Allinger Don 9/23/2017 United States Army World War II 7_28_X_3
Van Zeeland Larry 10/16/2017 United States Army S_20_X_7
Marcinek Robert 10/25/2017 United States Army Korean War 33_47_X_11
Koestner Robert 11/8/2017 5/29/1943 1/26/1946 US Army and Air Force World War II 27_32_X_7
Sanger Herbert J. 11/30/2017 United States Marine Corps M_81_X_173
DeFord Rodney 12/1/2017 United States Army VietNam War 31_28_X_6
Groth Norman C. 12/4/2017 5/28/1965 12/10/1968 United States Air Force SSGT VietNam War O_6_E_10
Lenz William C. 12/4/2017 United States Coast Guard S_4_X_7
Lemke Howard 12/6/2017 United States Army 33_41_X_4
Zimmerman Arnold D. 12/9/2017 L_67_S_4
Nygaard Erick Dan 12/11/2017 United States Navy M_49_X_135
Hansen Allen J. 12/21/2017 United States Army Master SergeantKorean War 33_53_X_8
Conn Timmy Alan 2/13/2018 United States Air Force 21_39_X_6
Lor Nhia 2/25/2018 VietNam War S_32_X_11
Zuehlke Maryln 2/28/2018 10/4/1958 National Guard 25_25_N_7
Clements Douglas 3/20/2018 United States Army M_57_X_143
Schultz Donald 4/4/2018 United States Marine Corps 29_11_X_3
Burton Norman John 4/14/2018 United States Marine Corps 16_44_X_9
Cook Allen 5/8/2018 United States Navy M_81_X_184
Sabater-Tirado Frank 5/16/2018 3/30/1988 2/14/2001 United States Army SGT 31_18_X_3
Tracanna Peter N. 5/20/2018 United States Marine Corps S_33_X_1
Walter Robert 5/29/2018 United States Air Force S_58_X_12
Schroeder Robert D. 6/4/2018 United States Air Force Korean War and VietNam War3_3_X_7
Latzko Robert 6/6/2018 United States Navy S_5_X_8
O'Brien George, Jr. 6/6/2018 5/11/1945 United States Army MAUS_102_6_L
Jorstad Jerome L. 6/13/2018 United States Army 19_47_X_8
Bennett Michael J. 6/25/2018 United States Army M_81_X_185
Bierman Gerald C. 7/5/2018 United States Air Force 23_50_X_5
Buesing Ralph A. 7/7/2018 United States Army World War II and Korean War6_62_X_6
Godschalx Maria 8/8/2018 United States Army World War II M_81_X_174
Hesse Harold 8/8/2018 United States Navy 25_18_N_6
Ossian William Franklin "Frank: 8/24/2018 United States Army 22_66_X_6
Towner Thomas J. 8/25/2018 United States Army 17_87_X_8
Metko Ronald 9/3/2018 United States Army 21_21_X_3
Schwendler Carl 9/5/2018 United States Marine Corps VietNam War 16_3_X_5



De Bruin Mark L 9/10/2018 United States Army L_65_S_7
Remley Samuel G. 10/4/2018 United States Army World War II 2_17_X_5
Jakl Dennis A. 12/6/2018 United States Navy U_17_X_6
Felzer Theodore "Ted" 12/25/2018 United States Coast Guard World War II 9_9_E_5
Trams Curtis D. 1/1/2019 United States Air Force Korean War M_81_X_181
Meltz Ramona 1/7/2019 United States Army MSGT 12_1_X_8
Steiner Chester 2/18/2019 United States Marine Corps World War II 14_26_X_9
Garvey Dan 2/26/2019 United States Army 4_16_X_4
DeFord Sr. Marquito L. 3/27/2019 VietNam War 31_28_X_3
Keller Charles E. 4/20/2019 United States Navy World War II 10_62_E_5
Wolff Glen 5/2/2019 United States Army World War II 11_54_X_3
Mossholder David M. 5/13/2019 22_85_X_7
Lamers Stephen E. 5/25/2019 United States Army VietNam War S_20_X_5
Cerbolles Rudolfo "Rudy" 5/26/2019 United States Army M_57_X_146
Wood Grayson 6/3/2019 L_9_X_6
Guyon William J. 6/11/2019 United States Army S_19_X_5
Hoppe Leo M. 6/11/2019 United States Marine Corps 9_56_X_6
Carroll Bret C. 7/11/2019 6/20/1987 6/30/2007 United States Navy LCDR M_81_X_180
Derks Larry R. 8/8/2019 11/20/1956 11/15/1958 United States Army SP4 U_2_X_21
Perry Norman R. 8/27/2019 United States Navy Korean War 15_6_X_8
Endlich James H. 9/19/2019 National Guard 17_33_X_3
Vanden Boomen Arnold 12/11/2019 US Army and Air Force V_22_X_7
Buss Rick Thomas 1/20/2020 United States Army S_28_X_11
Koleske James 2/3/2020 United States Army E_2-4-5_X_16
Svetlauskas James 2/11/2020 United States Air Force VietNam War 32_34_X_12
Heil Stephen J. 3/12/2020 United States Army Specialist 5 U_2_X_11
Lewis Valerie M. 4/11/2020 United States Army M_81_X_183
Sell David A. 4/16/2020 United States Navy P_38_X_10
Boldt Oscar C. 6/9/2020 US Army and Air Force World War II S_14_W_3
Bourassa Michael J. 7/16/2020 United States Navy M_65_X_148
Watry Robert P. 7/31/2020 United States Army Korean War 3_23_X_1
Bitter William E. 8/6/2020 World War II V_29_X_14
LaCount Bruce 8/10/2020 United States Marine Corps 12_69_X_3
Blom Dennis P. 8/13/2020 United States Air Force H_39_X_10
Skeens Sharon 8/29/2020 United States Navy 32_31_X_1
Prentice Eldon Nathaniel (Jr.) 9/2/2020 United States Air Force MAUS_202_8_G
Sparks Dan 9/4/2020 United States Army M_47_X_104
Kenney Dr. Robert A. 9/11/2020 United States Army 17_1_X_9
Plank David 9/30/2020 United States Navy Korean War 15_20_X_10
McComber Dennis G. 10/16/2020 United States Army 33_2_X_10
Dahms Michael C. 10/22/2020 United States Army 27_32_X_3
Xiong Neng 12/11/2020 G_87_X_12
Chapman Clyde K. (Jr.) 12/12/2020 United States Army VietNam War M_49_X_158



Schafelke Gerald "Jerry" 1/19/2021 7/30/1953 7/29/1955 United States Marine Corps PFC 28_3_X_2
Boughton Robert 2/7/2021 National Guard 3_17_X_4
Zempurs Indulis G. 2/19/2021 United States Army 32_9_X_1
Wrege Marvin 2/22/2021 United States Navy M_67_X_7
Krentz Jr. Joseph M 3/22/2021 United States Army 6_46_N_5
Taylor Kenneth D. 5/2/2021 United States Army World War II and Korean WarM_70_X_87
Boyden Edward 5/28/2021 11/20/1950 United States Navy lietenant junior gradeKorean War 22_52_X_11
Fietzer Douglas E. 6/11/2021 US Army and Air Force COL GAR_300_4_F
Pomplun Harold C. 6/27/2021 10/15/1961 8/10/1962 National Guard 3_40_N_7
Conkey Julian H. 7/7/2021 United States Army MAUS_201_2_G
Henschel Rodney A. 7/29/2021 United States Army VietNam War 33_6_X_10
Wofford Noble A. 8/9/2021 United States Army P_21_X_11
Mentzel Thomas E. 8/10/2021 United States Navy 21_35_X_2
Krause Theodore R. 8/30/2021 United States Army VietNam War M_65_X_150
Babcock Tyrone 9/6/2021 United States Army SSG VietNam War 21_8_X_6
Bishop Douglas S. 9/9/2021 United States Army 21_35_X_8
Salentine Edward A. 9/9/2021 United States Army 19_1_E_12
Hurley Terrance H. 9/21/2021 3/15/1965 3/17/1967 United States Army SGT VietNam War M_65_X_147
Kent David 11/1/2021 United States Navy MAUS_103_6_C
Fyfe Donald M. 11/7/2021 World War II C_6_X_10
Mentzel Donald "Don" D. 11/11/2021 United States Marine Reserve M_41_W_4
Whitman Lyle E. 11/12/2021 United States Army World War II 4_29_X_8
Bravick, MD Donald D. 12/13/2021 United States Navy U_6_X_10
Lauer James R. 12/28/2021 United States Army VietNam War M_49_X_154
Nichols William R. 1/11/2022 United States Navy Korean War L_13_X_12
Gostas Michael 1/15/2022 3/2/1964 3/1/1966 United States Army SP4 VietNam War 28_1_X_7
McCarthy Leo A 1/20/2022 United States Marine Corps VietNam War M_49_X_157
Reff Charles R. 3/3/2022 5/31/1963 3/6/1966 United States Army V_25_X_9
Acker Ralph L. 4/10/2022 United States Army L_70_X_10
**Knapp Lonrig B. 01/01/1862 08/20/1861 United States Army Civil War G_37_X_12
Turner Henry Capt. 01/01/1879 08/07/1862 03/19/1865 United States Army Captin Civil War D_62_X_8
Robinson Andrew N. 01/01/1890 09/18/1861 06/26/1862 United States Army Quarter Master SGT.Civil War F_19_X_5
**Crouch Jesse 01/01/1894 12/05/1861 06/12/1862 United States Army Civil War K_9_X_21
Dallas Laughlin D. 01/01/1894 12/24/1864 08/28/1865 United States Army Civil War D_94_X_2
**Kesting Charles 01/01/1898 02/24/1865 10/31/1865 United States Army Civil War G_89_X_10
Pasch Robert 01/01/1899 04/28/1898 11/10/1898 United States Army Spanish American War R_7_E_1
Lester Richard 01/08/1882 D_28_X_1
Ming Samual P. 01/10/1896 03/24/1862 07/25/1863 United States Army Korean War E_14_S_2
Ashman John 01/26/1892 F_28_X_1A
Leimer Charles 01/27/1879 08/14/1862 06/08/1865 United States Army Civil War F_36_X_5
Verity William 01/27/1899 09/03/1864 06/20/1865 United States Army Civil War K_3_X_1
Babcock D. C. 02/04/1888 United States Army 1st. LT. Civil War G_67_X_1
Smith William H. Corp. 02/04/1894 United States Army Civil War D_66_X_7



Soper Amasa 02/12/1883 10/26/1861 09/30/1862 United States Army Civil War F_22_X_4
Crouch Jesse 02/14/1894 United States Army Civil War M_46_X_48
Dwy Wilson 02/16/1878 United States Army Civil War D_1_X_13
Mason William A. 02/21/1885 02/29/1864 09/29/1865 United States Army Civil War 12_53_X_2
Robinson Edmond 02/23/1894 08/13/1862 03/15/1864 United States Army Civil War 12_41_X_4
Busse John 02/25/1897 03/23/1865 07/28/1865 United States Army Civil War K_68_S_3
Pomeroy Henry, Lt. Col. 02/29/1876 11/01/1861 02/11/1864 United States Army Civil War E_31_X_1
Kirchner George 03/03/1896 03/01/1864 06/27/1865 United States Army Civil War F_56_X_1
Sheldon Sanford S. 03/04/1891 04/10/1862 04/10/1865 United States Army Civil War 11_38_N_2
White Lyman L. 03/17/1873 06/28/1861 07/15/1864 United States Army Civil War D_49_X_11
Conkey Theodore 03/17/1880 01/16/1862 10/27/1865 United States Army Civil War C_3_X_5
Jones Henry M. 03/18/1888 01/01/1862 10/07/1865 United States Army Civil War D_75_X_7
Trettien Fredrich 03/19/1891 United States Army Civil War K_21_X_1
Steenis Peter 03/25/1885 06/28/1861 01/23/1864 United States Army Civil War K_84_X_2
Grupe Ferdinand 03/25/1889 09/30/1864 06/14/1865 United States Army Civil War 11_34_N_2
Merrill Willard (Pvt) 03/25/1899 04/28/1898 11/09/1898 United States Army Spanish American War E_35_X_3
Bullock Lovell 03/26/1895 11/12/1861 01/01/1863 United States Army Civil War D_98_X_3
Stansbury Emory 04/02/1899 08/20/1861 09/01/1864 United States Army Civil War T_52_X_2
Waldo L.H. 04/06/1895 08/06/1862 06/30/1865 United States Army Civil War D_29_X_1
Russell Charles 04/09/1877 United States Army Civil War E_36_X_1
Ryan Samuel Sr. 04/12/1876 United States Army E_17_X_6
Gilson Samuel H. 04/17/1881 10/09/1861 07/05/1862 United States Army Civil War D_66_X_4
Wettengel Fredrick William 04/24/1882 08/16/1861 08/21/1861 United States Army Civil War F_56_X_4
Loope Wm. R. A. Dr. 04/30/1891 10/18/1861 10/19/1864 United States Army Civil War 1_12_X_5
Sykes Lewis H 05/14/1864 United States Army Civil War D_31_X_9
Grube Fred   Inf. 05/25/1889 Civil War I_7_X_9
Scholz Gottlieb 05/25/1899 10/04/1864 07/18/1865 United States Army Civil War I_13_W_3
Eggleston George D. 06/06/1882 06/28/1861 06/09/1865 United States Army Civil War G_47_X_1
Fenno Miles H. 06/10/1866 08/15/1862 12/30/1862 United States Army Pvt Civil War M_79_X_28
Claspill John H. Sr. 06/24/1885 United States Army Civil War E_60_X_1
Green William 06/30/1894 09/03/1861 11/03/1864 United States Army Civil War G_9_X_4
Rohrig William 07/05/1897 03/03/1862 04/06/1863 United States Army Civil War 10_6_W_1
Tischer Fredrick 07/08/1893 02/22/1865 08/01/1865 United States Army Civil War T_54_X_1
Weller William 07/10/1899 01/01/1864 07/18/1865 United States Army PVT Civil War M_54_X_44
Millheiser Frank J. 07/13/1886 08/15/1862 06/10/1865 United States Army Civil War I_30_X_1
Reese Jessie D. 07/16/1896 12/29/1863 United States Army Civil War N_1_X_1
Hayden   Dr. Franklin L. 07/17/1895 01/15/1864 09/04/1865 United States Army Civil War N_79_X_3
Gurnee W.T. 07/20/1898 08/25/1862 08/29/1865 United States Army Civil War D_1_X_7
Borchers Fred J.F. 07/28/1881 01/24/1862 02/17/1865 United States Army Civil War K_65_X_3
Myers George H. 08/01/1891 02/18/1865 08/14/1865 United States Army Civil War T_33_X_2
McKendree William 08/06/1864 08/06/1864 United States Army Civil War F_39_X_2
Stroebe Reinhold 08/06/1899 03/11/1865 08/22/1865 United States Army Civil War N_41_E_1
Dane Peter E. 08/09/1880 08/11/1862 06/30/1865 United States Army Civil War U_1_X_5



Neff Johann Christen 08/10/1899 11/21/1862 01/01/1863 United States Army Pvt Civil War G_89_X_3
Lahee  Capt.  Horace R. 08/14/1899 05/07/1861 05/24/1863 United States Army Civil War T_64_X_6
Merrill Wm. Wallace 08/17/1895 01/28/1865 09/27/1865 United States Army Civil War N_76_W_2
Baer Charles O. 08/18/1898 04/28/1898 United States Army Spanish American War 1_11_X_4
Sproat William 08/20/1867 06/28/1861 03/15/1864 United States Army Civil War D_52_X_3
Schultz Ferdinand 08/20/1899 02/22/1865 06/12/1866 United States Army Civil War R_5_W_2
Franklin Edward R. 08/22/1898 02/27/1864 06/06/1865 United States Army Civil War H_36_X_6
Lansing Abraham 08/23/1888 08/25/1864 05/17/1865 United States Army Civil War I_33_W_3
Sanborn Monroe 09/01/1876 F_73_X_3
Johnston William Col. 09/02/1881 United States Army G_2-4-5_X_1
Acher Aaron J. 09/08/1894 09/08/1864 06/26/1865 United States Army Civil War N_84_X_2
Kuehn Joseph 09/09/1899 01/11/1862 01/24/1865 United States Army Civil War M_56_X_6
Oppel John W. 09/20/1873 United States Army Civil War F_55_X_26
Strong Henry F. 09/20/1896 10/03/1861 04/08/1865 United States Army Civil War F_63_E_8
Rethlesberger John 09/21/1898 10/14/1864 07/14/1864 United States Army Civil War 10_49_X_6
VanHeuklon George 09/24/1897 10/10/1861 10/09/1865 United States Army Civil War N_24_X_1
Kenyon Wallace B. 09/25/1890 02/14/1862 04/02/1863 United States Army Civil War 17_75_X_1
Spencer William E. 09/26/1862 10/01/1862 United States Army Civil War T_38_X_6
Blood E.J. 09/27/1885 01/02/1862 12/10/1863 United States Army Civil War E_10_X_3
Whitman John George 09/28/1877 04/22/1861 04/14/1863 United States Army Civil War U_38_X_1A
Reckard J.  Marion 10/01/1868 01/06/1863 10/06/1863 United States Army Civil War T_53_X_1
Palmer Samuel 10/08/1863 09/07/1861 10/08/1863 United States Army Pvt. Civil War K_110_N_10
Russell Abraham 10/14/1891 United States Army Civil War I_3_N_1
Town Ephram P. 10/20/1890 08/25/1864 06/20/1865 United States Army Civil War K_26_X_3
 **Everts A. B. 10/25/1873 F_14_S_4
Fairbanks Sylvester 10/26/1889 09/30/1864 07/08/1865 United States Army Civil War D_26_X_1
Ames Wm. D. Rev. 11/07/1898 06/16/1864 09/24/1864 United States Army Civil War N_40_W_1
Benoit Louis N 11/09/1881 05/13/1864 09/16/1864 United States Army Civil War D_83_X_4
Ballard Jesse 11/09/1894 08/23/1864 06/23/1865 United States Army Civil War T_39 &amp; 40_X_19
Noble George 11/11/1899 08/11/1862 06/25/1865 United States Army SGT Civil War K_94_S_8
Gallagher Frank 11/14/1898 11/21/1863 07/17/1891 United States Army Civil War D_76_E_9
Schmelling Theo. 11/20/1887 12/30/1863 12/30/1864 United States Army Civil War M_64_X_10
Jewett John D. 11/21/1862 08/26/1862 11/21/1862 United States Army Captain Civil War M_78_X_30
Wolfram Christian 12/01/1894 10/01/1864 06/19/1865 United States Army Civil War G_53_S_2
Stiener John B. 12/06/1893 03/20/1865 07/11/1865 United States Army Civil War M_72_X_17
Baer John J. Rev 12/07/1872 United States Army 1_11_X_5
McCoy Alexander 12/08/1893 6_1_X_1
**Puffer John I. 12/12/1864 United States Army Civil War K_20_X_8
**Fuller Charles A. 12/16/1890 United States Army Civil War U_26_X_6
Appleton John 12/19/1882 11/27/1863 04/01/1865 United States Army Civil War 19_36_X_2
Saxton W. J. 12/20/1894 08/21/1862 02/26/1865 United States Army Pvt. Civil War M_48_X_2
Monroe James 12/24/1899 United States Army Civil War D_97_X_4
McGrath Morris D. 12/27/1887 12/30/1861 02/22/1864 United States Army Civil War K_92_X_12



Priest James E. 12/28/1861 09/13/1861 12/28/1861 United States Army Civil War 1_20_W_1
Davis Evan 12/28/1894 10/25/1863 07/12/1865 United States Army Civil War F_11_X_2
Wallace Robert 12/29/1885 United States Army Civil War T_63_X_7
**Holmes Burton H. United States Air Force World War I 6_51_S_4
Adsit F.  E. 10/01/1861 09/01/1863 United States Army Civil War E_39_X_5
Beach S. E. United States Army Civil War M_79_X_25
Brown J. G. 12/31/1861 01/07/1865 United States Army Civil War N_87_E_1
Cobs Rudolph J. United States Army Civil War M_62_X_40
Conner James G. United States Army Civil War E_60_X_9
Everetts A. B. United States Army Civil War G_63_X_1
Fraser William 06/28/1861 08/14/1862 United States Army Sgt. Civil War M_70_X_33
Hert William "Bill" K. United States Navy 27_17_N_2
Huckins George United States Army Civil War M_80_X_18
Isenberg William United States Air Force Tech Sergeant 14_44_S_3
Knapp Luke 08/18/1864 10/26/1865 United States Army Cpl. Civil War M_72_X_14
Patton Zordaster 07/16/1861 01/20/1862 United States Army Civil War E_24_X_3
Richards James E. 05/20/1863 10/01/1863 United States Army Pvt. Civil War M_79_X_22
Robinson G. L. Prt. United States Army Pvt. Civil War M_47_X_50
Rohrbach Ludwig 10_19_X_1
Schultz William Ludwig N_93_E_1
Snell George United States Army Civil War D_1_X_11
Wilson Francis G. 05/14/1864 09/16/1864 United States Army Sgt. Civil War M_70_X_36





Change Order No. 1

Date 08/08/22

Contract No. 44-22  for the following public work :

between Calnin & Goss Inc. , 505 W Edgewood Drive Appleton, WI 54913

      and the City of Appleton dated:  6/2/2021 is hereby changed in the following particular wit:

Current

Item Contract Current C.O. Amount Contingency New Contract New Contingency

No. Account No. Amount Contingency (+/-) (+/-) Total Total

1 4142.680905 $565,457.41 $42,409.31 $565,457.41 $42,409.31

2 4142.680903 $87,579.58  $6,568.47 $87,579.58 $6,568.47

3 4142.680904 $387,868.13 $29,090.11 $387,868.13 $29,090.11

4 5371.680905 $180,416.60 $13,531.25 $180,416.60 $13,531.25

5 5431.680903 $48,179.93 $3,613.49 $42,805.00 $90,984.93 $3,613.49

6 5230.680904 $110,679.95 $8,301.00 $110,679.95 $8,301.00

7 $0.00 $0.00

8 $0.00 $0.00

9 $0.00 $0.00

10 $0.00 $0.00

Total $1,380,181.60 $103,513.62 $42,805.00 $0.00 $1,422,986.60 $103,513.62

 Reason for Change:

 

The Contract Time will be (increased / decreased / unchanged) by this Change Order: 5 Days

The Date of Completion as of the date of this Change Order therefore is: 9/15/2022

Finance Committee Agenda Date: 08/08/22

Date approved by Council: 08/17/22

CONTRACT AMENDMENT & CHANGE ORDER

Unit Z-22 Sewer and Water Reconstruction No.3

Addition of Oneida Street sanitary sewer relay (Washington Street to 100 feet south) to serve new Urbane 115 development.

(Contractor Name) (Contractor Address)

https://cityofappleton-my.sharepoint.com/personal/buetowrm_appleton_org/Documents/Projects/2022/Unit Z-22 Change Order No 1.xls 8/3/2022



Section Title Line Item Item Code Item Description UofM Quantity Unit Price Extension

URBANE 115 BASE BID Required Base Bid Section

1 1 Furnish & Install 12" Sanitary Sewer lin. ft. 100 162.50$     16,250.00$  

2 2 Furnish & Install 4"/6" San Lateral lin. ft. 5 130.00$     650.00$       

3 3 Furnish & Install 4' Dia. Sanitary Maintenance Hole vert. ft. 12 600.00$     7,200.00$    

4 4 Furnish & Install San Maintenance Hole Casting each 1 600.00$     600.00$       

5 5 Furnish & Install 8" 3-Day H.E. Concrete Pavement sq. yd. 25 250.00$     6,250.00$    

6 6 Furnish & Install 4" Asphalt Pavement sq. yd. 50 160.00$     8,000.00$    

7 7 Furnish & Paint Pav't Markings Crosswalk 6" lin. ft. 40 1.00$          40.00$          

8 8 Furnish & Paint Pav't Markings Symbols/Arrows each 1 80.00$       80.00$          

9 9 Furnish & Install Type "D-M" Inlet Protection each 3 95.00$       285.00$       

10 10 Temp. Traffic Control l.s. 1 2,500.00$  2,500.00$    

11 11 Furnish & Install Flowable Fill cu. yd. 10 95.00$       950.00$       

Total: 42,805.00$  

**Line item 6,7,8 quoted as painted markings w/ 1 year warranty (warning lites)**

Calnin & Goss

505 W. Edgewood Dr

Appleton, WI

Printed Name: Nick Newhouse

Signature: Nick Newhouse

Date: 8-3-22



 

 

 
 
                              “…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 

Department of Utilities  
Water Treatment Facility 

2281 Manitowoc Road 
Menasha, WI  

920-832-5945 tel. 
920-832-5949 fax  

 
 
TO:  Chairperson Vered Meltzer and Members of the Utilities Committee 

   

FROM: Utilities Director Chris Shaw 

 

DATE: August 1, 2022  

 

RE: Award Engineering Contract to McMahon Associates for the Water 

Treatment Facility Optimized Corrosion Control Treatment (OCCT) 

Phosphoric Acid System Design in the amount of $35,200 with a 

contingency of $5,280  

 

 

BACKGROUND:   

 

Corrosion in a water distribution system can lead to shortened service life of 

infrastructure components as well as reduced water quality at customers taps. Nationally, 

and at the State level, lead levels have become a concern amongst regulators and the 

general public. This concern is a result of corrosion where water systems water chemistry 

allows for the release of lead from pipes which can be above Federal regulatory limits.  

 

Currently, the Appleton Water Treatment Facility meets all State and Federal 

requirements for lead. However, the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources 

(WDNR) and the Appleton Water Utility completed an analysis of treatment options 

which resulted in a recommended change from the current polyphosphate/orthophosphate 

blend to phosphoric acid for optimized corrosion control.   

 

This engineering project will provide for the development of bidding documents for a 

new phosphoric acid treatment system. Subsequently, shop drawing submittal reviews 

and approvals will be the responsibility of the selected firm. The engineering scope also 

includes field services for construction management and the firm will be responsible for 

contract administration.  

 

PROPOSALS: 

 

A Request for Proposal (RFP) team evaluated proposals from three firms. Proposal 

elements evaluated included resources of the firm, project understanding, project team 

experience, and ability to complete the work within schedule. The criteria for this 

recommendation is based on the Department of Utilities RFP Evaluation Tool, followed 

by an evaluation of sealed quotes. The team selects the proposal and cost quotation that 

represent the best value to the City.  



OCCT Phosphoric Acid System  

August 1, 2022 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 

 

For this project, the McMahon Associates proposal was selected by the team. The 

McMahon proposal had the overall highest ranking and the lowest cost. The team 

believes McMahon will accomplish a successful project based on their familiarity of 

chemical systems, a sound project approach, and a favorable project history with the 

Department.  

 

The following table summarizes the individual proposal scores and company quotes. 

 

Firm Quote Proposal 

Points 

Value 

Scoring 

Overall 

Rank 

Strand and Associates $156,700 100 60 3 

Jacobs $166,300 190 114 2 

McMahon Associates $35,200 160 450 1 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Award Engineering Contract to McMahon Associates for the Water Treatment Facility 

Optimized Corrosion Control Treatment (OCCT) Phosphoric Acid System Design in the 

amount of $35,200 with a contingency of $5,280. 

 

If you have any questions regarding this project please contact Chris Shaw at ph: 920-

832-2362 

 



APPLETON HEALTH DEPARTMENT – Weights and Measures 
100 NORTH APPLETON STREET, APPLETON WI  54911-4799 

920-832-6429 FAX 920-832-5853 

 

PROPOSED REVISIONS TO 

WEIGHTS AND MEASURES FEE SCHEDULE 
 
 

NO. 
OF 
FEE 

LICENSEABLE ITEM 
DESCRIPTION 

CURRENT FEE 

 

AVERAGE 
CITY LICENSE 

FEE 2022* 

 RECOMMENDED 
FEE 

DOLLAR 
CHANGE 

 
Number 

Of Device 

1 
Base Licensing 
Processing Fee 

$45.00 $54.00 $50.00 $5.00 
230 

2 Scales 0 – 30 lb  $20.00 $39.60 $30.00 $10.00 399 

3 Scales 31 – 1000 lb $33.00 $80.75 $40.00 $7.00 76 

4 Scales 1001 – 10,000 lb $53.00 $87.75 $60.00 $7.00 16 

5 Scales 10,000 lb+ $70.00 $142.40 $85.00 $15.00 10 

6 Prepack Scale $20.00 $32.71 $100.00 $80.00 22 

7 Person Weighing Scale $35.00 $80.75 $50.00 $15.00 14 

8 
High Accuracy Scale with 
Weights or Pill Counter 
System 

$45.00 $56.19 $60.00 $15.00 
41 

9 Hopper Scales  $110.00 $400 $150.00 $40.00 12 

10 Vehicle Scales $150.00 - 150.00 0  

11 Linear Meter $15.00 $36.10 $15.00 0  

12 Rules $3.00 $3.15 $3.00 0  

13 Timing Device $8.00 $19.33 $10.00 $2.00 184 

14 Petroleum Pump $22.00 $43.17 $30.00 $8.00 1059 

15 High Speed Pump $45.00 $63.33 $55.00 $10.00 11 

16 
Vehicle Tank and Bulk 
Meter 

$45.00 $115.00 $55.00 $10.00 
114 

17 Retail Price Scanner 

1 – 8 $60.00 
 

9 or more 
$7.50 each 

$19.50 Each 

1 – 8      $100.00 
 

9 or more $12.50 
each 

$40.00 
 

$5.00 ea 

526 

18 Late Payment Fee $60.00 $94.33 $60.00   

19 
Penalty Fee for 
Nonregistration 

Triple the Per 
Device Fee 

Not Available 
Triple the Per 
Device Fee 

0 
 

20 Reinspection Fee $50.00 $100.00 $58.00 0  

21 Reinspection Fee 2nd Visit N/A N/A $100.00 0  

22 Reinspection Fee 3rd Visit N/A N/A $150.00 0  

23 Firewood Dealer $20.00 No Others $20.00 0  
 

Note:  Last fee increase was in September 2021 
*Cities (Green Bay, De Pere, Madison, Menasha, Milwaukee, and Oshkosh) 
 
 



    PROPOSED REVISIONS TO 

WEIGHTS AND MEASURES FEE SCHEDULE 

 

 

Base rates for Appleton Health Department Environmental Health and Weights & Measures fees 

were established in an independent Study authorized and funded by the Common Council in 

1993. The final report was referred to as the Griffith Study.  

 

Annually since 1993 we have evaluated the actual cost of services provided, reviewed our current 

fees for those services rendered, and made recommendations for increases where justified. The 

Board of Health has acted upon and approved these recommendations when submitted. 

 

In recent years we have used the federally established and nationally recognized Consumer Price 

Index (CPI) as the factor in determining appropriate fee increases.  

 

In 2003 we did an exhaustive study of the Weights and Measures Section to evaluate feasibility 

and costs of contracting with several area municipalities. From this study and with the assistance 

of John Hoft-March of our Finance Department, we recalculated our actual operating cost for 

operations within the City of Appleton. These figures are now updated annually. 

 

Our device license fee rates are based upon the standardized, average amount of time spent to 

inspect, test and certify a device times the current operating cost per hour. With the new hourly 

rate and with special consideration to each fee I have developed the new Recommended Fees 

shown. Weights and Measures fees are calculated to the nearest whole dollar amount.  

 

With the rate changes submitted we estimate a revenue increase of $22,278.00 or approximately 

31.4%.  

 

                                                                                      Respectfully submitted, 

 

                                                                                      APPLETON HEALTH DEPARTMENT 

 

 

 

                                                                                      Eric Maggio, Chief Sealer 

                                                                                      Weights and Measures 

 



53-22 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 19-5 OF CHAPTER 19 OF THE MUNICIPAL 
CODE OF THE CITY OF APPLETON, RELATING TO THE ERECTION OF OFFICIAL 
TRAFFIC SIGNS AND SIGNALS. 

(Municipal Services Committee 8/3/2022) 
 
The Common Council of the City of Appleton does ordain as follows: 
 

Section 1:  That Section 19-5 of Chapter 19 of the Municipal Code of the City of Appleton, 

relating to the erection of official traffic signs and signals, is hereby created/amended as follows: 

INSTALL STOP SIGNS ON: 
 

Honeygold Court at Lightning Drive 
  
Section 2:  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and 

publication, and upon its passage and publication, the Traffic Engineer is authorized and directed to 

erect and maintain the appropriate standard traffic signs, signals and markings, giving notice of the 

provisions of this Ordinance. 

54-22 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 19-5 OF CHAPTER 19 OF THE MUNICIPAL 
CODE OF THE CITY OF APPLETON, RELATING TO THE ERECTION OF OFFICIAL 
TRAFFIC SIGNS AND SIGNALS. 

(Municipal Services Committee 8/3/2022) 
 
The Common Council of the City of Appleton does ordain as follows: 
 

Section 1:  That Section 19-5 of Chapter 19 of the Municipal Code of the City of Appleton, 

relating to the erection of official traffic signs and signals, is hereby created/amended as follows: 

INSTALL STOP SIGNS ON: 
 

Cedar Ridge Drive at Woodendale Way 
 

Section 2:  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and 

publication, and upon its passage and publication, the Traffic Engineer is authorized and directed to 

erect and maintain the appropriate standard traffic signs, signals and markings, giving notice of the 

provisions of this Ordinance. 


	0000_Agenda
	0001_1_CC Minutes 8-3-22
	0002_1_Appleton Public Arts Committee Appointment
	0003_1_725 W Packard St-variance
	0004_1_Olde Oneida St Bridge
	0005_1_StaffReport_Zips Car Wash_SUP_For08-10-22
	Sheets and Views
	SITE PLAN


	0005_2_Ron Cindy Dercks Email 8-8-22
	0006_1_StaffReport_JohnStMatthiasSt_CrossingPlatBoundary_For08-10-22
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	0007_1_Land Use Application Fees Memo to PC_8-10-22
	0007_2_Land Use Apps Fee Study_Proposed Fees For 2023
	0007_3_Resolution 2022-06_Land Use Application Fees 2023
	0008_1_Lutz Park Shoreline Development and Trail Design Project Memo 
	0009_1_9-R-22 Sustainability Panel Resolution
	0010_1_0115 - Finance Committee - Hartwig Easement Memo 08-01-2022 (Final)
	0011_1_220725_UC Memo SecondaryClariferDrive_Sabel_Change Orders No3
	0012_1_Riverside Cemetery - 2022 Veteran Grave Care Reimbursement
	0012_2_Riverside Cemetery - Military Report 07-06-2022 - by death date
	0012_3_Riverside Cemetery - Veterans July 2021 to June 2022
	0013_1_Unit Z-22 Change Order No. 1
	W-21 bid proposal

	0014_1_OCCT Project 08-01-22
	0015_1_FEE PROPOSALS 2023
	0016_1_Ordinances to Council 8-17-22

